
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Agenda 
 
 

Date Tuesday 28 November 2017 
 

Time 6.00 pm 
 

Venue Crompton Suite, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires advice on any 
item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her 
ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul Entwistle or 
Sian Walter-Browne at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this agenda is Sian Walter-Browne Tel. 0161 
770 5151 or email sian.walter-browne@oldham.gov.uk  
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - Any Member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the contact officer by 12 noon on Thursday, 23 
November 2017. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may 
record / film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and 
the press are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends 
a meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional 
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 
Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 
including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
 Councillors Dean, Goodwin (Vice-Chair), McLaren (Chair), Toor, Williams, 

Williamson, A Hussain and J Larkin 
 

 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Declarations of Interest  

Public Document Pack



 
 

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

3   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 10) 

 The Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 17th October 2017 are 
attached for approval. 

6   Minutes of the Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee (Pages 11 - 16) 

 The minutes of the Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee held on 26th September 
2017 are attached. The Board is requested to note the minutes. 

7   Academy Conversions and Free Schools (Pages 17 - 18) 

8   Strategic Regeneration: Oldham Town Centre Masterplan and Prince’s Gate 
Update (Pages 19 - 20) 

9   Business Growth and Investment Review (Pages 21 - 144) 

10   Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme (Pages 145 - 162) 

 The Board is requested to note the Overview and Scrutiny Board Work 
Programme for 2017/18. 

11   General Exceptions and Urgent Decisions (Pages 163 - 164) 

 The Board is requested to note the decisions that have been taken under Rule 
16 or 17 of the Council’s Constitution since the last meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board held on 5th September 2017. 
 
If a detailed explanation is required and an officer is attend the meeting to 
provide further information, please contact Constitutional Services by 12.00 noon 
on Thursday, 23rd November 2017. 

12   Key Decision Document (Pages 165 - 178) 

 The Board is requested to note the Council’s Key Decision Document. 

13   Date and Time of Next Meeting  

 The date and time of the next Overview and Scrutiny Board will be Tuesday, 16th 
January 2018 at 6.00 p.m. 

 



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
17/10/2017 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor McLaren (Chair)  
Councillors Dean, Toor, Williams, Williamson, A Hussain, Hewitt 
and J Larkin 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Lori Hughes Constitutional Services 
 Dami Awobajo Head of Business Intelligence 
 Councillor Cath Ball Deputy Cabinet Member 
 Joanne Betts Principal Transport and Highways 

Policy Officer 
 Dominic Coleman Principal Policy Officer 
 Bryn Cooke Strategic Regeneration 
 Tim Haworth DWP District Manager 
 Nick Mellor DWP North West Planning & 

Partnership Lead 
 Vivien Robinson DWP Representative 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Goodwin. 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Board held on 5th September 2017 be approved as a correct 
record. 

6   MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health Scrutiny Sub-
Committee held on 4th July 2017 be noted. 

7   UNIVERSAL CREDIT - MEETING WITH JOB CENTRE 
PLUS (DWP) REPRESENTATIVES  

 

The Board had invited representatives from the Department for 
Work and Pensions (DWP) to discuss the current position of the 
implementation of Universal Credit.  Oldham had been selected 
as a pilot area and the implementation had been and continued 
to be a learning exercise for both the Council and the DWP.   
 
The Board were provided with a presentation by the DWP.  
Universal Credit was the most significant change in many years 
and the aims were to reduce dependency on benefits, reduce 
worklessness, support people by moving into work, provide 
value for money and recognise the needs of claimants.  
Universal credit combined six previous benefits into one.  When Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

claiming Universal Credit it would not be necessary to sign off or 
make new claims as it was reported to one organisation.  
Universal Credit was a digital service available on smart phones, 
tablets and other devices.  Notifications were immediate for 
most customers.  Universal Credit was a personalised service.  
All issues related to the claimant were put on the journal and 
usually responded to in 24 – 48 hours.  Assistance for claimants 
was provided by DWP officers which included budgeting and 
personal assistance.  Support was also available from other 
organisations including the Council.  Members were invited to 
visit the Job Centre.   
 
Members sought an explanation as to the delay in claimants 
receiving payments when they had met the criteria.  Members 
were informed that the length of time taken to receive payment 
was policy design and could not be changed.  If claimants were 
in hardship, an advance payment could be generated in 3 days 
and for the most vulnerable payment could be arranged the 
same day.  Payments were made monthly and personal 
budgeting support was available.  Monthly payments were made 
in order to prepare claimants for the world of work where most 
workers were paid monthly.   
 
Members queried the percentages in the labour market and 
were informed national predictions were 7 million were back in 
the economy.   
 
Members queried how support was provided to those residents 
who did not have digital access to the service.  Members were 
informed if Universal Credit could not be accessed digitally it 
may not be possible to apply for jobs as most job applications 
were on-line.  As well as personal budgeting support, DWP had 
contracted assisted digital support.  There were 26 computers 
available in the Oldham Job Centre and work coaches were also 
available to assist applicants on the computers.  Information 
could be found at www.gov.uk and search for Universal Credit.  
It was important to get customer feedback.  The system was 
agile and would evolve.  Oldham alone made several requests a 
week.  Self-employed customers who worked were required to 
call and declare earnings but an update had been requested 
whereby the information could be put into the on-line journal. 
The complexities of the system were huge with a large customer 
base. 
 
Members referenced a case whereby a resident, single parent 
with 2 young children, had made an application and it took 8 – 9 
weeks for the first payment, an advanced payment was made.  
However, the repayments had been made over three months 
with no negotiation.  Members were informed that repayment 
should have been over six months.  Members asked what 
discretion was available to make decisions on a case by case 
basis and also with sanctions.  Members were informed the 
advanced payments were in the policy design.   
 
Teleconferences were done monthly with the job centres.  The 
message was not to sanction but to help.  Customers could be Page 2

http://www.gov.uk/


 

late for a whole host of reasons and those reasons were 
explored.  The difference between job seekers allowance and 
Universal Credit and stopping of payments was outlined.  Claims 
would not be closed in Universal Credit but payments would be 
suspended.  There was guidance on the use of sanctions and it 
was hoped to avoid the use of sanctions and the root of the 
issue explored.  The Board were advised that in terms of 
sanctions the number had fallen, there had been 190,000 
interviews with customers and 98 sanctions. 
 
Members sought further clarification on discretion on the use of 
sanctions.  Members were informed that there was no prepared 
script.  There was a condition and those seeking employment 
were to actively seek work 35 hours a week.  If this had not 
been done, the job centre would not impose a sanction but 
advisors would try to understand the reasons why.  Sanctions 
for not reporting had reduced from 11% to less than 2%, some 
job centres were less.  Sanctions were used as a last resort.  
Members were informed that DWP staff could not change the 
policy of monthly payments.   
 
Members commented on the take up of the council tax reduction 
scheme and free school meals which had been previously 
provided automatically under housing benefit.  There was a 
need to work together to ensure that residents were put onto the 
schemes.  Residents were currently getting into arrears and 
other difficulties.  Members were informed that business cards 
were provided to those residents who submitted claims to 
remember to claim council tax reduction and schools meals.  
This design fault was having a significant effect on residents and 
it was requested that something be built into the system.  
Members raised concerns related to housing benefits and social 
landlords who were wary of Universal Credit.  Arrears rates were 
at currently 70%, it had been 18% previously.  The lack of direct 
payment was causing major problems along with the six week 
in-built delay which had a significant impact.  Tenants had 
accrued arrears, run up debts and then tried to catch up on 
payments.  The problem had accelerated over the last few 
months.  Members were informed that a portal was in the 
process of being implemented for direct payments for the social 
rented sector.  In a number of areas there were issues with the 
verification of rent details and residents who did not know who 
their landlord was.  For the privately rented sector, this remained 
with their work coaches.  Members were informed that claimants 
were offered personal budget and money management support.  
Where the housing payment module had been implemented it 
was seen to have made an impact.   
 
Members questioned the number of sanctions within the 
information from Poverty Action Oldham.  Members were 
reminded that job centre staff had not made the policy design. 
 
Members questioned the affordability of the use of devices by 
claimants.  Members were informed that the services could be 
accessed by devices around Oldham including local libraries 
and the job centre.  Library staff had been trained to assist Page 3



 

claimants.  Digital support staff were located in the job centre to 
provide assistance.  Members commented that the use of 
foodbanks had increased by 77%.  DWP representatives were 
unable to confirm if this was linked to Universal Credit. 
 
Members asked if a monitoring system was in place and what 
support was provided to BME residents with language difficulties 
or those residents who were disabled.  Members were informed 
that monitoring was key as well as supporting people and 
building a relationship.  Mental health training had been 
undertaken and support developed through medical 
professionals.  Visiting officers could provide a service to 
residents in their homes.  A range of data was available on the 
DWP website.  The DWP used various agencies for language 
support which included the Red Cross and there were staff in 
job centres who spoke more than one language. 
 
Members questioned the percentage who failed to attend and 
the higher sanction rate in Oldham.  Members were informed of 
the quality assurance framework of internal measures which 
reviewed staff and customer interviews.  Members were 
informed that job centre practices were the same across Greater 
Manchester.  The work practices had been reviewed and a 
strong process was in place.  The variance in the number of 
sanctions had been reviewed and was due to demographics. 
 
Members asked why charges were incurred when using the 
Universal Credit helpline.  This was a policy decision by 
Government and applicants should be encouraged to use free 
channels. 
 
The DWP representatives were thanked for their attendance.  
Further case studies and questions would be arranged to be 
sent to the DWP representatives.  A visit to the Oldham Job 
Centre would also be arranged. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The information provided related to Universal Credit be 

noted. 
2. The questions and responses provided be noted. 
3. Further case studies and questions be sent to the DWP 

representatives. 
4. A visit be arranged for Overview and Scrutiny Board 

members to the Oldham Job Centre. 
 

8   HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY UPDATE   

The Board gave consideration to an update on the Council’s 
Homelessness Strategy and Homelessness issues in Oldham.   
 
The Homelessness Action 2002 required all local authorities to 
take a more strategic and multi-agency approach in tackling all 
forms of homelessness and its prevention.  The Council had 
developed strong relationships with its partners which had 
assisted in keeping the levels of homelessness in the borough Page 4



 

amongst the lowest in Greater Manchester.  The current 
strategy covered the period 2016 – 2021 and covered the 
themes of: 

 Access to information and accommodation 

 Early intervention and prevention 

 Targeted support to those most in need. 
The strategy was also backed up by an annual action plan. 
 
There had been an increase in the number of households being 
presented as homeless which reflected the national and local 
situation.  There had also been a corresponding increase in the 
number of households  which required temporary 
accommodation.  There were a number of policy changes that 
were likely to have an impact on the number of households 
approaching Homelessness Services and the costs of services.  
The policies included: 

 Changes to homeless legislation – Homelessness 
Reduction Act; and 

 Welfare Reform – changes to local housing allowance, 
roll out of Universal Credit, changes to payments for 
people with disabilities and changes to housing benefit. 

 
The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) had been 
approached by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) who requested GMCA pilot a prevention 
duty approach to homelessness.  A bid had been submitted for 
Trailblazer funding for the pilot to be undertaken along with 
additional bids for resources to support work with rough sleepers 
or those at risk of rough sleeping.  Information had been 
provided in respect to support these.   
 
The report outlined achievements to date as well as priorities for 
the coming year. 
 
Issues were outlined which would increase the burden on the 
local authority and included the introduction of the Homeless 
Reduction Act, the additional responsibility and burden placed 
on the local authority; the need for additional resources; the 
effects of welfare reform which included the introduction of 
Universal Credit, benefit caps; local housing allowance cap; 
increased rent arrears, mortgage repossession; asylum seeker 
dispersal and out of area placements. 
 
Housing allocation was being reviewed and a report was being 
presented to Cabinet which sought additional resources to 
address demands on the service.   Members were informed of 
developments working with partners, the lack of decent 
affordable housing, lack of social housing stock being created 
and the need to unlock better accommodation in the private 
sector.  It was also hoped to get something in place to give 
private landlords confidence for tenants in receipt of Universal 
Credit.  The development of a Private Rented Sector Bond 
Scheme was highlighted to the Board. 
 

Page 5



 

Members asked how far reaching the strategy was in terms of 
partners and were informed on how this issue was being 
addressed locally and across Greater Manchester and 
recognition of the issue by the Greater Manchester Mayor.   
 
Members raised the difficulty of those who were homeless and 
the difficulty they faced in getting rented accommodation due to 
up-front costs and the further implications in upcoming changes 
which affected young people.  Members commented on the lack 
of facilities available in Oldham and the need better access and 
better temporary accommodation. Members were informed that 
the additional capacity requested in the Cabinet report would 
look to access resources to tackle such issues. 
 
Members asked how many children were affected.  Members 
commented that priority should be given to families with children 
given the everlasting impact going through this process and the 
effect on their schooling.  Members were informed that families 
with children were prioritised.  Under the allocation scheme work 
was ongoing with registered providers but there was lack of 
available larger housing stock.   A review of the allocation 
scheme had been proposed. 
 
Members commented about the new duty related to applicants 
who refused to cooperate with local housing authorities and 
were informed that none were known. 
 
Members raised the issue of Housing in Multiple Occupation 
(HMOs) and the controversy caused.  Members were informed 
that HMOs had become more prevalent due to residents being 
unable to afford a home on their own.  There had been a stigma 
on the way HMOs had been managed previously.   
 
Members asked if any Trailblazer scheme funding would be 
coming to Oldham.  Members were informed that this had not 
been confirmed yet but the sums would not be huge. 
 
Members asked about the inclusion of the Selective Licensing 
Scheme, increased use in the private sector and look to expand 
the scheme. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The Homelessness Strategy Update and the information 

provided at the meeting be noted. 
2. The activity by the Council to continue to work with 

partners to prevent and addresses homelessness in the 
Borough be supported. 

3. The emerging issues and priorities for the Homelessness 
Action Plan 2018/19 be noted. 

4. The increase of the use of the Selective Licensing 
Scheme be included as a priority for the coming year. 

 

9   GM 2040 TRANSPORT STRATEGY AND SUPPORTING 
SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC GROWTH  

 

Page 6



 

The Board gave consideration to a report which provided an 
update on the Greater Manchester 2040 Transport Strategy and 
the first Delivery Plan which had been adopted in February 
2017.   
 
Transport was crucial in supporting ambitious growth plans set 
out for the next 25 years in the Greater Manchester Strategy 
and the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework.  Major growth 
in employment was predicted which would lead to more trips on 
the transport network.  The Greater Manchester Transport 
Strategy provided a long-term framework for the improvement of 
transport across the city region and accommodated the 
predicted levels of growth.  Predicted growth occurred through 
the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework which identified new 
development locations.  Work was underway to understand the 
transport investment needs which were to be brought forward 
through the GM2040 Delivery Plan.  There were also many 
policies and interventions in the strategy that contributed 
towards the challenge of accommodating growth.  
 
The report detailed progress that had been made since the 
GM2040 Transport Strategy had been published that supported 
sustainable economic growth and included external policy 
developments, both national and regional, as well as 
progressing in the delivery of specific GM2040 transport 
interventions. 
 
There had been two key government policy documents 
published which could affect the GM2040 policies which were 
the Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy and a new 
National Air Quality Action Plan. 
 
Oldham Council was also reviewing the Local Plan which sought 
views from the local community and stakeholders and issues 
included transport and accessibility.  The report also highlighted 
schemes being delivered under the GM Transport Capital 
Programme which included improvements to Yorkshire Street.  
Funding was also being sought under the National Productivity 
Investment Fund competition for two bids in the Oldham Town 
Centre. 
 
The report highlighted the continued development of the case 
for the transfer of local rail stations to GM Control, continued roll 
out of the GM smart ticketing programme, promotion of the 
cycling and walking through infrastructure, training and support, 
delivery of GM Travel Choices and Active Travel Programmes 
and improving sustainable transport to major employment areas. 
 
Members were informed of the rollout of various travel schemes 
and the GM Travel Choices Initiative which included one 
element that assisted job seekers and apprentices with free 
travel for a 28 day period.  Members were also informed of the 
provision of free bus tickets which were purchased at a discount 
and offered through Get Oldham Working and also informed of 
the positive cycle scheme.  It was hoped to increase the number 
of people using the free scheme.   Page 7



 

 
Members sought clarification on the third city crossing and were 
informed that transport strategies were being developed which 
included rapid transit (Metrolink) and further work would need to 
be completed in order for the network to grow.  Models would be 
measured against value for money and benefit cost ratio. 
 
Members sought clarification on the outcome of the NPF bid and 
were informed that an announcement was hoped to be imminent 
and would be in the Autumn Statement.  There was only a two 
year delivery phase. 
 
Members asked if the job seekers travel initiative had been 
advertised.  Members were informed that work was ongoing with 
the Get Oldham Working team and this area of work was being 
concentrated upon. 
 
Members asked for an update on the direct link to Piccadilly and 
were informed that there had been no formal report back yet. 
 
Members raised the issue of the “Get Me There Card” and using 
it on Metrolink.  Members had found it difficult to access and 
raised the issue that certain tickets had to be used within two 
hours, whereas, the First Manchester app was on file until 
activated.  Members were informed that their comments would 
be passed to Transport for Greater Manchester.  Members 
commented on the limited usability of the app. 
 
Members sought clarification on travel cards and who could 
access them.  Members were informed that the cards had first 
been trialled on concessions but TfGM was in the process of 
extending the offer and to make them available through more 
outlets.  Members asked if the information could be made 
available at District Executive meetings.   
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The GM2040 Transport Strategy and Supporting 

Sustainable Economic Growth report and the information 
provided at the meeting be noted. 

2. Further discussion on information for District Executives 
related to transport officers be arranged and an update 
provided through the work programme. 

3. An update on the GM2040 Transport Strategy be 
provided in 12 months’ time. 

 
NOTE:  Councillor Williamson left the meeting during this item. 

10   COMMUNITY FOOD AND GROWING HUBS   

The Board gave consideration to an update on the current 
position in respect of community food and growing hubs across 
Oldham and the potential of the hubs to deliver the ambition of 
‘fair access to healthy food for all’ which included a focus on the 
minimisation of food waste through redistribution and education. 
 

Page 8



 

There had been engagement and consultation with a number of 
elected members and representatives from Growing Oldham, 
including the Feeding Ambition Partnership and Oldham Food 
Network. 
 
The report highlighted the following: 
 

 A workshop had taken place with members of the 
Oldham Food Network and elected members; 

 Points raised around access for all residents and that 
investment in building new and existing community hubs 
could be a more sustainable and co-operative approach; 

 Detailed existing mapping work undertaken to plot the 
increasing number of food and growing hubs across the 
borough; 

 The opportunity of the network approach in delivery of the 
ambition of ‘fair access to healthy food for all’; 

 Get Oldham Growing Public Health Programme; 

 Green Dividend – a co-operative initiative which 
supported 48 projects (with the final round to be 
announced; and 

 Oldham’s Food and Growing Hub Model. 
 
The delivery of ambitions around fair access to food was 
ongoing and specific proposals were under review.   
 
Members were informed on developments of an Oldham model.  
The model would be inclusive with increased access to locally 
grown food.  Also highlighted were food markets, locally grown 
produce for restaurants, the link to cooking skills and 
employment.  Since the community shop had first been 
considered the community food network had been developed, 
successful campaigns had taken place, forums had been 
established, delivery of Get Oldham Growing continued and 
there were new health ambassadors.   
 
Members were supportive of the community food network model 
as it was locally based and focussed and the model should be 
extended.  The food network model also fulfilled the health and 
wellbeing agenda.  The community shop model was costly. 
 
Members were informed that more funding was expected from 
Well North.  The aim was to set up groups, have public health 
initiatives, for the groups to be sustainable, include education for 
healthier eating with one idea being a mobile van.   
 
Members congratulated the excellent work done on the 
Community Food and Growing Hubs.  Members asked if 
initiatives could be taken up in schools and also encourage 
people to grow in their own gardens. 
 
RESOLVED that as the issue of the Community Shop model 
had been considered and explored in consultation with a range 
of partners, and following the engagement and the review of the 
opportunities for Oldham it be agreed that: Page 9



 

 
1. No further work be undertaken related to the Community 

Shop as this was not the most appropriate solution for 
Oldham due in part to limitations on access for all 
residents and the changing capacity, interest and 
ambition in Oldham maturing through the community-led 
Oldham Food Network. 

2. A locally-led model refocussed on the investment in 
building new and existing community food and growing 
hubs as part of a sustainable and co-operative approach 
be taken forward by the Growing Oldham: Feeding 
Ambition Partnership. 

3. Updates from the Growing Oldham: Feeding Ambition 
Partnership be reported back to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

  

11   OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD WORK PROGRAMME   

The Board gave consideration to the latest Overview and 
Scrutiny Work Programme.  Members were asked to consider a 
request that the Regeneration Projects be changed to the 
Oldham Town Centre Master Plan.  This was agreed but 
members requested that an update be included on Princes’ 
Gate. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme be 

noted. 
2. The Regeneration Projects due at the meeting to be held 

on 28th November be changed to Oldham Town Centre 
Master Plan and an update on Princes’ Gate be included. 

12   GENERAL EXCEPTIONS AND URGENT DECISIONS   

The Board gave consideration to a decision authorised under 
Rule 16 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
RESOLVED that the General Exception and Urgency Decision 
related to the Well North Collaboration Agreement be noted. 

13   KEY DECISION DOCUMENT   

The Board gave consideration to the Council’s Key Decision 
Document. 
 
RESOLVED that the Key Decision Document be noted. 
 

14   DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING   

RESOLVED that the date and time of the next Overview and 
Scrutiny Board meeting to be held on Tuesday, 28th November 
2017 at 6.00 p.m. be noted. 
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 8.20 pm 
 

Page 10



 

HEALTH SCRUTINY 
26/09/2017 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor McLaren (Chair)   
Councillors Ames (Substitute) (For items 1-10 only), J Larkin, 
Toor and Williams 
 

 Also in Attendance: 

Dr Shelley Brumbridge Oldham CCG 

Dr Ian Wilkinson Oldham CCG 

Mark Drury Oldham CCG 

Lianne Davies Public Health & Wellbeing Manager 

Cathy Butterworth Assistant Director of People 

Oliver Collins Corporate Policy Development Officer 

Sian Walter-Browne Constitutional Services 
 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Williamson 
and Councillor Goodwin. 
 

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 
 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received.  
 

6   GM HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE PARTNERSHIP MINUTES   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Greater Manchester Health 
and Strategic Partnership Board meetings held on 28th April 
2017 and on 30th June 2017 be noted.  
 

  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health Scrutiny Sub-
Committee meeting held on 4th July 2017 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

7   GM JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY MINUTES   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Greater Manchester Joint 
Health Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 12th July 2017 be 
noted.  
 

8   ACTION LOG   

RESOLVED that the Action Log be noted. 
Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

9   MEETING OVERVIEW   

RESOLVED that the Meeting Overview be noted.  
 

10   A&E PRIMARY CARE STREAMING AND ASSOCIATED 
CHANGES TO URGENT PRIMARY CARE  

 

Members gave consideration to a report and presentation which 
outlined the joint approach between Oldham CCG, Oldham 
Council and partners to developing Primary Care Urgent 
Treatment Services in Oldham. The report outlined the 
approach, the preferred model and included the service 
specification to enable this new service. 
 

The CCG triple aim was to: 
 

1. Improve the health of the people in Oldham 
By Proactive and Preventative work within GP and Health 
& Social Care Clusters  

2. Improve the care they receive and their experience of 
it 
By simplifying and enhancing access to Primary Care 
through a Single Point of Access for H&S Care   

3. Deliver the best value for money by using our 
resources effectively 
By reducing duplication by sharing information 
With patients being seen By the Right Person, in the 
Right Place at the Right Time – Every Time 

 
The vision for primary care led urgent care in Oldham was: 

 A single point of entry at a local GP surgery – patients no 
longer have to ‘self-triage’ to decide whether to go to their 
GP, A&E or a walk in service.  

 More patients receiving health and social care in their 
local community setting. 

 Extended access to a broad range of health and social 
care professionals, 7 days per week. 

 Single care plans with shared medical records shared 
between GPs, other health and social care professionals 
and hospital clinicians. 

 A&E clinicians focusing on the critically ill patients who 
need their care. 

 Patients receiving the right care, in the right place, at the 
right time – every time. 

 
Oldham was facing increasing levels of Accident and 
Emergency (A&E) attendances and increasing non elective 
(emergency) admissions. This presented rising pressures in the 
system through A&E, GP practices, acute and community 
services that were unsustainable.   
 
The Primary Care Urgent Treatment Service would be made up 
of: 

 Urgent Treatment Service Primary Care Cluster Hubs 
(UTS Cluster Hubs) – urgent care appointments would be Page 12



 

bookable with a patients locality GP cluster hub and 
patients would receive appropriate care, health advice or 
signposting.  

 Urgent Treatment Service A&E Front End Primary Care 
Streaming (including flow management between 
services) – this GP led service assessed and treated 
clinically appropriate patients at Oldham hospital A&E 
reducing the pressures on A&E.  

 Ambulatory Care Unit – this enabled access to 
diagnosis, observation, treatment and rehabilitation with 
referral links to key health and social acre partner 
services. 

 
The CCG had run a pilot of a primary care service supporting 
the ‘streaming’ of patients from A&E since November 2016. This 
service development had helped to inform the shape of urgent 
primary care for Oldham. 
 
Oldham CCG had entered into a pre-consultation exercise on 
the proposed changes to urgent primary care provision. Findings 
from the Citizens Jury were for the most part in line with the 
proposed model. Consultation options were being developed 
and full consultation was scheduled to commence in October. 
 
It was recognised that this was a positive change to the 
provision of urgent care services and there was a duty and 
responsibility to inform the public in Oldham. Consultation 
materials were being designed under the banner Right Care, 
Right Time, Right Place using characters to walk the public 
through the issues and proposals. 
  
A service specification had been drafted in line with the NHS 
England National Urgent Care Treatment Centre Principles and 
Standards, and more broadly the Next Steps on the Five Year 
Forward View. 
 
Relationship with the Oldham Locality Plan: 
 
The UTS linked with the Oldham Locality Plan as it: 

 Supported people to be more in control of their lives – 
patients had a single point of access to urgent care 
services in their locality. 

 Contributed towards a health and social care system 
that was geared towards wellbeing and the 
prevention of ill health – patients were provided with 
healthcare information and advice as well as treatment. It 
was anticipated that many patients would be advised and 
offered preventive healthcare advice at first point of 
contact. 

 Provided access to health services at home and in the 
community – patients’ first point of contact would be 
their local Cluster Hub. 

 Provided social care that worked with health and 
voluntary services to support people to look after 
themselves and each other – the UTS would link Page 13



 

seamlessly with social care services with the ability to 
make direct referrals. 
 

Members asked for and received clarification on areas of the 
proposed model including quality of healthcare advice, funding, 
targets, and communications. 
 
Resolved that:  
 

1. The contents of the report be noted. 
2. The proposed changes to Urgent Primary Care in 

Oldham be supported. 
3. That an update be provided to the meeting of the Sub-

Committee on 20th March 2018. 
 

11   TOBACCO CONTROL POLICY   

Consideration was given to a report which set out the Council’s 
current position on the tobacco control agenda and public 
health’s proposed changes to the Council’s smoking policy. 
 
On 14th March 2017 the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) had 
agreed the outcomes and actions for Oldham’s Tobacco Control 
Plan. These were: 

 Outcome 1: Reduce the number of tobacco users in 
Oldham 

 Outcome 2: Reduce exposure to second-hand smoke 
(focusing on children and young people) 

 Outcome 3: Reduce tobacco related health inequalities 
 

The HWB had also agreed to: 

 Address tobacco control through strong partnership 
working on a borough wide scale - because smoking isn’t 
the responsibility of any single service or organisation 
within Oldham. 

 Monitor the progression of the Tobacco Control Action 
Plan 

 Secure senior buy-in from elected members, clinical 
commissioning groups, primary care colleagues and 
partners who we ask to also act as advocates  

 Commit to participating in the CLeaR process detailed in 
Appendix 1 

 

Three key actions from the plan were identified as priorities to lay 

the foundation of the overall plan and achieve the outcomes: 

 Complete the first phase of the CLeaR process.  

 Reduce the number of women who smoke during 
pregnancy 

 Review the Council’s smoking policy 

 
Members asked for and received further information on the 
proposals including expansion to other Council sites and the 
timescale for implementation. 
 Page 14



 

Resolved that:-  
 

1. The current tobacco control position in Oldham and the 
proposed changes to the Council’s smoking policy be 
noted. 

2. It was noted that the proposals did not require additional 
financial investment at this stage, there may be some 
small costs which have been identified in the 2017/18 
public health budget, and the policy should contribute to 
longer-term Council savings in terms of reduced sickness 
absence and reduced smoking breaks. 

3. It was noted that commitment would be sought from the 
Council, its Leaders and senior managers to act as role 
models to all staff partners and local businesses.  

4. An update would be brought to the meeting of the Sub-
Committee on 19th December 2017. 

 

12   FIT FOR OLDHAM EVALUATION   

The Sub-Committee gave consideration to a report and 
presentation which summarised the Fit for Oldham Programme, 
Oldham’s employee health and wellbeing programme, and 
focused on the following areas: 

 Background and Shaping of the Programme 

 Vision and Objectives 

 Progress/achievements to date including the 
benefits/value add 

 Early evaluation and impact findings 

 Plans and next steps for 2017/18 
 
Members asked for and received clarification on issues including 
what Councillors could do to support theprogramme and what 
they could receive from it.   
 
Resolved that:- 
 

1. The plan and next steps for the rest of 2017/18 be 
noted 

2. The Sub-Committee supported the priority 
commitment to mental health and eradicating the 
stigma associated with mental ill health throughout 
2017/18. 

3. An update be included on the Work Programme, for a 
date to be arranged. 

 

13   MAYOR'S HEALTHY LIVING CAMPAIGN   

Consideration was given to a report of the Corporate Policy 
Development Officer on the Mayor’s Healthy Living Campaign.  
 
At the last meeting, it had been agreed that a meeting was to be 
set up between the Mayor and the officers leading the Latent TB 
pilot at the Sun Valley Medical Practice in Glodwick. Members 
were informed there was a delay in the pilot commencing and, 
as soon as it starts, the Mayor would be invited to see what the 
practice was doing to tackle cases of Latent TB in the borough Page 15



 

 
RESOLVED that the report on the Mayor’s Healthy Living 
Campaign 2017/18 be noted.  
 

14   COUNCIL MOTIONS   

The Sub-Committee gave consideration to a report which 
outlined the motions which had been agreed at Full Councils 
held since the last Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee meeting.   
 
On 12th July the Council agreed that it remained committed to 
opposing domestic violence in all its forms and that it was totally 
unreasonable to expect victims of domestic violence to pay a fee 
to provide evidence of abuse when seeking legal aid. 
 
Also on 12th July, the Council agreed that, as a contribution 
towards a further reduction in road deaths, the drink drive limit 
should be reduced across England, Wales and Northern Ireland 
to 50mg per 100ml of blood to bring it into line with Scotland. 
 
On 13th September, the Council welcomed the Air Quality Plan 
for nitrogen dioxide and set out action that needed to be taken at 
a local, Greater Manchester and national levels to increase the 
rate of progress and keep levels to the legal limit in the future. 
 
Also on 13th September, the Council noted concerns regarding 
the proposed changes to Adult Congenital Heart Disease 
(ACHD) treatment in Greater Manchester and, in particular, the 
location of future services outside the North West region. 
 
Members received updates on the Domestic Violence Motion 
and the Drink-Drive Limit Motion. Members were informed that 
an update on the Air Quality Plan and care for those with ACHD 
would be brought to the next meeting. 
 
Members also received an update in relation to the previously 
discussed Council motion on Dementia. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The report on Council Motions be noted. 
2. The Sub-Committee requested updates on the Air Quality 

Plan and care for those with ACHD be presented to the 
next meeting. 

 

15   HEALTH SCRUTINY FORWARD PLAN   

RESOLVED that the Health Scrutiny Forward Plan for 2017/18 
be noted.  
 
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 8.32 pm 
 

Page 16



 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
 
To provide an update to the Overview and Scrutiny Board on the LA Policies for Academy 
Conversions and Free Schools. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Report to OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 
Academy Conversions and Free Schools 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Amanda Chadderton, Cabinet Member for Education 
 
Officer Contact:  Helen Lockwood, Executive Director 
 
Report Author: Andy Collinge, Head of School Support Services 
Ext. 4239 
 
6 November 2017 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 

   

Overview and Scrutiny Board      28th November 2017  
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 In 2016 the Local Authority introduced two policies, the Academy Conversion Policy and 

the Free Schools Policy.  These policies were developed in order that the Local Authority 
could formally specify its preferred requirements with regard to Academy and Free School 
sponsors and also to inform sponsors of the approach that would be taken by the Local 
Authority with regard to the conversion process including the transfer of staff, pension 
pooling and lease arrangements for land. 

 
2 Current Position 
 
2.1 These policies have been used as a guidance document for a number of conversions, 

namely, Failsworth Secondary School, St Annes Lydgate Primary School, Mayfield 
Primary School and Watersheddings Primary School. 

 
3 Key Issues for Overview and Scrutiny to Discuss 
 
3.1 In the light of the closure of the Collective Spirit Free School and the GM (UTC) School it 

is proposed that the policies are reviewed and possibly combined into one policy subject 
to Cabinet approval. 

 
4 Key Questions for Overview and Scrutiny to Consider 
 
4.1 Comments are invited from the O and S Board regarding the proposed review of the 

policies. 
 
5. Links to Corporate Outcomes 
 
5.1 The provision of good and outstanding schools is a key goal of the Education and Skills 

Commission and these policies are central to securing proven education providers in the 
borough. 

 
6 Consultation 
 
6.1 A review of current policy will include a consultation plan with all stakeholders. 
 
7 Appendices  
 
7.1 N/A 

 

Page 18



 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
The Board is asked to receive an update on two key Strategic Regeneration programmes: 
 

 Oldham Town Centre Masterplan 

 Prince’s Gate 
 
 
Recommendations 
The Board is asked to note the updates provided in the presentation. 
 
 

Report to OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 
Strategic Regeneration: Oldham Town 
Centre Masterplan and Prince’s Gate 
update 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Cllr J Stretton – Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Economy & Enterprise 
 
Officer Contact:  Tom Stannard, Director Economy & Skills 
 
Report Author: Roger Frith,  Head of Strategic Regeneration & 
Development 
Ext. 4120 
 
28th November 2017 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
Executive Summary 
This reports looks at how the Council can optimize business engagement and provide a 
competitive business support offer to maximize business growth and investment in the 
Borough that will help the Council: 

 Maximize Business Rates income. 

 Support the successful implantation of the local and GM SIF’s by creating additional 
demand for commercial property. 

 Support the successful implementation of Oldham’s Work and Skills Strategy by 
creating a supply of new jobs and work related opportunities. 

 Create conditions to support the Councils co-operative approach to inclusive 
growth. 

 Close the gap between the economic performance of Oldham and the GM average. 

 Raise the profile of the Borough by putting Oldham on the map as a place invest 
and do business. 

 
Recommendations 
The recommendation is to approve option 3 in the attached report.  The total additional 
costs of this proposal is £280,000.  This comprises a provision for a one-off capital 
allocation of £100,000 and the balance of revenue costs, relating largely to one-off 
investments to improve business engagement and create a competitive business support 
offer are manageable within departmental reserves.  Any staffing and capacity 
improvements required in the report are manageable within existing resources and will be 
addressed in the current staffing review in the Economy and Skills division. 
 

Report to CABINET 

 
Business Growth and Investment Review 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Jean Stretton, Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Enterprise 
 
Officer Contact:  Tom Stannard, Director of Economy and Skills 
 
Report Author: Louise Slater, Principal Investment Officer 
Ext. 1671 
 
18 December 2017 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



 

   

 
Cabinet 18th December 2017 
 
Business Growth and Investment Review 
 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 The aim of this report is to set out how to maximise business development, growth and 

investment in Oldham working in partnership using a targeted and shared business 
engagement approach to maximise Business Rates gain, increase the competitiveness of, 
and support the inclusive growth of the Borough.  This will be done by looking at current 
and preferred ways of internal and external working and using this to highlight gaps in 
business engagement and the business support offer in Oldham that need to be addressed 
to achieve the above.  This in turn will help identify a series of priorities and interventions 
needed to achieve the above and will set out specific action plan.  The action plan will be 
used to highlight a range of options and a recommended way forward.    

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 Amion were commissioned in September 2016 to undertake a business and investment 

review that would set out a shared approach to business engagement to maximize 
business, development, growth and investment in the Borough.  This approach is required 
to create the environment necessary for inclusive growth where businesses are engaged 
and supported to reach their maximum potential, thus, creating a strong and productive 
local economy that contributes significantly to the growth of the city-region and creates 
opportunities for both local residents and communities. 

 
2.2 As part of the commission, Amion were asked to focus on a number of key outcomes that 

would produce a shared and proactive SMART review to guide future business and 
investment activities and ensure that the Borough punches its weight locally and within 
Greater Manchester.  These included:  

 Establishing key priorities and actions to assist business growth and investment in 
the Borough aligned to Oldham’s people and place strategies.  

 Supporting the development of a seamless and shared approach to business 
engagement, growth and investment in the borough – with a clear business offer 
and menu of provision.  

 Developing a more pro-active approach to targeting potential growth companies and 
sectors that will deliver high value added jobs and/or entry level employment 
opportunities for local residents. 

 Providing an evidenced based framework to be used to guide future business and 
investment activities within the borough. 

 Supporting the strategic positioning of Oldham within the GM City Region – to 
ensure greater leverage of support services from the central growth hub.   

 
2.3 The review was carried out in-line with the local and Greater Manchester policy context.  It 

was also developed within the context of the Oldham Strategic Investment Framework 
(SIF) which sets out Oldham’s economic and investment ambitions through a range of 
economic priorities identified under the three themes of people, business and place.  The 
SIF stresses the importance of 6 key sectors due to their ability to drive future jobs and 
economic growth as well as increased productivity.  The 6 key sectors are: manufacturing, 
logistics, construction, health and social care, retail, leisure and hospitality and 
professional, financial and digital services.   The Business Growth and Investment Review 
will deliver the business theme of the SIF and will focus on an approach that targets the 6 
key sectors and growth businesses for maximum economic impact.   

 

Page 22



 

   

2.4 Public and private sector consultation played a key part in the development of the review 
with a number of businesses from a range of sectors, partners and stakeholders being 
interviewed as part of the process.  In addition to this, extensive research was carried out 
as part of the review that enabled the consultants to understand the performance of the 
local economy, business base and recent performance of Oldham and GM businesses.   

 
2.5 Key characteristics around the performance of the local economy include: 

 Oldham’s economy has continued to restructure with the largest growth in the 

health, business services sectors (linked to servicing increased growth in 

employment agencies and increased management consultancy activities) and 

transport and warehousing. 

 Health is Oldham’s largest sector; employing 16.5% of the entire workforce has 

seen a 20% increase (2009 - 2015) but this is starting to slow down. 

 Employment growth is forecast at 4.2% over the next 20 years. 

 The public sector retrenchment has been a challenge and the local labour market is 

responding with growth of private sector jobs. 

 Relatively strong recent growth in employment but driven by part-time jobs and 
public sector employment.  

 Under-representation in higher value sectors (e.g. financial services) but strong 
performance in high technology related to manufacturing. 

 Enterprise gap – increased at half rate of GM, business density and new start-ups 
lag behind many parts of City Region 

 Oldham's economy generated £3.4 Billion during 2015, providing around 6% of the 
total GVA generated within GM. GVA per head in Oldham is the third lowest within 
the region. Productivity in Oldham needs to be a focus for the next phase to include 
the outcomes of the local development framework 

 The GM economy has become an economy of two halves, creating a micro-scale 
north/south divide and forecasts suggest the gap will continue to widen. 

 Underlining this is a lack of local competitiveness. The UK Competitiveness Index 

showed that Oldham ranked 367th out of 379 local authorities nationwide.  

 

2.6 Key characteristics of the Oldham business baseline and findings from the GM Business  
Survey include:    

 6,240 active enterprises in the Borough (increase of 1,000 since 2013) employing 

81,000 people (increase of 4,000 new jobs since 2013). 

 Most businesses are small to medium enterprises (SMEs) but there are lower 

proportions of microbusinesses (<9 employees) than across GM.   

 Business growth rates behind the average for GM. 

 Business survival rates in Oldham in-line with GM but lower than the national 
average.   

 A business base of predominantly micro/small enterprises - 74.5% compared with 
76.4% in GM and 77.7% nationally. 

 Strong business confidence in GM but less so in Oldham.  

 Key growth sectors of health and social care, creative and digital, business and 
professional services.  

 Key drivers of growth are products and services and workforce and skills.  

 Main barriers to growth are lack of staff or skills, access to markets/sales 
opportunities, access to finance.  

 20% of businesses export which is comparable to the national average.  

 Business support – awareness of the growth hub is approx. 45%.   

 Oldham businesses are satisfied with the local area, in particular, with affordability 
of premises, access to public transport and road transport access. 

 

Page 23



 

   

2.7 The detailed findings of the Amion review did show that Oldham is making progress due to 
employment growth, a hi-tech manufacturing base as well as representation in key 
employment sectors (health, education, construction, retail, logistics and property).  
However, due to an under-representation in higher value service sectors such as finance 
and insurance and a continued enterprise gap, forecasts suggest that without intervention 
Oldham’s relative contribution to the GM economy is expected to decline. 

 
2.8 Further analysis of the Oldham business baseline, GM Business Survey and characteristics 

of high performing businesses enabled Amion to identify the activities required to improve 
the growth of businesses in Oldham.  These include: 

 The need for sector specific targeting. 

 Support to help businesses invest in products and services, innovative activities and 
skills and workforce development. 

 A greater understanding of the Oldham business base to target potential growth 
companies, including smaller businesses and business that are relatively new to 
facilitate growth and enhance survival rates. 

 Promoting greater awareness and access to the full range of business support 
available in Oldham. 

 Increasing trade and exporting particularly following the Brexit result. 

 Encouraging innovation. 

 Access to management and leadership development programme of support. 
 
2.9 These findings have been used to form the basis of this report and to improve our 

understanding of how the local economy and business base performs.  Also, how, with 
intervention in the form of the above activities businesses can help support the growth of 
the local economy and turn around the forecast declining contribution that Oldham is 
expected to make to the GM economy. 

 
3 Current Position 
 
3.1   The Oldham Offer 
 
3.1.1 Oldham has a wide business support offer from a range of organisations as outlined in the 

table in appendix 1 and below: 

 Business advice, information and support – this includes general business advice, 
start-up, growth and sector specific support.  There are a range of organisations that 
provide this support including the library service at Oldham Council, Oldham 
Enterprise Trust, Business Growth Hub and membership organisations such as the 
GM Chamber, EEF and FSB.  This support is provided free of charge to all 
businesses in Oldham by the non-membership organisations. 

 Regulatory advice and support – Oldham Council provides a range of support on 
regulatory support through the Better Business for All programme to help business 
achieve compliance across a range of services including public protection and 
licencing. 

 Planning support – planning support is available from the Council free of charge via 
drop-in sessions at the Civic Centre or on a one-to-one basis for larger or more 
strategic planning applications. 

 Access to finance – finance is available to all businesses in Oldham via the Oldham 
Enterprise Fund financed by the Stoller Charitable Trust and Business Finance 
Solutions.  This fund provides grants to young entrepreneurs aged 25 or below or 
loans to businesses and those aged 25 plus with approx. £4m ring-fenced for spend 
in Oldham.  Commercial and non-traditional sources of finance can also be 
accessed via the Access to Finance team at the Business Growth Hub.  
Additionally, small grants are available from Oldham Council to businesses in 
specific areas in the Independent Quarter in Oldham town centre as well as in the 
centres of Shaw and Lees and along the A62 corridor in Failsworth.  

Page 24



 

   

 Inward and indigenous investment – this includes allocation of an account manager, 
premises and sites search, links to wider business support, skills and workforce and 
networking offer. 

 Business rates relief – In addition to the legislative requirement to offer mandatory 
rate relief and small business rate relief to qualifying organisations, the Council has 
a discretionary rate relief policy.  This allows the Council to consider applications for 
time limited business rates relief where investment is going to result in significant 
economic benefit to the borough, if buildings are either partially or fully unoccupied, 
in the event of hardship or to top up mandatory awards. 

 Networks and events – there are a range of business networks and events in the 
Borough facilitated by both the public and private sectors including the Oldham 
Business Awards, Oldham Festival for Business, Business Growth Hub Lunches 
and events, Action 4 Business, Oldham 100, #oldhamhour. 

 Skills and workforce development – a wide range of support is available from the 
Get Oldham Working Team, Business Growth Hub, Oldham College other providers 
that provide support from recruitment to apprenticeship support, career 
advancement through to leadership development.  However, this is against a 
background of changing provision largely due to an 80% reduction in the Welfare to 
Work programme that will see sector specialism’s being developed across GM. 

 Premises and infrastructure – Oldham provides a great business location due to its 
value for money premises, connectivity, close proximity to Manchester city centre 
and airport and recent investments in Oldham town centre such as the Odeon and 
the Independent Quarter.  For businesses looking to find a site or premises in 
Oldham, bespoke property searches can be carried out and subsequent links made 
with business support services. 

 Hack Oldham and Wayra Open Future North – Hack Oldham is a maker space 
available to businesses as a co-working space or as a place to try and develop new 
products and processes.  Hack Oldham is co-located with Wayra Open Future 
North, a digital accelerator that provides not only space for new digital businesses 
but also valuable investment to grow the businesses and support.   

 Property lease incentives – to support new and growing businesses the Council has 
the discretion to offer property/lease incentives, in-kind, on properties that it owns.  
This is often linked to economic benefit and growth potential.  Examples of 
businesses supported include Energi Mine Ltd at Metropolitan Place, Oldham and 
Vanguard at the former Lees Rd Depot.    

 
3.1.2 The Councils Tractivity database shows that approx. 200 businesses contact the Strategic 

Investment Team per month to access the support listed above.  The majority of enquiries, 
approx. 40%, are property related with businesses looking for new premises to help them 
grow and expand.  Approximately, 28% are for general growth support including 
employment, 17% of enquiries are for finance, 10% are new business start-ups, and 5% 
are classed as other which can be largely daily operational issues. 

 
3.2 Current ways of working 
 
3.2.1 There are currently a number of business facing teams within Oldham Council but the 

provision and co-ordination of support to assist the establishment, growth and attraction of 
businesses to the area is provided by the Strategic Investment Team.   

 
 There are also a number of other internal teams that work with businesses.  These include:   

 Get Oldham Working 

 Oldham Enterprise Trust 

 Business Rates  

 Licensing  

 Building Control  

 Planning  

Page 25



 

   

 Town Centre and Markets  

 Property management – delivered by Unity Partnership  

 Libraries  

 Public Protection  
 

3.2.2 There is a close working relationship between the Strategic Investment, Oldham Enterprise 
Trust and Get Oldham Working Teams.  Business intelligence is shared via regular internal 
meetings, there are many cross referrals and joint promotion of the Oldham offer.  
However, there is a need for greater internal co-ordination of business engagement and 
support activities with other Council facing business teams and external partners including:.   

 Business Growth Hub (BGH). 

 Midas. 

 Business Finance Solutions. 

 GM Chamber. 

 Oldham College. 

 EEF. 

 Federation of Small Businesses. 
 

3.3 Take-up of the Oldham offer 
 
3.3.1 Current take-up of the Oldham offer could be significantly improved.  As a co-operative 

council we need to help businesses access the support on offer, not only to help them grow 
and prosper, but, to enable them to grow and create economic opportunity for the borough, 
stimulate additional Business Rates revenue and support our ambitions for inclusive 
growth.  A large part of the Oldham offer is provided through a GM ERDF business support 
programme that is match funded by Oldham Council and delivered by the Business Growth 
Hub.  This support provides free support to Oldham businesses to help them start-up and 
grow.  It comprises of business advice, guidance and planning, access to finance, sector 
specific support, mentoring and workforce development programmes. Two year investment 
in this programme from 2016-2018 represents an investment so far of:  

 Oldham Council  £190,000 

 GM ERDF  £175,000 

 Total   £365,000 
 
 3.3.2 To maximise our return on this investment we need to ensure that businesses in Oldham 

are aware of, and access the free support that is available to them.  Current ways of 
working anticipate that Oldham businesses will access 6% of the business support on offer 
in Greater Manchester.  This is based on a number of Council business facing teams and 
partners working in isolation and not sharing business intelligence and referrals.  However, 
we want to improve on this. 

 
3.3.3 It is estimated that a more co-ordinated internal and external approach to communicate the 

Oldham offer to new and existing businesses would provide a major opportunity to increase 
take-up to 10%.  However, with additional resources to staff this approach and ensure that 
the offer is competitive and comparable to our neighbours and greater Manchester, take up 
could be increased to 16%.   

 
3.3.4 An increase in take up would result in the following outcomes for Oldham: 
 

Business support Businesses 
assisted 

New jobs created 

6% 274 256 

10% 402 380 

16% 593 566 

 
 

Page 26



 

   

4    Improvements needed to maximise take-up of the Oldham offer 
 
4.1 To maximise business development, growth and investment in Oldham to boost NNDR 

gain, increase the competitiveness of, and support the inclusive growth of the Borough, the 
Oldham business support and engagement model must be improved.  The model should 
be based on proactive approach that includes. 

 A greater use of business intelligence to thoroughly understand the requirements and 
issues faced by the existing Oldham business base and inward moving businesses. 

 An Oldham account management system to provide an on-going relationship with the 
Boroughs key strategic businesses. 

 A more effective and simpler referral process to help businesses access the system 
and to ensure that each referral is dealt with effectively. 

 Identifying and targeting growth companies and sectors to ensure that the sectors 
and companies that are going to have the greatest impact on the growth of the 
borough are engaged and supported via the Oldham offer. 

 Data sharing amongst partners and business facing teams to avoid duplication, 
confusion and improve ways of working. 

 
4.2 The preferred model would see the Strategic Investment Team playing a key role to ensure 

that effective business support is provided to support businesses and the creation of wealth 
and jobs within the borough.  To achieve this, the team will develop and build on existing 
relationships with both internal council teams and external partner agencies as shown in 
the figure 1 below. The delivery of business support will also run alongside activities being 
delivered through the ‘People’ and ‘Place’ interventions outlined in the SIF. 

  
Figure 1 – preferred ways of working 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
4.3 Using this as a basis for the model, it is also important to ensure that there is a simple and 

effective engagement process, a competitive offer and effective marketing and PR. 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

   

4.4      Simple and effective engagement process  
 
4.4.1 Whilst it is important that Oldham moves towards a more proactive way of business 

engagement it must also be recognised that businesses will still make contact with the 
Council and other support agencies.  It is important that this process is simple and straight 
forward.  The ideal scenario would be one point of entry for all Oldham enquiries that are 
then logged on a shared system, allocated to the relevant lead/organisation, shared for 
information and potential cross-working, actioned and  monitored for outputs/outcomes and 
PR opportunities.  Or via a physical business hub that businesses could drop-in to and 
receive the support they need there and then. 

 
4.4.2 The proactive approach would work in a similar, albeit, more targeted way through an 

account management system and key sector networks.  Already a lot of work has been 
done to understand which businesses should be account managed but more work is 
needed to understand how to connect to and support the 6 key sectors.  Private sector 
champions from the Economy and Skills Partnership are currently leading on this activity to 
get a more detailed understanding of the key sectors, the issues and challenges they face 
and how to best engage with them.  However, there is a need for this activity to be centrally 
coordinated and supported.   

 
4.4.3 The Strategic Investment Team could take the leading role in co-ordinating this activity but 

it would also require the engagement responsibility to be shared between a range of 
Council officers, departments and partners.  Working in this way would encourage more 
businesses and investors to get in contact to find out about the Oldham offer.  Equally, it 
would also facilitate the engagement of a greater number of key sector and growth 
businesses necessary for the growth of the Borough and potentially increase take-up of the 
business support offer.  

 
4.5       Competitive business support offer 
 
4.5.1 In order to target business formation, development and investment in growth businesses 

and key sectors an area must have a competitive business support offer that is well 
communicated, easy to access and matches business needs.  A competitive offer should 
comprise of the right mix of business advice and guidance, support programmes, access to 
finance, premises, people and networks offer linked to business need.  To support the 
Boroughs position in GM and to reverse the forecast widening disparities, Oldham’s offer 
must as least equal that of other locations in GM if not exceed it.  As can be seen from 
section 3.1 Oldham has a strong business support offer but there are parts of the offer that 
need to be improved for the Borough to remain competitive as a business location. 

 
4.5.2 Parts of the Oldham offer that need to be improved include: 

 Sites and premises necessary for a mixed economy linked to the start-up and growth of 
the 6 key sectors and the economic priorities identified in the SIF. 

 Improved access to finance to provide grants and investment finance for growing 
businesses. 

 Effective marketing collateral and co-ordinated campaigns supported by a refreshed on-
line presence to promote the Borough as a place to do business and simplify access to 
the Oldham offer. 

 A shared and co-ordinated Oldham business management account system that 
provides businesses with a nominated point of contact and a seamless service across 
the Oldham offer. 

 A targeted inward investment offer that links into a sector approach and is aligned to 
the Oldham account management system to help investors with their needs before and 
after moving to the Borough. 

 A shared business networks and events calendar. 

 Access to skilled labour and training provision. 

Page 28



 

   

4.6 Premises 
 
4.6.1 For the Borough to support business formation and growth and to increase NNDR income, 

it needs to have the right premises offer particularly linked to the needs of the 6 key growth 
sectors.  The Borough has a wide ranging premises offer from modern high spec office 
space and commercial/manufacturing facilities on Broadway and Greengate and at 
business centres such as Hollinwood, Chambers and Saddleworth through to much older 
properties that tend to be constrained due to their location and state of repair.  However, 
there is still a lack of supply particularly for high spec offices in Oldham town centre and 
close to public transport nodes and for quality manufacturing space.  There are recent 
examples of enquiries for premises that have not been met for both office and 
manufacturing space where businesses chose other locations due to their premises offer.   
To compete, the Borough needs to ensure a supply of quality accommodation linked to the 
work of the Oldham and GM SIF and develop area based regeneration programmes similar 
to that in Oldham town centre that can improve existing stock.   

 
4.6.2 The table below provides an indication of the amount of business floor space currently 

available for businesses in Oldham and how this has grown (e.g. the office and retail stock) 
and contracted (e.g. the industrial stock) over the last ten years.  However, it does not 
measure the quality of the offer.   

Business floorspace in Oldham (000's sq m) 

 

2006-

07 

2007-

08 

2008-

09 

2009-

10 

2010-

11 

2011-

12 

2012-

13 

2013-

14 

2014-

15 

2015-

16 

Office 170 174 180 179 187 183 185 188 188 189 

Industrial 2,723 2,623 2,485 2,408 2,297 2,281 2,278 2,259 2,245 2,250 

Retail 366 380 383 401 397 402 404 403 407 409 

Source: NDR Business Floorspace, Valuation Office Agency (2016) 

 
4.6.3 In line with Oldham’s land assessment study, SHELAA, a more detailed audit of the overall 

business stock is currently required to understand the scale, quality and availability of sites 
and premises across the borough. This should also seek to identify the key issues leading 
to the under-performance of some centres such as the Falcon Business Centre and the 
characteristics of the better performing, privately operated centres (e.g. the Chambers 
Business Centre) so that lessons and best practice can be transferred.   
 

4.6.4 In addition to overseeing the provision of business stock, Oldham Council also leads on 
regeneration and the strategic development of key sites within the area – for example, 
Oldham town, Hollinwood and Foxdenton as well as the proposed Northern Gateway sites.    
These schemes are of strategic significance and will contribute to ensuring that the 
provision of commercial premises within Oldham supports the long term economic growth 
aspirations for the borough. Demand and occupation of these sites will be achieved 
through effective co-ordination and engagement of the indigenous business base, 
entrepreneurs, potential new inward investors and key stakeholders (including MIDAS, the 
Business Growth Hub, and Employment and Skills agencies).  

 
4.6.5 The table below, identifies the potential benefits that could be realised through the 

development of the schemes identified above.  These include new employment floor space, 
additional business rates income for the borough of some £4.5m and new operational jobs 
in excess of 4,000.  However, it may take many years to generate this income and does not 
take account of any investment in infrastructure that may be required and will therefore be 

Page 29



 

   

offset against this potential gain.  In addition, given the uncertainty around the future of the 
Business Rates regime, it is unclear if the Council would retain 49% or 99% of this income 
or some element of growth over the current Business Rates Taxbase. 
  
Projected benefits from the development of the key strategic sites in Oldham  

Site  New Employment 
Floorspace  (GIA sq m)  

Additional Business 
Rates per annum 
(£’000) 

Potential new 
operational jobs  

Oldham town centre  50,000 £2,240 1,320 

Hollinwood  25,000 £600 760 

Foxdenton  65,000 £1,650 2,100 

Total  140,000 4,490 4,180 

 

4.6.6 Initial master-planning for Northern Gateway strategic sites around Junctions 20 and 21 of 
the M62 motorway, have identified potential capacity for almost 800,000 sq m of 
commercial floorspace, alongside new housing., The Council is working with partners to 
refine the proposals and while the level of commercial provision within this area is expected 
to reduce over the plan period, activity would nevertheless be expected to generate 
significant business rates income over the medium to long term.  Again it is unclear what 
the net impact would be on Council finances. 
 

4.7 Finance 
 
4.7.1 Businesses in Oldham have a wide range of financial support that they can access thanks 

to the Oldham Enterprise Fund, a series of small localised grants as well as a range of 
other products available at GM level.  However, there are gaps in provision of grants across 
the Borough.  Grants from the Council are limited to specific areas in Oldham town centre, 
Shaw, Failsworth and Lees.  Grants from Oldham Enterprise Fund are limited to those 
creating a new business and are under the age of 25 and national and GM grants tend only 
to be restricted to SME’s.  To provide a more flexible approach, support medium sized and 
larger businesses that employ over 100 people and have a turnover in excess of £2m pa, 
those in key sectors and to remain competitive with neighbouring Borough’s the creation of 
a capital grant scheme should be considered.  Such grant schemes can be designed to be 
discretionary dependent on economic impact or can be linked to area regeneration 
programmes or key sectors and can be a key influencing factor for a business to grow or 
invest in an area.   

.   
4.7.2 A borough wide pilot grant scheme could be developed that could be used to help 

businesses with relocation, property and capital equipment costs.  This would require an 
investment of £100,000 (there are currently sufficient funds yet to be allocated within the 
capital programme to allow this project to be supported in 2017/18 or future years) but 
would see a return of at least 5 key businesses assisted, 50 jobs created and £400,000 of 
private sector investment in the Borough.  This is based on a maximum grant of £20,000 at 
a maximum intervention rate of 20% subject to job creation targets as defined by state aid 
rules.  The usual expectations for submission of a compelling business case would be 
applied. 

 
4.7.3 Such a grant programme would allow Oldham to compete with Rochdale who currently 

offer a similar scheme to businesses that are looking to grow or relocate into the Borough. 
 
4.7.4 The Council also has the ability to grant relief from business rates on a discretionary basis.  

Therefore, the Fund could also be used to provide business rates relief to businesses to 
stimulate investment.  The level of discretionary relief awarded has not exceeded £300-
£400k per annum, depending on the level of applications. While offering significant 

Page 30



 

   

potential, arrangements for the collection and retention of business rates by Oldham 
Council are currently subject to change associated with: 

 local government finance pilot – Oldham is piloting changes to the local government 
finance arrangements where the Council will retain 99% of its  business rates 
income  The Council is separately included in a Business Rates pooling 
arrangements with other Greater Manchester and Cheshire Councils.    Under the 
Local Government Finance regimes prevailing in Oldham prior to 1 April 2017, the 
Council retained 49% of its Business Rates, under the current pilot programme the 
full retention of rates replaces the income previously received from Revenue 
Support Grant (RSG) and Public Health Grant. Whilst the pilot continues, the “no 
detriment” rule is in place meaning that the Council is no worse off than it would 
have been without the 100% Business Rates retention pilot.  Although there is still a 
lack of clarity around the implementation of the revised Local Government Finance 
regime, the new arrangements could result in significant risk to Oldham as business 
rates income is expected to remain broadly stable while demand for services is 
expected to continue to increase resulting in continued budgetary pressures.  If it is 
possible to simulate Business Rates income through business rates growth and 
investment in the Borough, it may ease the overall financial pressures and reduce 
the risk levels around the future financing of Council services   

 2017 revaluation – in Oldham, there is significant uncertainty in relation to the 
business rates baseline position.  The 2017 revaluation has had only a limited 
impact on the total ‘rateable value’ across the Borough – with a reduction from c. 
£159 million to £157.5 million. However, the revaluation is expected to attract 
significant challenges, with a high risk of appeals. The Council’s share of the 
Business Rates appeals provision at the end of 2016/17 is £3.7m due to the risk 
associated with the appeals process; and 

 small business relief – changes to arrangements for small business relief means 
that the impact on the business rates income in Oldham will be disproportionate, as 
a significant proportion of local businesses now attract relief. Modelling of the 
financial implications of this change is ongoing, however, the Government is 
expected to make good lost income in the form of grant in lieu of Business Rates  

 
4.7.5 Business growth and investment in the Borough will help stimulate Business Rate income 

for the Council.  It will also help mitigate the risks associated with business rate reform as 
described above.  Short-term investment in discretionary business rates relief could create 
a long-term source of income (see section 4.6.5), if applied to growth businesses, key 
sectors and strategic sites, as well as creating local economic benefit for the Borough.   

 
4.8 Oldham Investment Funds  
 
4.8.1 The use of business rates to fund specific economic investments such as a commercial 

property scheme or to provide reliefs to stimulate demand offers significant potential.  The 
Council could consider opportunities to use ring fenced business rates to create an 
Investment Fund, which would be based on a Tax Increment Finance (TIF) type approach, 
and thus support investment to deliver new commercial premises.  Under a TIF 
mechanism, the projected growth in business rates can be used to fund upfront costs 
associated with addressing barriers to development and enabling economic growth, 
particularly where these costs cannot be funded through the value generated by the 
scheme. Under this arrangement, subject to identifying a compliant case for investment, 
Oldham Council could raise finance through borrowing to pay for the cost of delivering the 
infrastructure, with loans repaid through the growth in business rates income. Finance 
could be raised through either public or private borrowings, with the Public Works Loan 
Board (PWLB) providing the most financially attractive rates. The Investment Fund could be 
used to invest in projects that generate sufficient additional business rates to sustain the 
Fund and provide surplus business rates income 
 

Page 31



 

   

Figure 2 - Oldham Investment Fund 

 
 

4.8.2 For example, the economic impact assessment of the Oldham Town Centre Masterplan 
identified that with appropriate support an estimated 50,000 sq m of new and refurbished 
employment floor space and 975 new homes could be created, resulting in some 1,300 
gross jobs.  Once fully developed, £2.2 million per annum of business rates would be 
generated.  Allowing for a 15 year delivery period, this could potentially be sufficient – 
based on current PWLB rates – to support prudential borrowing of £13 million. 

 
4.8.3 The justification for creating an Investment Fund would need to be supported by a robust 

business case, with scoping to be undertaken to assess the costs/benefits of this model, 
alongside the proposal for a property investment fund, to support the budget process for 
2018/19 and beyond.    

 
4.9 Marketing Collateral  
 
4.9.1 Local businesses and investors need to know about the competitive offer so that they can 

capitalise on it.  Working in both targeted proactive and reactive ways requires the offer to 
be understood and communicated well by those engaging with businesses using the 
approaches described above.  It also requires effective marketing collateral such as a good 
website, social media campaigns, leaflets, e-adverts, e-shots, PR and attendance at 
conferences and exhibitions such as MIPIM etc. to help reinforce the offer.  The marketing 
of the Oldham offer should be a combined effort between all business support providers 
rather than series of uncoordinated campaigns.  The use of a common brand and shared 
agreed messaging would help maximise awareness and take-up of the Oldham business 
support offer.  The private sector should have a role to play in marketing Oldham’s offer.  
The updating and refreshing of the Oldham Business and Investment website is key priority 
and is a fundamental part of this.  The website needs a major over-haul to ensure that it is 
business friendly, contains useful and up-to-date information and promotes the Borough as 
a business location.   

 
4.10 The Oldham Account 
 
4.10.1 An Oldham account management system does exist however it needs formalising to 

maximise reach and effectiveness.  Currently, over 50 businesses are being account 
managed by a number of partners including Oldham Council, Midas, EEF, GM Chamber 
and the Business Growth Hub.  However, there is some duplication in that some 
businesses are being account managed by more than one organisation and information is 
not being regularly shared between partners as well as being stored in a single place.  The 
development of a formal ‘Oldham account management system’ facilitated by personal 
account managers is crucial to streamlining support and delivering a coherent service. The 
account manager will be responsible for managing individual business accounts and 
ensuring and monitoring the support arranged through it for each business. Business 
account or relationship managers will provide a key role in coordinating the package of 
support available for the business and streamlining the process for securing assistance. 

New Commercial Floorspace

Oldham Investment Fund

Increase in 
business rates

Investment 
package

Page 32



 

   

 
4.10.2 It is expected that approx. 100 businesses will make up the Oldham Account, featuring 

businesses in the 6 key sectors, those that are growing or those that are strategically 
important to the Borough.  Account management is time consuming and would require staff 
time, from existing posts, with at least 4 Oldham Council officers required to manage the 
100 businesses, making contact with them at least 3 times a year, carrying out follow-up 
actions and updating the Council’s business database, Tractivity.  It would also require the 
commitment and buy-in from senior officers and politicians to buddy-up with officers on site 
visits and to champion particular businesses.   

 
4.10.2 The Oldham Account would provide a powerful tool allowing the collection of valuable 

business intelligence and the development of strong relationships with the Borough’s key 
businesses which could be used to achieve our economic and inclusive growth ambitions 
for the Borough.   

 
4.11     Inward investment 
 
4.11.1 MIDAS works alongside partners such as, GM Chamber, UKTI and Marketing Manchester 

which work to boost British exports and to facilitate business investment in the UK. As well 
as working with businesses already based in the city region, these agencies seek to target 
priority international markets and sectors through the likes of MIPIM, by developing 
commercial propositions that demonstrate why Oldham and the wider sub-region is an 
appropriate investment location. The Council needs to ensure that it is engaged in these 
activities and that an appropriate ‘business offer’ is in place for relevant potential investors 
once their interest has been secured. The Council also needs to ensure that businesses in 
Oldham at risk of the post-Brexit fall out can are linked to the work of and the support 
offered by the GM Chamber and UKTI.  This offer needs to link into the Oldham Account 
and include a range of support and assistance to find suitable property, skilled people, 
finance and support and to help embed them into local networks. 

 
4.12 Networks and Events 
 
4.12.1 There are a range of business events and networks that take place in the Borough.  

However, they are often planned and take place in isolation.  Co-ordination of this activity 
would enable better and more targeted networks and events, with less duplication.  
Therefore, a shared business networks and events calendar should be developed with 
partners looking to build on key business events such as the Festival for Business and the 
Oldham Business Awards.  It should also be aligned with key messages and the 
dissemination of key priorities such as the Oldham Enterprise Fund, Get Oldham Working 
and Better Business for All.  It should also look to develop a series of smaller events aimed 
at supporting new and growing businesses as well the key sectors and be linked into the 
work of the Economy and Skills Partnership. 

4.13 Skills and Workforce Development  
 
4.13.1 The Oldham offer should also provide access to skilled labour and training provision.   The 

importance of up-skilling and continuous professional development is an important issue for 
Oldham given the area’s relatively high proportion of residents with low or no qualifications.  
In particular, it is essential improving productivity levels and developing priority growth 
sectors especially those that involve the use of new technology.  To support this, and in line 
with the Work and Skills Strategy and key sector networks, the Oldham offer should 
include: 

 development of a coherent ‘skills offer’ for employers to include an audit/skills action 
plan and provision of assistance to co-ordinate recruitment of trainees, access to 
training at all levels and the promotion of existing provision.   

Page 33



 

   

 development of tailored and joint training among businesses in the priority growth 
sectors, e.g. Mantra Learning is currently providing tailored support for businesses in 
the Logistics Industry in the borough.  

 provision of support to enable businesses to access and utilise external and 
mainstream funding alongside their own investment in skills in the workforce.  

 promote the benefits of collaboration through initiatives such as Knowledge Transfer 
Partnerships and research/postgraduate placements.  

 graduate retention facilities and provision of subsidised placement programmes within 
the borough.  

 Improved business engagement work between the Council, colleges and other training 
providers. 

 
5 Priorities for action 
 
5.1 Based on the above there are 3 key priorities for action which will be addressed in the 

following action plan.  These are: 
1) Develop a shared approach to business intelligence, engagement and marketing. 
2) Deliver the Oldham business support offer. 
3) Target businesses within key priority sectors. 

 
5.2 Action plan  
 
Area of Focus  
 

Key Actions  Lead 
Delivery  

Partners   Cost   Timing  

1) Develop a shared approach to business intelligence, engagement and marketing 

a) Business 
Intelligence  
 
Collect, 
analyse and 
disseminate 
data to 
improve 
targeting and 
business 
engagement  
 
 

Develop a comprehensive business database, using 
Experian data to provide the core inputs and 
supplement this data with NNDR and Tractivity.    
 
Map the data, and prepare sector profiles for the 
website. 
 
 
Use the database to identify large employers and 
potential growth companies as the basis for the 
account management system. Signpost businesses 
to the business support providers – e.g. BGH, 
Oldham Enterprise Trust, Chamber and Get Oldham 
Working 

Strategic 
investment 
team 
 
Strategic 
investment 
team 
 
Strategic 
investment 
team 
 
 
 

ESP sector leads 
 
 
ESP sector leads 
 
 
ESP sector leads 

Staff 
time 
 
 
Staff 
time 
 
 
Staff 
time 

 Dec 2017 
 
 
 
Feb 2018 
 
 
 
Ongoing  
 

Establish a data sharing agreement with the BGH 
and other providers  
 
Develop a protocol for directing businesses to the 
BGH and other providers 

Strategic  
investment 
team 

BGH 
Chamber 
OET  

Staff 
time 
 
Staff 
time 

Sept 2017 
 
 
Sept 2017 

Convene an internal working group for business 
facing teams to share business data and develop a 
protocol for directing businesses to the BGH and 
other providers  

- Town Centre Manager/Markets 
- Business rates  
- Licensing 
- Property (Unity)  
- Development/Planning, building control 
- Strategic Assets/Strategic Projects  

Strategic  
investment 
team  

  Staff 
time 

Oct 2017  
 
Quarterly 
meetings: 
September 
December  
March  
June  

Identify private sector champions and nominate 
lead officers within the Council to liaise with the 
existing networks and sector groups on an ongoing 
basis to gather information regarding business 
needs  
     

Policy 
Team 

SIT 
Sector Networks 
   

Staff 
time 

Sept  2017 

Page 34



 

   

Develop and administer an annual business survey 
Boost the next GM business survey  
 

 Strategic  
investment 
team 
 

New Economy £5,000 April 2018  

Use the CRM system (Tractivity) to monitor business 
engagement and referrals and ensure the business 
database remains up to date and provide regular 
reports to EMT and members 

Strategic 
investment 
team 

 Staff 
time 

Ongoing  

b) Business 
Engagement  
 
Establish and 
implement an 
account 
management 
system to 
engage 
employers 
  
 

Establish procedures for more effective routing of 
business enquiries in the Council - develop the 
menu of business support provision and list of key 
contacts for appropriate internal 
departments/external agencies. 
 
Train frontline staff and ensure that the CRM system 
is used for recording enquiries and referrals made.  
 

Strategic 
investment 
team  
 
 
 
 Strategic  
investment 
team 

Call Centre staff  Staff 
time 

Oct 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
Jan 2018 

Identify and assign key account managers to large 
employers and establish appropriate mechanisms 
for ongoing engagement  

Strategic 
investment 
team  

EMT and SLT 
Sector 
champions 

Staff 
time 

Jan  2018 

Manage the BGH relationship and monitor 
businesses in receipt of support through internal 
and external case conference sessions   

Strategic 
investment 
team  

BGH 
Chamber 
OET  

Staff 
time 

Ongoing  
2017-2020 

c) Marketing 
and Promotion  
 
Market the 
area as a 
business 
location and 
the support 
services 
available  
 
 
 

Website development:  
- strengths of the business location  
- profile key sectors and case study 

businesses – start-ups, growth, relocations  
- availability of sites and premises and links 

to commercial property agents  
- links to business support and funding 

available  

Strategic 
investment 
team to 
draft 
content 

Communications 
team 

 £30,000 Dec 2017 

Prepare sector specific and generic marketing 
materials to promote the ‘Oldham Business Support 
Offer’   
 

Strategic 
investment 
team  

  £15,000  Nov 2017 

Develop a Business Events Calendar – streamline 
networking events and expand audiences using the 
business database to target particular markets and 
industries    
 
Assist the delivery of the Oldham Business Awards & 
develop an associated Oldham showcase expo event 
 

Strategic 
Investment 
team  

BGH  
Chamber  
OBLG 
Sector groups 
Professional 
Oldham  

£10,000  
 
 
 
 
£25,000 

Oct 2017  
 
 
 
 
Annual 
Event  
 

Work with MIDAS and Marketing Manchester to 
deliver joint marketing campaigns and host 
potential inward investor visits   
 

Strategic 
Investment 
team 

MIDAS 
MGC 
Oldham 
Ambassadors  

£15,000.  Ongoing  

   Total revenue £100,000  

 
2) Develop the Oldham business support offer 

a) Business 
Information, 
Advice and 
Guidance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Undertake business diagnostics with potential growth 
companies and start ups and assign eligible 
companies to personal business advisors. 
 
Deliver business support services (min 12 hours) to 
Oldham businesses     
 

BGH 
enquiries 
team  
OET    
 
BGH 

Identificatio
n of 
businesses, 
signposting 
and referrals  

n/a 
 
n/a 

Ongoing  
 
2017-
2020 
 

Manage the BGH contract and monitor the businesses 
in receipt of assistance from partner agencies (via 
caseload management and case conference reviews)  
 

Council – 
SIT 

Managemen
t and 
monitoring 

Staff time  
  

Ongoing  

Use the business intelligence and feedback to identify 
gaps in provision and work with partner agencies to 

BGH, 
Chamber, 

Analysis of 
business 

Staff time Ongoing  

Page 35



 

   

tailor support to the needs of businesses.   OET, GOW, 
Colleges 

intelligence 
(Libraries) 

b) Access to 
Finance  

Provide businesses with advice on Accessing Finance  BGH   Marketing 
and referrals  

n/a Ongoing 

Develop pilot capital grant programme to support 
investment and business growth in the Borough 
targeting medium and large sized businesses. There 
are currently sufficient funds yet to be allocated 
within the capital programme to allow this project to 
be supported in 2017/18 or future years  
 
Review targets of IQ and A62 grant schemes 

Oldham 
Council 
 
Oldham 
Council  

Marketing, 
and referrals  
 
 
 

£100,000 
 
 
Staff time 

 Jan 2018 
 
 
Dec 2017 

Explore options to use Tax Increment Financing (TIF) 
to borrow against projected growth in strategic 
locations to fund targeted investment and the 
development of an Oldham Investment Fund with 
clearly defined eligibility criteria (based on growth, 
jobs and sustainability) and use of funding.  For 
example, match investment in: 

- staff training/upskilling  
- new plant and machinery  
- innovation in new products and services 
- relief for bringing vacant premises back into 

use 
 

Council - 
SIT 

Developmen
t, marketing 
and 
administrati
on  

Tax 
increment 
financing  
 
Council 
Business 
Rates  

Dec 2017  

c) Access to 
New Markets 
and Research, 
Development 
and Innovation 
(R&D&I) 

Development and promotion of effective supply chain 
linkages – through the meet the buyer events; local 
capacity registers; use of procurement clauses      

Council – 
SIT 
Procureme
nt  
 
Sector 
network 
groups   
 

Developmen
t, promotion 
and delivery 

Staff time Ongoing  

Target companies with the potential to benefit from 
export advice and R&D&I support available from the 
UKTI (now DIT) and Innovate UK regional advisors 
based in the Growth Company: 

- export services 
- access to R&D tax credits  
- funding for emerging and enabling 

technologies (health and life sciences, 
manufacturing and materials)  
    

Business 
Growth 
Hub  
 
Innovate 
UK,  
DIT 
regional 
advisors  

Identificatio
n and 
signposting  

R&D tax 
credits 
 
Innovate 
UK 
funding  

Ongoing  

d) Regulatory 
Support/ 
Council Services 

Promote the GM ‘Better Business for All’ campaign 
and undertake business diagnostics to advise on the 
regulatory requirements needed.  

Oldham 
Council 
 

Promotion  Staff time Ongoing  

Signpost businesses to relevant support to ensure 
compliance, via: 

- the business growth hub 
- internal services – environmental health, 

trading standards, licensing, fire safety, 
planning permission, building control  

 

Strategic 
investment 
team 

Referrals 
and delivery 
of advice 
and support  

Staff time Ongoing  

Work with procurement to maximize opportunities 
for employment and training of local residents, 
creation of apprenticeships and business 
opportunities for local firms, using contract clauses. 
 

Strategic 
investment 
team 

Developmen
t  

Staff time Ongoing  

e) Sites and 
Premises 
 
 
 

Commission an audit of the existing stock of sites and 
premises across the borough to understand the scale, 
quality and availability/gaps in provision in line with 
SHELAA  

Council SIT  Commissioni
ng  

ERDF  Oct  2017 
 

Monitor the delivery, sales and letting of appropriate Unity Signposting Staff time On-going 

Page 36



 

   

 
 
 
f) Access to 
Skilled Labour  
 

sites and premises (office, retail, industrial) 
 

Partnership   and 
monitoring  

Work with sector networks to identify workforce 
development and other skills/recruitment issues  

GOW 
 

Signposting 
and referrals  

Staff time Feb 2018  

Assist Oldham businesses to access/recruit 
apprentices 
 
Provide upskilling support for businesses and 
appropriate partner agencies  

GOW 
  

Delivery via 
GOW 

Apprentic
eship Levy 

Ongoing  

 Broker relationships between the sector network 
groups, colleges and the training providers to ensure 
that provision is tailored to the needs of businesses 
and explore opportunities for collaborative training 
ventures  

GOW  Brokerage Staff time May 2018  

  Total capital £100,000  

   

 
5.2.1 The total cost of implementing the strategy is demonstrated in the table below. 
 

Implementation of actions Amount Source (funded by) Duration 

1 a-c  
Develop a shared approach to 
business intelligence, engagement and 
marketing 

 
£100,000 

 
New revenue funding 

 
One-off cost 

2b 
Pilot capital grant programme 

 
£100,000 

There are currently 
sufficient funds yet to be 
allocated within the capital 
programme to allow this 
project to be supported in 
2017/18 or future years  

 
One-off cost 

Staffing 
New Investment Officer post 

 
£80,000 

 
New revenue funding 

 
£40K recurring for 2 years.  
Costs to be absorbed from 
vacancy savings in current E&S 
staffing review 
 

Total £280,00  

 
 
5.3 To maximise economic output and the creation of employment opportunities for local 

residents, growth companies will be targeted in addition to businesses in the key sectors 
identified in the SIF and listed in the table below.  For each sector, a high level 
development plan will be prepared by ‘sector champions’ identified from the Economy and 
Skills Partnership.  Sector champions will work with businesses in their sector to 
understand how to engage with businesses in that sector and with businesses allied to 
them and how to address sector issues.  

 
3) Target businesses within key priority sectors 

Identified Growth 
Sectors  

Key issues to be addressed within the industry 
locally  
   

Examples of local 
businesses 

Potential SLT/Account 
management leads 

a) Construction  Skills and progression  
Apprenticeships 
Timely notification of procurements 
Assistance with tenders   
 

Heyrod Construction 
Emanuel Whittaker 
Willmot Dixon 
Lewis Facilities 

Helen 
Lockwood/Louise 
Slater 

b) Manufacturing  
 

Skills 
Modern high quality sites and premises  
 

Diodes 
Innovative Technology 
Ribble Packaging 
JA Harrisons 

Tom Stannard/Louise 
Slater 

c) Logistics  Sites and premises Bidvest Helen 

Page 37



 

   

Skills and Licenses 
Business regulations  
 

Mantra Lockwood/Investment 
Officer 

d) Health and 
social care  
 

Skills 
Wages 
Labour mobility – with regard to the provision of 
homecare  
Innovation 
 

Royal Oldham 
Hospital 
Mio Care 

Carolyn Wilkins/Tom 
Hewitt 

e) Leisure and 
retail  

Lack of support for retail businesses using public 
funding  
(no provision via BGH – sustainability workshops 
being organised for each area)    
Consolidation of recent investments 
 

Housing Units 
OCL 
Odeon 
 

Tom Stannard/Sara 
Hewitt/Investment 
Officer 

f) Professional, 
financial and 
digital services  
 

Creation of an office market (overspill from 
Manchester) 
High level skills  

Web Applications 
Capita 
Ryder and Dutton 
Pearson Legal 
Team Spirit 

Tom Stannard 
/Investment Officer 

 
 
5.4       Implementation of the Action plan 
 
5.4.1 The model and competitive business support offer described previously would result a 

positive shift away from current ways of working.  The benefits of working in this way are 
more effective business engagement and take-up of business support programmes.  The 
model should be output/outcome based linked to the current business baseline, and 
economic performance of the borough as well as the priorities of the Economy and Skills 
Partnership and the Oldham Leadership Board.   To be successful, the model would have 
to be agreed with partners, simple and straight forward to access as well as meeting the 
needs of business and investors. It would also require additional resources in terms of 
adequate staffing to co-ordinate and oversee activity as well as to make the Oldham offer 
more competitive. 

 
5.4.2 Due to the mixed economy provision of business support in Oldham, successful 

implementation of the action plan requires co-ordination from a central point.  The Strategic 
Investment Team would take the lead co-ordinating and strengthening the support available 
across a complex business support market, from within the Council and maximising 
linkages with external delivery partners.  Given the actions required, additional capacity will 
be needed within the existing Strategic Investment Team to ensure that the team is able to 
become more pro-active and able to target support accordingly towards businesses that 
have the potential to grow and create jobs in the local economy.   Currently, the team only 
has 2 full-time members of staff which is much lower than other LA’s in GM.  Stockport for 
example has 18 members of staff to service their business base of 12,000.  Also, the team 
has responsibility for tourism and place marketing.   

 
6.        Targets and performance monitoring 
 
6.1 The delivery of the Business and Investment Strategy will directly deliver the business 

outcomes of the SIF.  The business support activities will be delivered in conjunction with 
place and people based interventions and support to improve employment and skills, in 
order to accelerate the growth of jobs, enterprise and GVA within the borough.  

 
6.1.1 As outlined in the SIF and figures below, closing the gap with the GM average will require:  

 the creation of an additional 4,700 or more jobs above the base forecast (+2,700) to 
 narrow the employment rate gap by 2030.  

 the creation/attraction of an additional 340 enterprises, above the base forecast (+190 
businesses) to close the enterprise gap by 2030.  

Page 38



 

   

 
6.2 The economic impact model developed to demonstrate the benefits of Oldham reducing the 

gap with GM has modelled two scenarios:  

 matching the GM growth rate (which is described above and shown by the green line 
on the graph);  

 higher than GM growth rate – which would be sufficient to remove the gap (and is 
shown by the red line and shaded area in the graphs).  

 
6.3 The higher growth rate would require a further 3,400 jobs and 250 businesses over and 

above the figures outlined above.  
 

Figure 3 - Projected employment growth scenarios in Oldham (2015 - 2030) 

 
 

Figure 4 - Projected enterprise growth scenarios for Oldham (2015 - 2030)  

 
Source: GMFM, AMION Economic Impact Model 

 
6.4      Measuring strategic business support outcomes  
 
6.4.1 In order to assess the extent to which the business and investment strategy is achieving its 

objectives, the following outcomes will need to be measured on an ongoing basis, to 
identify whether Oldham is closing the gap with the GM average.  Due to the mixed 
economy provision of business support, it will be difficult to attribute change or impact to 
individual partner agencies or individual strands of activity, as they will all contribute 
through the provision of the business support offer.  Furthermore, it is also envisaged that 
the people and place based initiatives will also contribute towards enterprise and 
employment growth. However, performance will be monitored on an ongoing basis through 
the collection and analysis of output and outcome data.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

102

104

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

N
o.

 o
f j

ob
s 

(0
00

s)

Growth in jobs

Oldham - base scenario Oldham - growth scenario Oldham - growth scenario

+3,400 jobs

+4,700 jobs

+2,700 jobs

Target grow th rate

 6,000

 6,200

 6,400

 6,600

 6,800

 7,000

 7,200

 7,400

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Number of active enterprises

Oldham - base Oldham - growth scenario Oldham - growth scenario

+250 businesses

+340 businesses

+190 businesses

Target grow th rate

Page 39



 

   

Measuring Strategic Outcomes from Improved Business and Investment Support 
 

Measure of Success Oldham Baseline GM Baseline 

(Local Authority 
Range) 

Oldham Target 

Increase in the number of active 
enterprises (per 10,000 population) 

290 354 

(276-501) 

Rate of improvement 
at or above average 

by 203 

Increase in the number of business 
births (per 10,000 population) 

38 

 

52 

(37-73) 

Increase year 3 business survival rates 44.1% 45.1% 

Proportion of employment within the 
private sector 

72% 76% 

(68% - 86%) 

Increase in average GVA per employee £36,700 £39,900 

(£35,800 - £42,600) 

 
6.5       Monitoring Framework  
 
6.5.1 Monitoring and reviewing both outputs and outcomes will form an important part of 

improving the business and investment support offer in Oldham and provide evidence to 
demonstrate the best use of public resources and achievement of value for money. A range 
of tools and protocols will be put in place to record and analyse the engagement and 
performance of businesses on an ongoing basis. This will include:  

 establishing a baseline and comprehensive database of businesses for the area and 
use of the CRM system (Tractivity) to track companies.  

 improved data sharing among business support providers and the use of a case 
conference approach to monitor the delivery of support and benefits realised  

 delivery of an annual business survey – to gather feedback from businesses regarding 
their satisfaction with the support being delivered and impacts achieved. The survey will 
also provide the opportunity to gather more qualitative information regarding business 
needs which will be used to ensure that interventions remain relevant.  

 
6.5.2 An indicative list of the projected outputs and outcomes that will require monitoring is given 

in the table below, in addition to the organisations that will be responsible for collecting the 
data. 

 

Activity analysis measures to be monitored  

Activity analysis measures Partner agencies involved in 
monitoring 

No of businesses engaged and enquiries received by type of 
business type (start-up; existing business/growth company; 
inward investors) and sector  

All – BGH; Council; Chamber; OET  

No of businesses signposted from the Council to business 
support providers - BGH; Oldham Enterprise Trust; GOW 

Oldham Council 

No of businesses assisted/referred for full support (minimum 12 
hours) by type and sector, of which: 

- No of businesses assisted with digital technologies  

BGH 

No of mentoring relationships BGH 

No of clients advised on starting a business  BGH; Chamber; Council; OET 

No of inward investment pipeline projects/jobs Council; MIDAS 

No of jobs created and safeguarded BGH; Council; OET 

No of inward investment projects, new jobs, safeguarded jobs Council; MIDAS 

No of businesses in receipt of funding – grants; loans; business 
rate reductions (start-ups, existing businesses, inward investors) 

No facilitated by Access to Finance service 

No accessing the ‘Oldham Enterprise Trust Fund’/other sources 

BGH 

OET 

BFS   

Oldham Council  

No of businesses introducing new to firm/market products  BGH, Innovate UK 

Page 40



 

   

No of businesses co-operating with research entities  SIT, Innovate UK (MGC)  

No/£value of business wins (export orders)   BGH, DIT, Chamber  

No of business start ups BGH; OET; GOW 

£ total increased GVA /GVA from inward investment  BGH; SIT; DIT  

 
7          Options/Alternatives 
 
7.1 The following options have been considered for implementing the Business and Investment 

Strategy and the key priorities for action listed in Section 5.2 with a full options appraisal in 
the table below. 

 Option 1 - Do nothing – continue delivering the service through existing mechanisms at 
zero cost.  Under this option it is likely that only 6% business support targets will be 
achieved resulting in 274 businesses being assisted and 256 new jobs being created 
over the next 2 years. 

 Option 2 - Restructure existing teams within the council and add capacity to the 
Strategic Investment Team through the transfer of expertise from other service areas. 
The cost of this is approx. £100,000.  Under this option it is likely that only 10% 
business support targets will be achieved resulting in 402 businesses being assisted 
and 380 new jobs being created over the next 2 years. 

 Option 3 - Strengthen the function of the Strategic Investment Team through the 
recruitment of new staff and additional resources to improve engagement and 
strengthen the business support offer.  This option requires a one-off revenue 
investments as described in 5.2.1.above, and provision for a one-off capital allocation of 
£100,000 for a new grant programme (subject to business cases).  Additionally, the 
requirement for a fixed term 2 year contract for the recruitment of an additional 
Investment Officer will be absorbed from vacancy savings identified in the current 
departmental restructure.  Under this option it is projected that 16% business support 
targets will be achieved through an uplift in enquiries to 2,800 pa resulting in 593 
businesses being assisted and 566 new jobs being created over the next 2 years which 
would have a greater impact on the economic impacts that we are looking to achieve. 

 
Options  Advantages  Disadvantages  Implications for growth and job 

outcomes  

Option 1: Do 

nothing  
No additional revenue 
implications. 
 
 
 
 
 

Strategic Investment 
Team will continue to 
operate reactively, 
resulting in lost 
opportunities to attract and 
target businesses with 
growth potential.   
 
Reliant on external 
agencies to engage 
Oldham Businesses and 
promote the take up of GM 
Services – e.g. Business 
Growth Hub services.   
 
Lack of 
capacity/leadership in 
developing a coordinated 
Oldham Business Offer  
 
Fragmented business 
services and potential 
duplication of resources.    

The Oldham Start-up Fund 
(provided by the Stoller Trust) and 
European Funding ring-fenced for 
SMEs in Oldham are due to be 
administered via the GM Growth 
Hub.  This funding has the 
capacity to generate between 200-
270 jobs, based on benchmarks 
for general business support and 
enterprise support for SMEs and 
start-ups, leaving a significant 
shortfall in the outcomes required 
to close the business and 
enterprise gap with the GM 
average. 

More effective targeting of existing 
businesses with growth potential, 
attraction of new companies to the 
area and strategic/sector 
development will be essential if 
Oldham is to accelerate the growth 
of jobs, enterprise and GVA within 
the borough.  

Furthermore this ‘do nothing’ 

Page 41



 

   

option, will seriously undermine the 
delivery of the other strands of the 
Oldham Strategic Investment 
Framework and fail to capitalize on 
the infrastructure and skills 
investments made to date.     

Option 2: Re-

organize business 
facing teams 
internally within the 
council to deliver the 
service   

No additional revenue 
implications  
 
Improved business 
intelligence and sharing of 
data internally  
 
Greater efficiencies through 
more streamlined approach 
to business engagement and 
delivery of services 
 
 
 

Existing Strategic 
Investment team would 
need to divert all attention 
to management and 
oversight of internal 
business facing teams and 
managing external 
relationships. 
 
Dedicated time and 
resources required to 
deliver effective account 
management and 
marketing and 
promotion/inward 
investment services – 
potential to have a 
negative impact on 
business 
retention/attraction. 
  
Inability to deliver pro-
active targeting and 
strategic development 
work – including new 
business products and 
services.      

This option has the capacity to 
build on the activity and  level of 
outcomes expected under the do-
nothing scenario, as it will involve: 

 more effective delivery of 
business services within the 
council and signposting to 
external agencies; and  

 closer scrutiny of the 
programmes being delivered 
externally by business support 
agencies on behalf of the 
council. 

However, under this option the 
Strategic Investment Team will to a 
large extent remain reactive, as 
the limited resources within the 
team will be spent maximizing the 
efficiency of the existing business 
support functions and improving 
communication flows and 
intelligence both within the council 
and among existing agencies. 

This would result in significant 
gaps in relation to: 

 the strategic and sector 
development work required to 
improve the business offer in 
the borough (i.e. establishment 
of the Oldham Investment 
Fund; ensuring there is a 
supply of suitable sites and 
premises to meet employer’s 
needs; promotion of sector 
specialisms and collaborative 
working);  

 marketing and promotion of 
the business offer/location - to 
attract new businesses and 
inward investors into the area; 
and  

 the development of an account 
management function for large 
and established businesses in 
the borough – to identify and 
promote growth and retention.   

Option 3: Enhance 

SIT capacity and 
maintain GM mixed 
economy business 
support 
approach/partnership    

This option will add capacity 
and provide the opportunity 
to deliver all the business 
support functions and 
priorities for action identified 
in section 5 of this report.  
This includes: 

 management/oversight 

 business intelligence, 
monitoring and 
evaluation 

 business engagement 
and account 
management  

 marketing and promotion  

Additional 
investment/resources 
required up front – but 
potential to generate 
additional business rates 
income if successful in 
retaining and attracting 
new businesses to the 
area.   
 
The Strategic Investment 
team will still be 
dependent on external 
support agencies to 
deliver aspects of the 

This option provides the greatest 
opportunity to maximize business 
benefits and job outcomes, 
through: 

 internal re-organisation and 
streamlined delivery of council 
services; 

 targeting companies with 
growth potential and the 
capacity to deliver the highest 
return on investment; 

 strategic investment and 
development work – to attract 
and retain businesses in the 
borough;  

Page 42



 

   

 strategic investment and 
sector development  

 Management of grant 
programmes 

 
The Council offers longevity 
and is well positioned to 
facilitate the joining up of 
services for businesses - 
both internally and externally 
– to promote growth and the 
generation of new jobs in the 
borough.  

Oldham Business Support 
Offer.     
  
 
 

 effective business engagement 
and account management; and  

 the provision of business 
support to add value and 
complement the delivery of the 
other strands of the Strategic 
Investment Framework. 

 

 
 
8. Preferred option 
 
8.1       Option 3 is the preferred option. 
 
9. Consultation 
 
9.1 There has been a range of stakeholders consulted as part of the development of the 

business and investment review.  These include various Council departments including 
Regeneration, Property Services, Finance and Planning as well as external partners such 
as the Business Growth Hub, GM Chamber and the EEF.  The private sector also played a 
major part in the creation of the review with many local businesses having contributed to its 
development.  In additional to this, members of Oldham’s Economy and Skills Partnership, 
a mix of public and private sector partners have been consulted as part of this review. 

 
10 Financial Implications  
   
10.1 Collection Fund: A key issue with regard to the generation of Business Rates is that the 

actual income is received and accounted for within the Collection Fund which is a ring-
fenced technical account.  The means to access Business Rates funding occurs only once 
per year when the Collection Fund precept is set by Cabinet and this determines the 
Business Rates income upon which budget decisions are made.  An assessment is 
therefore required, prior to the start of each financial year, of the likely Business Rates 
income and any subsequent over or under performance has to be adjusted in future budget 
setting rounds.  The generation of significant additional Business Rates as outlined in the 
report is therefore likely to support the budget in financial years beyond 2018/19. 
 

10.2 Revenue: Summary costs implications of £280k in total are detailed within the table in 
section 5.2.1. Included within the £280k, there is an initial one off revenue cost of £100k in 
the first year to fund the actions detailed in 5.2.  This will be financed from Directorate 
reserves. 

 
10.3 It is assumed that “Staff time” detailed within the action plan will be met from within existing 

resources across various council services.  Individuals who will help with project delivery 
will have to undertake the additional requirements of the action plan as part of their day to 
day responsibilities.  The impact of this will have to be closely monitored as part of the 
regular project appraisal and budget monitoring process.   

  
10.4 The report is also seeking to fund an additional individual  within the strategic investment 

team up to a maximum grade 6 on the NJC pay scales. This post will be recruited to for a 
fixed term of 2 years.  It is anticipated that this will cost £40k per annum including on costs 
(£80k in total).  It has been agreed that this will be funded within the restructure of the 
Strategic and Investment Team and the remaining budget is to come from Place Making. 
Costs above this will be an additional pressure. 

 

Page 43



 

   

10.5 Efforts to maintain or increase business rates revenues are clearly welcome but achieving 
growth is now far more challenging than at any time since Business Rates Retention was 
introduced in April 2013. The recent revaluation exercise (effective April 2017) coupled with 
national changes to thresholds, reliefs and discounts mean many Oldham businesses will 
on average be paying fewer business rates. Whilst lower bills are good news for 
businesses and the local economy, it also means the tax base and prospects for business 
rates growth are also lower. 
 

10.6 The required match funding element of £190k discussed in section 3.3.1 will be funded 
from an existing earmarked reserve – “GOW2: Economy and Skills ERDF Business support 
match fund” 

 
10.7 With regard to Tax Increment Financing (TIF), the proposal is to support economic growth 

with up-front investment financed from projected growth in tax revenues. For TIF to be a 
viable proposition, the Council would need to be reasonably certain those additional 
revenues would materialise over the medium to long term. Unfortunately, any proposal to 
use TIF as a model for investment is undermined by the fact that the Government retains 
control over major elements of the Business Rates system and has the ability to reset/re-
balance the system periodically. Any revenue growth associated with a TIF investment 
model could ultimately be lost as part of a re-set of the local government finance system.  It 
is also important to note that any costs of borrowing utilised to support a TIF initiative needs 
to be paid whether or not any additional business rates income is generated.  In the early 
years it is likely that initial financial costs will have to be met from mainstream budgets until 
such time as any additional business rates income can be realised. 

 
10.8 Capital: There is a one off capital investment needed to develop a capital grant allocation 

scheme for businesses in order to support investment and business growth in the Borough. 
Medium and large sizes businesses will be targeted.  

 
10.9 This report requests an amount of £100k is prioritized within the Capital programme in 

order to support this aspect of the Programme as detailed within the table para 5.2 section 
2b.  There are currently sufficient funds yet to be allocated within the capital programme to 
allow this project to be supported in 2017/18 or future years (Catherine Dunkerley/Sadrul 
Alam)  

 
11 Legal Services Comments 
 
11.1 There are no direct legal issues arising for the report. It should be noted that the 

termination of a fixed term contract for in excess of two years may result in a redundancy 
payment. Should a fixed term contract be extended beyond four years a post holder would 
be entitled to be treated as permanent. (Colin Brittain) 

 
12. Co-operative Agenda 
 
12.1 The Council and partners will work with businesses to ensure that they do their bit for the 

Borough to ensure that we work co-operatively achieve our inclusive growth ambitions 
through Get Oldham Working, supporting local events and charities, acting as 
ambassadors for the Borough, supporting local supply chains and aspiring entrepreneurs.    

 
13 Human Resources Comments 
 
13.1 People Services have been consulted in relation to human resource implications as a result 

of this business growth and investment review and the provision of the most effective 
business support. 

 
13.2 An extensive staff consultation is underway in relation to the review of Economy and Skills 

staff structure referenced in this report. 

Page 44



 

   

 
13.3 The new position which has been evaluated and graded will be recruited to in accordance 

with the Council’s human resources policies and procedures.  The duration of the fixed 
term arrangement of this post will result in a potential redundancy payment unless suitable 
alternative employment can be sourced towards the end of the arrangement.(Stewart 
Hindley) 

 
14 Risk Assessments 
 
14.1 As outlined in this report, additional resources are required to increase levels of targeted 

business engagement and growth in Oldham.  Without, the additional resources it is 
unlikely that the outputs and outcomes described above will be achieved (Jon Bloor). 

 
15 IT Implications 
 
15.1 None 
 
16 Property Implications 
 
16.1 None 
 
17 Procurement Implications 
 
17.1 None 
 
18 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
18.1 None 
 
19 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 
19.1 None 
 
20 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
20.1  No  
 
21 Key Decision 
 
21.1 Yes  
 
22 Key Decision Reference 
 
22.1 ECEN-21-17 
 
23 Background Papers 
 
23.1 None 
 
24 Appendices  
 
 Appendix 1 – Current Oldham business support offer 
 Appendix 2 – Amion Business and Investment Strategy (see attached) 
 Appendix 3 – Oldham Strategic Investment Framework (see attached) 
 
 
 

Page 45



 

   

Appendix 1 
 
Table 3.1: Existing Business and Investment 
Support in Oldham  

Manchester 

Growth 

Company  

Oldham 

Chamber 

Oldham 

Council 

Oldham 

Enterprise 

Trust 

Oldham 

College 

Other 

partners 

Business 
Advice 
(including 
regulatory 
advice)   

Information (& business 

intelligence)  

BGH     FSB;PT 

Start-up advice/Youth Enterprise  BGH     FSB;PT 

Business growth - advice  BGH     FSB 

Mentoring  BGH     FSB 

Targeted sectoral growth   BGH     FSB 

Networking  BGH     FSB 

Regulatory advice and support  BGH      

Finance  Start-up grant funding BFS     FSB/PT 

Micro loans  BFS      

Business loans BFS      

Export finance  BFS      

Equity investment  BFS      

 Sector / localised grants BGH      

 NNDR relief na      

Research, 
development, 
Innovation  

Research, development, 

innovation - advice   

Innovate UK; 

BGH 

    RSC 

Funding  Innovate UK     RSC 

Collaboration Innovate UK     RSC 

Place 
marketing 
and 
attracting 
investors   

Export services UKTI (DIT); 

BGH 

     

Marketing and promotion of 

Oldham  

MIDAS      

Events for overseas investors UKTI (DIT)       

Investor services (package of 

support) 

MIDAS      

Sites and 
Premises  

Council land and property – 

info/advice  

MIDAS      

Commercial land and property –

info/advice   

MIDAS      

Funding for sites and premises        

Skills and 
workforce 
development  

Recruitment  Work Co; Skills 

Co 

 GOW    

Workforce development; 

Apprenticeships   

Work Co; Skills 

Co 

 GOW   RSC 

Business/sector training  Work Co; Skills 

Co 

 GOW    

 
 

Page 46



LIVERPOOL Winslow House • Rumford Court • 16 Rumford Place • Liverpool L3 9DG 
T: 0151 227 5563  
LONDON 78 York Street • London W1H 1DP T: 0207 183 6790  
www.amion.co.uk   

 

AMION Consulting is the trading name of AMION Consulting Limited.  
Registered Office: Langtons, The Plaza, 100 Old Hall Street, Liverpool L3 9QJ. Company No: 3909897 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Oldham Council 
 
 

Business and Investment 
Strategy 
 
Draft Report   
 
June 2017  

 

WORKING DRAFT 

 

This draft is incomplete, awaits review 

and is subject to amendment.  

 

It does not represent our final findings 

and conclusions which will be set out in 
any final report. 

Page 47



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Oldham Council 
 

Business and Investment Strategy 
 

Draft Report 
 
June 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Reviewed and approved by: 

 

Signature(s):  
  
Name(s): Graham Russell 
  
Job Title(s): Chief Executive 

  
Date: February 2017 
  

AMION Consulting is the trading name of AMION Consulting Limited 
Registered Office: Langtons, The Plaza, 100 Old Hall Street, Liverpool L3 9QJ 
Company No: 3909897 
Tel: 0151 227 5563 
This document including appendices contains 57 pages 
Ref: C:\Users\k.booth\Desktop\Katie\Oldham Council Business  Investment Strategy - 
June 2017.docx 

Page 48



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

 
 

Contents 
 

1 Introduction ................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Background ................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Purpose of the report ................................................................................................................... 1 

1.3 Our approach ................................................................................................................................ 1 

1.4 Report structure ............................................................................................................................ 2 

2 Context .......................................................................................................................... 3 

2.1 Introduction .................................................................................................................................. 3 

2.2 Local policy context ....................................................................................................................... 3 

2.3 Overview of the economy and the business base ........................................................................ 4 

2.4 Recent business performance ..................................................................................................... 12 

3 Current arrangements .................................................................................................. 17 

3.1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 17 

3.2 Existing business support provision ............................................................................................ 17 

3.3 Summary of the business support and providers in the area ..................................................... 21 

3.4 Feedback on existing provision ................................................................................................... 23 

3.5 Challenges and opportunities for business growth in the area .................................................. 25 

4 Vision and strategic objectives ...................................................................................... 27 

4.1 Vision ........................................................................................................................................... 27 

4.2 Strategic objectives ..................................................................................................................... 27 

4.3 Activities ...................................................................................................................................... 27 

5 Action Plan ................................................................................................................... 39 

5.1 Management and delivery arrangements .................................................................................. 39 

5.2 Key priorities for action ............................................................................................................... 40 

6 Targets and performance monitoring ............................................................................ 47 

6.1 Targets ........................................................................................................................................ 47 

6.2 Monitoring framework................................................................................................................ 48 

7 Delivery recommendations ........................................................................................... 50 

7.1 Delivery options .......................................................................................................................... 50 

7.2 The preferred option and recommendations for delivery .......................................................... 53 

 

   

Appendix A - Title of Appendix 

 

 

Page 49



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

1 
 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Background  

AMION Consulting was appointed by Oldham Council in October 2016 to prepare a Business and 
Investment Strategy that sets out a shared approach to business engagement, development, 
growth and investment in the Borough.   

The Strategy seeks to build on the significant progress made by partners of the Economy and 
Skills Partnership in recent years and is aligned with Oldham’s Strategic Investment Framework 
published in May 2016 – providing an action plan for the ‘Business’ theme described in the 
framework.  The strategy has been developed to ensure that it complements the other two 
themes within the overarching framework, namely ‘People’ and ‘Place’ and the relevant 
strategies and action plans in place to deliver these priorities.   

1.2 Purpose of the report  

This Business and Investment Strategy has been prepared for Oldham Council to: 

 describe how the Council will work with partner agencies to provide a seamless and shared 
approach to business engagement, growth and investment in the borough – with a clear 
business offer and menu of provision;  

 facilitate engagement with local businesses and the development of a more pro-active 
approach to targeting potential growth companies that will deliver high value added jobs 
and/or entry level employment opportunities for local residents; 

 present the key priorities and action to assist business growth and investment, aligned with 
the Oldham Strategic Investment Framework (SIF) People and Place Strategies; and 

 provide an evidenced based framework that can be used to guide future business and 
investment activities within the borough.  

The Strategy will also provide the basis for generating greater leverage of support services from 
the central Business Growth Hub (BGH) that serves all local authorities within the wider Greater 
Manchester (GM) area.   

1.3 Our approach  

The business and investment strategy has been developed through a combination of: 

 desk based research - to understand the local policy context, performance of the local 
economy and the business base through analysis of secondary data sources, and an 
assessment of recent business performance provided by the GM survey;   

 scoping current business support provision across the borough – through consultations with 
delivery organisations and desk based research;  

Page 50



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

2 
 

 consultations with key stakeholders including key partner agencies and local businesses – to 
assess the effectiveness of current provision, key barriers to growth for the identified 
priority sectors and potential interventions to improve joint working and provision of a 
seamless service; and  

 consultation with the Economy and Skills Partnership group on emerging findings to gather 
views and input into the development of the Strategy.   

1.4 Report structure 

This report continues in seven sections: 

 Section 2 - outlines the local policy context, the performance of the local economy and the 
business base in particular and recent performance of GM businesses; 

 Section 3 - describes the current delivery landscape and the partners providing business 
support services in the borough.  It also provides feedback on a review of 
business engagement in the Council and feedback from local stakeholders and 
businesses on existing provision and potential to deliver greater joint working;  

 Section 4 - reviews the vision for Oldham as set out in the SIF, the strategic objectives for 
the strategy and activities that will be delivered to achieve the objectives;  

 Section 5 - sets out the key priorities for action and who will be responsible for delivery; 

 Section 6 - describes the monitoring framework that needs to be established to track 
performance; and  

 Section 7 - presents a series of delivery recommendations for immediate action.   

Page 51



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

3 
 

2 Context  

2.1 Introduction  

This section provides a review of the context for the Business and Investment Strategy. It 
includes an overview of local policy, economic conditions in the area drawn from secondary 
data and the results of the GM business survey outlining recent business performance.   

2.2 Local policy context  

Table 2.1 summarises the objectives and key priorities of three key documents that provide the 
immediate local policy framework within which this Business and Investment Strategy sits. They 
are the GM Strategy, the GM Spatial Framework 2015-2035 and the Oldham Strategic 
Investment Framework (SIF). 

Table 2.1 Local policy context 

Strategy  Aim/Vision  
Contribution of the Business and Investment Strategy 
to the objectives  

 GM Strategy  The GM Combined Authority and the 
GM Local Enterprise Partnership 
(GMLEP) jointly own the Strategy which 
sets out the productivity and growth 
challenge facing the city region and the 
growth and public service reform 
programmes intended to tackle this. 

Oldham’s Business and Investment Strategy will 
contribute to supporting the strategy’s business 
growth priorities which include: 

 Encouraging inward and indigenous investing firms 

 Attracting more entrepreneurs, start-ups, capital 
and talent; and  

 Accelerating the growth of the 90,000 businesses 
with the greatest potential to expand 

GM Spatial 
Framework 
2015 - 2035 

The GMSF seeks to establish a joint 
plan to manage the supply of land for 
jobs and new homes across Greater 
Manchester.  The GMSF will ensure 
that GM has the right land in the right 
places to deliver the homes and jobs 
needed up to 2035, together with 
identifying the new infrastructure 
required to achieve this. 

The business and investment strategy will contribute 
to a range of policies within the framework including: 

 SL2: Town Centre development.  The business 
focused objectives include increasing the density 
of uses and activity, and expanding the 
employment role of the town centre with an 
improved supply of office floor space, and greater 
opportunities for knowledge-based and creative 
businesses. 

 GM4: Retail, leisure and tourism – with objectives 
focused on building on local cultural identity. 

 GM21: Education, skills and knowledge – with 
specific objectives related to providing a wide 
range of sites and premises capable of attracting 
knowledge-intensive businesses including those 
suitable for research activities and related spin-off 
businesses and local employment opportunities 
through local labour schemes and agreements. 

Oldham 
Strategic 
Investment 
Framework  

The SIF sets out an overarching vision 
for Oldham to: 

Be a key economic contributor to GM 
by providing a place where business 

The strategy will assist in the achievement of the two 
key ‘business’ objectives, namely to: 

 achieve a balanced local economy, more inward 

Page 52



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

4 
 

and enterprise can thrive and where 
people will want to live, visit and work.  
It will also be a place where every 
resident is enabled to contribute to 
and benefit from the continued 
economic growth of the City Region.  

investment and a strong position in Greater 
Manchester. 

 enable more business start-ups and increase 
survival rates. 

It will also support the people and place objectives  

 develop a skilled, educated and dynamic 
workforce that can compete for jobs in the City 
Region. 

 support people into decent, secure and well-paid 
employment. 

 ensure Oldham is a place that supports 
sustainable economic growth, encourages 
enterprise and capitalises on new technology and 
transport. 

 create a town centre that meets local residents’ 
needs and wants, is a thriving place for business 
and attracts visitors to the borough. 

2.3 Overview of the economy and the business base 

2.3.1 Employment and industry composition 

Total employment within Oldham was estimated to be around 80,700 in 2015 (see Table 2.1).  
This represents 7% of the overall employment in GM as a whole.  The ratio of employment to 
working age population (job density) within the borough stands at 0.57.  While this is higher 
than some other parts of the City Region, such as Rochdale and Tameside, it is below the 
average for Greater Manchester, which is skewed by the strong performance of Manchester and 
Trafford in particular.  

Table 2.1: Total employment, 2015 

 Employment % of GM total Job density* 

Greater Manchester 1,239,100  0.70 

Bolton 105,400 9% 0.60 

Bury 66,100 5% 0.57 

Manchester 355,300 29% 0.95 

Oldham 80,700 7% 0.57 

Rochdale 70,900 6% 0.53 

Salford 119,900 10% 0.74 

Stockport 124,000 10% 0.70 

Tameside 67,000 5% 0.48 

Trafford 145,400 12% 1.00 

Wigan 104,400 8% 0.52 

*Ratio of total employment to population aged 16-64 
Source: ONS, BRES 

Page 53



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

5 
 

In recent years, Oldham has experienced relatively strong growth in employment, after suffering 
particularly badly during the financial crisis and subsequent recession.  Much of this growth has 
been driven by an increase in part-time jobs, which have risen by 10% between 2010 and 2015, 
while the number of full-time jobs has increased by 8%.  In comparison, at the national level, 
there has been an increase in part-time and full-time jobs of 3% and 9% respectively.    

Of particular note in relation to Oldham has been the continued reliance on public sector 
employment.  According to the GM Forecasting Model (GMFM), as of 2014, private sector 
employment in Oldham was still below the level it stood at in 2005.  In contrast, public sector 
employment over the ten-year period has increased by 19%.  At the UK level, public sector 
employment increased by 10% over the same period, but private sector employment has also 
grown, by around 5% (see Figure 2.1).     

Figure 2.1: Indexed change in employment 

  
Source: ONS, BRES; Oxford Economics, GMFM 

In terms of the structure of employment within Oldham, manufacturing still remains one of the 
largest sectors in the economy, with the borough home to a number of prominent 
manufacturing companies and major textiles supply chain firms.  Health, construction, 
wholesale and retail, logistics, property and education are also sectors where Oldham has a 
relatively high level of employment compared to the UK average (see Table 2.2 and Figure 2.2).  
There is an under-representation of employment in the financial and professional service 
sectors, although there has been strong growth in the professional and business support sectors 
in recent years.     

 

 

  

94

96

98

100

102

104

106

108

110

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Growth in Employment (2010-2015)

Oldham GM GB

60

70

80

90

100

110

120

130

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Indexed change in public/private employment

Oldham - public Oldham - private

UK - public UK - private

Page 54



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

6 
 

Table 2.2: Total employment, 2015 

 Employment % of total Location quotient 

Primary industries 1,000 1% 0.43 

Manufacturing 10,300 13% 1.59 

Construction 4,500 6% 1.20 

Wholesale and motor trade 5,400 7% 1.16 

Retail 8,600 11% 1.08 

Transport & storage 4,200 5% 1.14 

Accommodation & food services 4,700 6% 0.82 

Information & communication 1,700 2% 0.52 

Financial & insurance 500 1% 0.18 

Property 1,600 2% 1.10 

Professional, scientific & technical 4,100 5% 0.60 

Business administration & support services 6,500 8% 0.93 

Public administration and Defence 2,400 3% 0.70 

Education 7,900 10% 1.10 

Health 14,100 17% 1.35 

Arts, entertainment, recreation & other services 3,000 4% 0.84 

Source: ONS, BRES 

Figure 2.2: Structure of Employment   

 
Source: ONS, BRES 

  

Page 55



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

7 
 

2.3.2 Economic performance 

Based on data from the GMFM, in 2015 Oldham accounted for approximately 6% of Greater 
Manchester’s Gross Value Added (GVA)1. Over the last decade, Oldham’s proportional 
contribution to the City Region economy has remained broadly constant and the borough’s GVA 
growth rate between 2006 and 2015 has been similar to the rate for GM as a whole and the 
North West region (see Figure 2.2).      

Figure 2.3: Indexed change in GVA 

 
Source: Oxford Economics, GMFM 

Analysis of the GVA per capita for Oldham, however, shows that the local economy is still 
performing relatively poorly.  In 2015, the reported GVA per capita for Oldham was £14,600 – 
70% of the GM average (£20,600).      

Figure 2.4: GVA per capita  

 
Source: Oxford Economics, GMFM 

                                                           
1  The Office for National Statistics (ONS) defines GVA as “…the difference between the value of goods and services produced and the cost of 

raw materials and other inputs which are used up in production.” GVA can therefore be used to measure the economic value of goods and 
services produced by a specific activity or in a specific area. 

85

90

95

100

105

110

115

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Oldham Greater Manchester North West UK

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Oldham Greater Manchester North West UK

Page 56



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

8 
 

2.3.3 Enterprise 

In 2010, the Oldham Local Economic Assessment identified a large ‘enterprise gap’ in the 
borough.  Since then, the number of active enterprises in Oldham has increased, but at half the 
rate experienced within GM as a whole, and there remains a relatively low number of 
businesses in the borough as a proportion of the total population.  Over the last decade, the 
business stock in Oldham grew by 11% – this is the second lowest rate of growth (above 
Tameside) of the ten GM boroughs.     

Table 2.3: Businesses stock (2005-2015) 

 Active enterprises Active enterprises per 10,000 total pop 

2005 2015 Change (%) 2005 2015 Change (%) 

Greater Manchester 81,120 102,230 26% 316 371 17% 

Bolton 8,590 9,755 14% 324 346 7% 

Bury 6,155 7,495 22% 340 399 17% 

Manchester 14,180 21,815 54% 311 411 32% 

Oldham 6,200 6,855 11% 283 297 5% 

Rochdale 5,570 6,630 19% 269 310 15% 

Salford 6,590 8,930 36% 300 364 21% 

Stockport 10,915 12,565 15% 388 435 12% 

Tameside 5,915 6,490 10% 277 293 6% 

Trafford 9,205 12,405 35% 427 532 24% 

Wigan 7,800 9,290 19% 255 288 13% 

Source: ONS, business demography 

As shown in Table 2.4 below, the stock of businesses in Oldham are predominantly micro and 
small enterprises with approximately three quarters of all enterprises (74.5%) employing less 
than five employees, broadly in line with GM and the national picture, 76.4% and 77.7% 
respectively.  

Table 2.4: Businesses by Sizeband (2015)  

 Oldham  GM GB 

Micro (>10) 87.2% 88.1% 89.2% 

Small (>50) 10.7% 9.7% 8.9% 

Medium (>250) 1.8% 1.7% 1.6% 

Large (250+) 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 

Source: ONS, business demography 

An analysis of business births within Oldham shows a similar picture to the overall business 
stock, with the number of business starts as a proportion of the population being below the City 
Region and wider North West region averages (see Figure 2.4).  The growth in business births in 
the borough over the last ten years has also been amongst the lowest in Greater Manchester. 

 

 

Page 57



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

9 
 

 

Figure 2.5: Births of new businesses per 10,000 population 

 
Source: ONS, business demography 

The survival rates of businesses based in Oldham and broadly in line with the City Region, but 
lower than national average with relatively strong one year and two-year survival rates which 
drop off to below 50% surviving by year 4 and year 5. Since 2010, survival rates in general have 
increased and the most recent one year survival rate for businesses started in 2014 stood at 
93.1% for Oldham compared with 92.1% for GM and 92.2% for the UK.  

Table 2.5: 5 year survival rates for businesses established in 2010  

 Oldham  GM  UK 

1 year survival  85.6% 86.1% 86.7% 

2 year survival  69.5% 70.1% 72.5% 

3 year survival  54.2% 54.2% 57.1% 

4 year survival 44.1% 45.1% 48.1% 

5 year survival 39.0% 38.7% 41.4% 

Source: ONS, business demography 

2.3.4 Productivity and innovation 

Based on the GMFM, the average GVA per employee within Oldham in 2015 was approximately 
£36,700 (2011 prices).  This compared to an average GVA per employee for GM as a whole of 
£39,900 and a national average of £44,400 (the latter figure being skewed by the strong 
performance of London and the South East).  The gap between productivity levels in Oldham 
and GM as a whole has reduced slightly in recent years, although it has increased marginally 
when compared to the UK.   

 

 

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Oldham Greater Manchester North West UK

Page 58



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

10 
 

 

Figure 2.6: Labour productivity based on an assessment of GVA per worker  

 
Source: Oxford Economics, GMFM 

The relatively low levels of productivity in Oldham are, in part, due to the general 
underrepresentation of some higher value added sectors in the borough.  For example, as 
identified above, Oldham has a small proportion of employees working within the financial 
services sector.  The percentage of employment in science and R&D is also relatively low (0.7% 
compared to a UK average of 1.4%).  However, in terms of high technology business sectors, 
particularly in relation to advanced manufacturing, Oldham performs more strongly.  

As shown in Table 2.4, there are a number of high technology business sectors where Oldham 
has relatively high levels of employment.  This provides a potential basis upon which to build in 
terms of moving towards a more productive economy. 

Table 2.6: Employment in key high technology sectors (2015) 

Key manufacturing sectors Oldham - employment Oldham – location 
quotient 

GM– location quotient 

Rubber products 200 3.74 1.58 

Plastics products 800 2.13 1.48 

Electronic components and boards 400 6.75 1.32 

General purpose machinery 800 5.28 0.86 

Other general-purpose machinery 400 2.13 1.04 

Source: ONS, BRES 

2.3.5 Economic forecasts 

In terms of the forecast future performance of Oldham’s economy, employment within the 
borough is predicted to increase at a relatively low rate, as with a number of the other northern 
City Region boroughs (see Figure 2.6).  Over the next 10 years, employment in GM is forecast to 
increase by approximately 85,000 jobs.  Around 75% of these jobs are expected to be within 

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

 40,000

 45,000

 50,000

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Oldham Greater Manchester North West UK

Page 59



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

11 
 

Manchester, Salford, Stockport and Trafford.  This reflects a growing concern in relation to the 
GM ‘North/South divide’. 

Figure 2.7: Indexed forecast change in employment 

 
Source: Oxford Economics, GMFM 

The GMFM forecasts in relation to GVA show a similar picture.  Although GVA is projected to 
grow significantly across all areas, the rate of growth in Oldham is expected to be below the GM 
average.  Manchester and Salford, in particular, are forecast to see much higher rates of growth.  
This suggests that the gap between Oldham, along with other north-eastern parts of the City 
Region, and the more economically prosperous GM boroughs will continue to widen. 

Figure 2.8: Indexed forecast change in GVA (2011 prices) 

 
Source: Oxford Economics, GMFM 

2.3.6 Potential Growth Sectors  

To help inform the SIF, the GMFM forecasts have been analysed to identify sectors within which 
Oldham has a potential competitive advantage and opportunity for growth.  This has been 
based on determining the sectors where Oldham has a greater concentration of employment / 

90

95

100

105

110

115

120

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034

Oldham Bolton Bury Manchester

Rochdale Salford Stockport Tameside

Trafford Wigan Greater Manchester

90

100

110

120

130

140

150

160

170

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034

Oldham Bolton Bury Manchester

Rochdale Salford Stockport Tameside

Trafford Wigan Greater Manchester

Page 60



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

12 
 

economic activity (GVA) than the UK as a whole (location quotient above 1) and where future 
growth is expected to be positive / above the UK average.  The results of this analysis indicate 
that potential important growth sectors for Oldham include parts of the manufacturing sector, 
construction, distribution/logistics, professional and business support services, and health and 
social care (see Table 2.5).   

Table 2.7: Potential key growth sectors 

Sub-sectors Employment – location quotient above 1 and positive 
forecast growth 2015-34 

Buildings construction, engineering & specialised 
construction activities  

(10.5%) 

Land transport and transport via pipelines  (2.9%) 

Warehousing and support activities  (1.7%) 

Real estate activities  (3.7%) 

Other professional, scientific services  (1.2%) 

Employment activities  (3.5%) 

Human health activities (10.0%) 

Residential care activities  (2.2%) 

Social work activities (4.4%) 

Personal service activities (3.3%) 

*Percentage in brackets denotes size of sector as proportion of local economy 

2.3.7 Summary 

 Recent stronger growth in employment, although continued reliance on the public sector. 

 Large manufacturing base, including in high-tech sectors associated with advanced 
manufacturing. 

 Health, education, construction, wholesale & retail, logistics and property also important 
local employment sectors. 

 Under-representation in higher value added service sectors, such as finance and insurance.   

 Continued ‘enterprise gap’, with low levels of business growth and formation. 

 Forecasts suggest Oldham’s relative contribution to the GM economy is expected to decline. 

2.4 Recent business performance  

2.4.1 Key findings from the 2016 GM Business Survey  

To supplement the information on the business base highlighted above, primary data is also 
available regarding the performance of businesses within Oldham and across the GM sub-
region. A representative sample of over 1,400 businesses completed the recent 2016 GM 

Page 61



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

13 
 

Business Survey (65 from Oldham), which also carried out additional business profiling for the 
first time to identify the characteristics of high performing businesses. The key findings for the 
survey are outlined below.  Oldham businesses performed in line with Greater Manchester, 
unless otherwise stated:   

 Business confidence is relatively strong across GM with 31% of businesses reporting an 
increase in employment and 50% reporting an increase in turnover.  Oldham businesses 
were less confidents with only 42% reporting an increase in turnover, although 38% 
reported that it had stayed the same.  When asked about the implications of Brexit, 71% of 
companies reported no impact on investment decisions, 6% thought that the sales would 
increase, 10% of firms stated that investment decisions were on hold, while 13% reported 
they did not know what the implications would be.  

 Growth sectors - optimism among firms was broad based, but the strongest growth was 
achieved by businesses within the following sectors: 

 health and social care and health innovation; 

 creative and digital; and 

 business and professional services. 

 Drivers of growth – in terms of the key drivers of growth, businesses reported that 
‘products and services’ was the most important factor (47%) followed by workforce and 
skills (45%).  In Oldham, a higher proportion of businesses reported the importance of 
products and services.  

 Barriers to growth – the biggest barrier to growth among the business base is a lack of 
skilled staff (30% up from 24% in 2014) followed by access to markets and sales 
opportunities (27%) and access to finance (22%). 

 Workforce and skills – with regard to the workforce and skills, the survey confirmed:   

 skills as a key driver of growth as evidenced in the deep dive analysis – particularly 
for companies employing 50+ employees (67%)   

 14% of companies had hard to fill vacancies.  Over 60% of firms in manufacturing, 
transport and storage, information and communication cited lack of 
skills/qualifications as a reason for struggling to find skilled labour. 

 businesses were investing in workforce development.  73% of companies have 
invested in staff training, particularly external training, and there has been a slight 
increase in the number of apprenticeships recruited.  

 Exports – a fifth of the companies surveyed reported that they export goods and services 
which is comparable to the national average.  In terms of the sectors and markets, exporters 
included manufacturing companies (55%), creative and digital (43%), and retail and 
wholesale firms (31%).  Trade links were predominantly to the EU (75%), North America 
(48%), non-EU Europe (46%) and China (37%). 

Page 62



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

14 
 

 Products and services innovation –  of the companies surveyed, 80% had undertaken at 
least one innovative activity in the previous year.  This included investment in new 
plant/machinery, accessing knowledge and expertise to improve the business, and the 
introduction of new business structures and processes.  While innovation varied widely, it 
was a positive sign in terms of progress towards addressing gaps in innovation across the 
City Region.  However, the survey also indicated that a significant number of businesses 
(63%) did not understand Research and Development (R&D) tax credits.   

 Business support – in terms of awareness and accessing business support services the 
survey found:  

 awareness of the BGH(BGH) had increased to 45%, particularly among 
manufacturers (as the BGH previously had the Manufacturing Advisory Support 
contract) and businesses in the creative and digital sectors;   

 41% of companies have accessed some form of business support.  This included 
support from accountants/solicitors (16%), banks (9%), local authorities (9%) and the 
BGH increased to 12%; 

 the reason for accessing support was primarily to increase sales through marketing, 
general business growth and advice and help with workforce development.  A higher 
proportion of Oldham businesses reported accessing support for marketing; and 

 20% have used business mentors, although this is significantly lower for Oldham 
businesses.  Continuity planning remains a key issue for many firms.  

 Access to finance – with regard to funding, the survey found that: 

 77% of companies report rising costs (staff, IT, raw materials) as a key issue;   

 in line with national trends, 17% have sought finance in the last 12 months.  Finance 
for growth was up to 26% and finance for cashflow down to 27% from the high of 
49% in 2012;  

 manufacturing and construction firms reported that they would be seeking funds;  

 28% of firms will be seeking support from local/central government (doubled since 
2014), while 8% said they would consider business angels. Use of venture capital 
remains low at 2%.  

 Satisfaction with the local area – a significantly higher proportion of Oldham businesses 
reported satisfaction with the affordability of premises, access to public transport, and 
access to road transport.   The issues businesses reported dissatisfaction with related to 
availability of parking, crime and anti-social behavior and business rate costs.   

 Business relocations – in total, only 17% of businesses identified that they were considering 
full or partial relocation (55% within the local authority area, 33% elsewhere in GM). 

2.4.2 Characteristics of high performing companies and implications for the Business and Investment 

Strategy  

Page 63



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

15 
 

In addition to the detailed survey results, the 2016 survey also included additional business 
profiling for the first time, to identify the key characteristics of high performing companies 
compared with non-high performers.  For the purposes of the analysis, high performing 
companies were defined as those with 20% growth in turnover and/or employment and the 
results of the profiling are shown below:   

Table 2.8:  Characteristics of high performing companies in GM 

Key characteristics  High performers Non-high performers 

Sectors: 
Business, financial and professional  
Creative and digital  

 
27% 
20% 

 
18% 
10% 

Smaller businesses employing 10 staff or fewer  87% 70% 

Established, but still relatively young businesses (3-5 years) 17% 10% 

Engaged in training  84% 70% 

Engaged in international trade 30% 22% 

Management and Leadership: 
Advice/support on leadership and management  
Will seek advice/support in the next 12 months leadership  
Leadership skills of mentors  
Use of own leadership experience to mentor others 

 
35% 
48% 
30% 
20% 

 
24% 
29% 
18% 
12% 

Engaged in innovative activity  90% 78% 

Business support  
Accessed business support  
Will do so in the future  

 
53% 
86% 

 
38% 
76% 

2.4.3 Implications of the findings for the Business and Investment Strategy 

Analysis of the survey results and the key characteristics of the high performing companies 
provides evidence to support the activities and priorities required to improve the growth of 
firms based in the Oldham area: 
  

 Implications for the Business and Investment Strategy:  

 The results highlight the need for sector specific targeting  

 The drivers/barriers to growth highlight the importance and need to invest in 
products and services (and innovation related to products and services) and 
skills/workforce development   

 Use of a business database to target potential growth companies, including smaller 
businesses and businesses that have been trading for a relatively short period of time 
to facilitate growth and enhance survival rates 

 Promoting awareness and access to the full range of business support on offer for 
businesses in the area, including: 

 business advice – from both public and private sector partners (including the 
Council, Business Growth Hub, Chamber, and local professional firms); 

Page 64



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

16 
 

 skills training – via Get Oldham Working and the Colleges;  

 increasing trade and exporting – via the Chamber and the Regional Department 
for International Trade advisor based at the Manchester Growth Company;  

 innovation – through the Innovate UK advisor based at the Manchester Growth 
Company; and 

 management and Leadership support – from the Executive Management 
Programme being delivered by the Business Growth Hub.  This contract has been 
sub-contracted to a consortium of local partners in Oldham.    

Page 65



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

17 
 

3 Current arrangements 

3.1 Introduction  

This section describes the range of business support that is available for businesses in the 
Oldham area, feedback from key stakeholder agencies - both partners and businesses - 
regarding the current business support offer and some of the key barriers to growth, and the 
role of the Council in providing future support.   A summary of the business support delivered by 
each partner is set out in Table 3.1.  

3.2 Existing business support provision 

3.2.1 Oldham Council  

There are currently a number of business facing teams within Oldham Council, but the provision 
and co-ordination of support to assist the establishment, growth and attraction of businesses to 
the area is provided by the Strategic Investment Team.  This team undertakes a variety of roles 
including management of the Town Centre and Markets and developing and promoting tourism 
and Place Marketing in Oldham.  Their primary roles involve relationship management; 
facilitation between internal and external agencies; and the provision of information and advice.  
The team’s priorities are to: 

 support local businesses to stay, thrive and grow, strengthening the borough’s economy and 
creating local jobs; 

 work with local and regional partners to encourage enterprise and entrepreneurship 
through support of a number of targeted initiatives and programmes; 

 support existing and attract new retail investment in town and district centres; and  

 secure significant inward investment and partnerships to sustain regeneration activity 
across the borough and strengthen the local economy.  

Other internal teams that interact with businesses include: 

 Business Rates  

 Licensing  

 Building Control 

 Planning  

 Town Centre and Markets  

 Property management – delivered by Unity Partnership  

 Libraries  

 Public Protection  

Page 66



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

18 
 

3.2.2 Get Oldham Working (GOW) 

Get Oldham Working was established by Oldham Council in May 2013 to support local residents 
into sustainable jobs.  Since then the initiative has created over 2015 work related opportunities 
for local people.  GOW provides a range of recruitment and training support for individuals and 
businesses including:  

 employability skills and training for individuals outside the labour market; 

 apprenticeships and traineeships; 

 a work club for individuals to develop their job search skills;  

 a ‘Fair Employment Charter’ for businesses to sign up to, that demonstrates their 
commitment to providing employment opportunities for local people;   

 recruitment support for local businesses and a skills diagnostic service to identify workforce 
development issues acting as a barrier to growth; and  

 the provision of tailored sector development programmes to overcome key workforce 
development issues – for example the ‘Warehouse to Wheels scheme’ developed in 
conjunction with Mantra Learning Limited, to boost the skills of those in the logistics 
industry.  The programme directly addressed the shortage of Large Goods Vehicle (LGV) 
drivers in the borough by enabling employers to advance their careers and help Oldham 
businesses to grow. 

3.2.3 Oldham Enterprise Trust  

The Oldham Enterprise Trust has been established to improve the employability of Oldham 
residents and to promote enterprise which will contribute to long-term economic growth of the 
borough.  As part of the 'Get Oldham Working' initiative, the Trust, kick-started by a £1m 
donation from The Stoller Charitable Trust, aims to help the next generation of entrepreneurs 
get start-up businesses off the ground and also aims to support young people into employment.  

A small team is responsible for administering the funding on behalf of the Trust, which is co-
located with the Strategic Investment Team in the Council.  They provide a portal for start-up 
and growth companies to access the wide range of business funding that is available alongside 
free business advice and support. 

Following on from the initial funding that was provided by The Stoller Trust and the success of 
the fund in terms of assisting start-up companies, a further £2 million has been ringfenced for 
new companies and young people in the borough.  The Trust has been working with Business 
Finance Solutions, part of the Manchester Growth Company, to secure match funding to expand 
the offer to other businesses with growth potential across the area.  This ‘White Label 
Enterprise Fund’ will only be open for businesses in the Oldham local authority area, but other 
GM areas are developing similar products. 

 

 

Page 67



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

19 
 

3.2.4 Manchester Growth Company 

The Manchester Growth Company’s (MGC) business support and business finance division exists 
to provide Greater Manchester’s companies with a complete suite of services to support their 
growth and promote new enterprise.  Service design is aligned to the needs and opportunities 
of the area’s companies, with a focus on SMEs with growth potential, and the needs of Greater 
Manchester’s economy.   

The Business Support and Business Finance division of MGC comprises: 

 Business Growth Hub;  

 International Trade – delivered in partnership with the Chambers of Commerce and 
provision of grants for exporting; 

 MIDAS – inward investment;  

 Business Finance Solutions – providing loans to businesses unable to access mainstream 
funding; and 

 Programme and Initiatives. 

The Business Growth Hub, established in 2011, acts as a central point for accessing an 
integrated set of business support services in GM whether they are provided directly by the 
Hub, elsewhere within the MGC Group or externally by other providers in the public or private 
sector.   

Using a range of sources including the European Regional Development Fund, GM Combined 
Authority, Regional Growth Fund, Local Authorities, BIS funding, Government contracts such as 
UKTI (now DIT), Innovate UK and the European Investment fund, the BGH provides the following 
services to businesses across the GM area: 

 advice for start-ups and growth companies;  

 access to finance; 

 digital innovation; eco-innovation; innovation growth; 

 enquiries team and business diagnostics;  

 executive development programme;  

 mentoring;  

 sector development programmes – digital, creative, technology; life sciences; low carbon; 
manufacturing; textiles; and  

 workforce development.    

The BGH provides services for businesses in all the Local Authority areas across the GM area.  
Oldham Council is in the process of securing additional business support over and above this 
provision, through investment to support lifestyle businesses, business diagnostics and 
workforce development and additional capacity through the Executive Development 

Page 68



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

20 
 

Programme which provides management and leadership support for potential growth 
companies.   

3.2.5 Oldham Chamber  

Oldham Chamber of Commerce is part of the wider GM Chamber.  The Chamber currently has 
approximately 300 members and provides a range of business support services (including 
information and export advice) and networking for member companies.  To assist members 
connect with each other, the Chamber runs a series of free ‘Action For Business’ networking 
events. Based on feedback from these events, the Chamber’s activity in Oldham is currently 
focused on: 

 the digital economy: 

 skills – working with Oldham College as they establish a digital career college and 
drop in centre for potential businesses in the area to interact with students; 

 supporting the Web Apps Academy's apprenticeship scheme with Employer 
Ownership of Skills funding; and  

 connectivity - extending the digital connectivity demand aggregation pilot to the 
Oldham area.   

 young enterprise – to encourage the business community to engage with their local 
education establishments as an investment in the future workforce. The Chamber is 
currently working on a way to make it simpler and easier for companies to help schools and 
colleges; and  

 construction – work is ongoing to ensure that the property and construction sector 
members are aware of the pipeline of work in the region and the Chamber plays a key role 
in servicing the construction network group.   

3.2.6 Oldham College  

Oldham College provides vocational training and apprenticeship support for businesses across 
the area.  The College provides support for businesses in helping them to recruit and train 
potential employees through a range of innovative services provided by a team with sector 
based experience.   The college aims to provide training, skills development and apprentices 
that will: 

 provide the expertise to grow the business;   

 improve the productivity and competitiveness of the business; and  

 provide trainees and upskilling to counterbalance an ageing workforce.  

In line with policy and changes to vocational education and training, the College places a much 
stronger emphasis on technical competence and academic rigour, including a strong focus on 
English and Mathematics.  Specialist staff are at the heart of the business support team to 
ensure that provision is tailored to the needs of the employer, and labour market intelligence.  

Page 69



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

21 
 

They also engage employer advisory boards to advise on curriculum design to ensure industry 
expertise improves teaching and learning and enhances student and apprentice experiences.  

To meet the challenges of the priority sectors, the College has seven sector facing faculties in 
the following areas:  

 caring professions; 

 construction and the built environment; 

 digital and creative; 

 finance and professional services; 

 performing arts; 

 retail and commerce; and  

 sport, travel and public services.  

Each faculty is supported by an employer facing Sector Team who work directly with employers 
and their employees. 

3.2.7 Other Partners 

There are a range of other business support providers such as the Federation of Small 
Businesses and the Princes Trust, that provide support for business start-ups and growing 
businesses across the area.   

3.3 Summary of the business support and providers in the area  

Table 3.1 provides a summary of the range of business support services delivered in the Oldham 
and the key partners involved in delivery.  The summary has been presented by the type of 
support on offer: 

 business advice;  

 finance; 

 research, development, innovation;  

 place marketing and attracting investors;   

 sites and premises; and  

 skills and workforce development. 

 

 

 

Page 70



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

22 
 

Table 3.1: Existing Business and Investment Support in Oldham  Manchester Growth 

Company  

Oldham 

Chamber 

Oldham 

Council 

Oldham 

Enterprise Trust 

Oldham 

College 

Other partners 

Business Advice 
(including 
regulatory advice)   

Information (& business intelligence)  BGH     FSB;PT 

Start-up advice/Youth Enterprise  BGH     FSB;PT 

Business growth - advice  BGH     FSB 

Mentoring  BGH     FSB 

Targeted sectoral growth   BGH     FSB 

Networking  BGH     FSB 

Regulatory advice and support  BGH      

Finance  Start-up grant funding BFS     FSB/PT 

Micro loans  BFS      

Business loans BFS      

Export finance  BFS      

Equity investment  BFS      

Research, 
development, 
Innovation  

Research, development, innovation - advice   Innovate UK; BGH     RSC 

Funding  Innovate UK     RSC 

Collaboration Innovate UK     RSC 

Place marketing 
and attracting 
investors   

Export services UKTI (DIT); BGH      

Marketing and promotion of Oldham  MIDAS      

Events for overseas investors UKTI (DIT)       

Investor services (package of support) MIDAS      

Sites and Premises  Council land and property – info/advice  MIDAS  UNITY    

Commercial land and property –info/advice   MIDAS  UNITY    

Funding for sites and premises        

Skills and 
workforce 
development  

Recruitment  Work Co; Skills Co  GOW    

Workforce development; Apprenticeships   Work Co; Skills Co  GOW   RSC 

Business/sector training  Work Co; Skills Co  GOW    

P
age 71



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

23 
 

3.4 Feedback on existing provision 

To inform the development of the Business and Investment Strategy, a range of consultations 
have been carried out to assess the effectiveness and suitability of the existing business 
engagement mechanisms within the Council and to gather feedback from key stakeholders, 
both businesses and partner agencies, regarding the current delivery landscape and issues that 
need to be addressed moving forward.  A summary of the findings is presented below.   

3.4.1 Feedback from the review of business engagement in the Council  

The review of business engagement in the Council was carried out by KIER in October 2016, 
through a series of workshops and one to one discussions with council departments and local 
business leaders.  The headline findings identified: 

 the valued support provided by the Strategic Investment Team (SIT) particularly among 
business leaders, and the need to increase the capacity of the team; 

 the account management function needs enhancing in line with best practice, as one to one 
relationships with business leaders are recognised as the most effective engagement 
mechanism;  

 that the initial routing of business enquiries needs to be improved, to free up senior staff 
time;  

 greater collaboration is required with other business facing teams, to add capacity and 
identify potential growth companies that will benefit from support; and   

 pro-active targeting of businesses and sectors is constrained by a lack of business 
intelligence – investment is needed in collection, analysis and dissemination of information. 

3.4.2 Feedback from partner agencies on current provision  

Consultations were held with the Business Growth Hub, Oldham Chamber of Commerce, Get 
Oldham Working, the chair of the Oldham Business Leadership Group and Oldham Enterprise 
Trust, and Oldham College regarding existing business support provision and joint working 
among the agencies.  The feedback identified a number of key issues outlined below, which 
have key implications for future provision:   

 the Strategic Investment Team (SIT) are currently reactive in terms of assisting businesses in 
the borough.  The activities of the team need to shift towards a more proactive rather than 
reactive engagement and support service and targeting companies with the potential to 
grow, via more effective working practices and additional capacity;  

 greater co-ordination of business facing teams in the council is required (SIT, business rates, 
licensing, commercial property) with clear protocols required to gather business 
intelligence, share data with the central SIT and make effective referrals to external 
agencies;  

Page 72



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

24 
 

 better communication and data sharing among the key business support agencies is 
required and importance given to managing the strategic relationships and oversight of the 
business support being provided by the various agencies (Council, Chamber, BGH/MGC);  

 more effective identification and targeting of companies with the potential to grow, using a 
business database in conjunction with the Council’s CRM system (Tractivity) and 
strengthening the account management function within the Council;  

 increased marketing and promotion of the business support on offer for start-ups, existing 
businesses and potential investors through the provision of a database and menu of support 
available from the new website and targeted marketing using the new business database;  

 enhance the team responsible for servicing business enquiries and signposting businesses 
and provide training/up to date information for the call centre staff to direct enquiries more 
effectively;  

 greater use and promotion of business rate incentives and rent subsidies, and procurement 
mechanisms to secure employment and training and supply chain opportunities for local 
residents and businesses; and  

 improve joint working and engagement of all partners at the investment planning stages.  

3.4.3 Feedback from businesses  

A series of discussions were also held with businesses representing the key priority sectors 
within the local economy, to understand their existing relationship, if any, with the Council and 
their views on the business support provided, key barriers to growth (and solutions) and the 
role of the Council in providing support.  The consultations identified:   

 good relationships with the council where they exist, with generally positive feedback 
regarding the support received;     

 a lack of awareness and understanding of the broader council offer, particularly in relation 
to assisting businesses and the need for more effective marketing and promotion, 
signposting, and production of timely information with a plea to ‘keep it simple’; 

 the need to consolidate and capitalise on recent investments made particularly in the Town 
Centre (e.g. leisure and retail development) and the need to address issues such as Town 
Centre Parking which impact on these sectors in particular; 

 a need to streamline/co-ordinate networking events as the ‘same people attend every 
event’- and are predominantly professionals.  For example, networking events are currently 
organised by the Oldham Business Leadership Group, Oldham 100; Professional Oldham, 
Oldham Chamber; and the Business Growth Hub;   

 a requirement to get the balance right and recognition of the need to promote both public 
and private sector business support providers – for example the BGH and the use of local 
companies/professionals; 

 an appetite for growth – but some investment decisions on hold given current economic 
climate and implications arising from the decision to leave the EU; 

Page 73



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

25 
 

 attracting skilled individuals remains a key issue for a number of industries, and retention of 
skilled labour.  The mobility of the workforce is also increasing important particularly for 
health and social care and the logistics industries given their operating hours and managing 
this introduction of the minimum living wage;  

 a recognition that the Council can only go so far.  Given their limited capacity, more 
signposting is required where specific business support is required to grow the company 
(e.g. exporting, innovation advice and funding); and  

 bigger companies would welcome one to one dialogue and engagement with the council.  

3.5 Challenges and opportunities for business growth in the area 

3.5.1 SWOT  

A summary of the key strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats to the growth of the 
business base within Oldham, based on the feedback from partners, businesses and the review 
of the existing delivery landscape and economic context is set out in the box below.  The key 
messages for future delivery are also provided. 

Strengths  

• Good connectivity – motorways, tram, access to 
the rail network  

• Diverse & vibrant community  

• Colleges and UTC – vocational and academic  

• Sector strengths – e.g. manufacturing, logistics 

• Family owned businesses wanting to stay in 
Oldham 

• Sector-based networks/groups  

• Affordable sites and premises  

Weaknesses   

• Low skills and multiple deprivation  

• Peripherality (within GM conurbation)   

• Limited dialogue with businesses and understanding of 
business needs     

• Lack of awareness/active promotion of the business 
support offer   

• Business survival rates  

• Limited supply of readily available good quality sites 
and premises 

• Image  

Opportunities  

• Recent investment in strategic sites (including 
the City Centre)  

• Active business leaders and potential 
‘ambassadors’ GM Spatial Framework – new 
housing and employment floorspace (industrial, 
warehousing, office, retail, leisure) 

• Good business support offer and network of 
providers - BGH; ringfenced funding for start-ups 
and business growth (Oldham Enterprise Trust); 
GOW 

• Devolution – more collaborative working with 
private sector  

• Apprenticeship Levy 

Threats  

• Continued out migration of young people/skilled 
individuals  

• Disparities widening across GM – north/south divide  

• Regulations   

• Accessing EU market opportunities  

   

Page 74



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

26 
 

3.5.2 Implications for future delivery 

The consultations with businesses focused more on the process of engagement and the role of 
the council and other business support providers rather than the business support 
product/service and therefore gaps in provision.  This was partly as a result of the lack of 
awareness among the businesses of the support on offer.  The key messages regarding future 
delivery relate to the need for:  

 proactive vs reactive engagement and support: 

 greater use of business intelligence;  

 key account management system;  

 more effective referrals internally and externally;   

 identifying and targeting growth companies and sectors; 

 greater awareness of the business support offer; and  

 data sharing among partner agencies.  

 

 

 

 

Page 75



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

27 
 

4 Vision and strategic objectives 

4.1 Vision  

The overarching Strategic Investment Framework set out the following vision for Oldham: 

‘To be a key economic contributor to Greater Manchester, providing a place where business and 
enterprise can thrive and where people will want to live, visit and work.  It will also be a place 

where every resident is enabled to contribute to and benefit from the continued economic 
growth of the City Region’. 

This vision will be achieved through a range of actions supporting: 

 Place -  an attractive, efficient and distinctive environment where business and enterprise 
can thrive and where people will want to live, visit and work. 

 People – an inclusive and cohesive community with a skilled, educated and dynamic 
workforce and decent, secure and well paid jobs. 

 Business - a balanced and growing local economy which supports more business start-ups, 
increased business survival rates and attracts more inward investment. 

4.2 Strategic objectives 

The business and investment strategy will support the achievement of the above vision for 
Oldham. It will assist in creating a balanced local economy, that includes both high value added 
jobs and employment opportunities for local residents. by: 

 raising the profile of Oldham as a business location;  

 de-risking the investment process for companies looking to relocate and expand in 
Oldham;  

 increasing the survival, retention and growth opportunities for indigenous businesses 
(including social enterprises); 

 promoting the development of an enterprise culture and assisting more business start-
ups; and 

 ensuring that businesses are fully aware of the support available to enable them to 
innovate and grow.  

4.3 Activities  

To facilitate the growth of the business base and capacity within it, Oldham Council will work 
with existing partners and networks to co-ordinate approaches. The priorities for action are 
considered below under three broad headings: 

 business intelligence, engagement and marketing; 

Page 76



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

28 
 

 business support services; and 

 sectoral development. 

4.3.1 Developing a shared approach to business intelligence, engagement and marketing  

Improved collection, analysis and dissemination of business intelligence 

The regular review and analysis of trends and developments and dissemination of resulting 
findings amongst partners will be essential to ensure the continued relevance of this strategy 
and its component activities. Such developments will include wider economic and sectoral 
changes as well as changing needs and opportunities within the Oldham economy. Such 
‘external’ review will be particularly important not just because of the accelerating rate of 
technological changes that will affect the prospects for many industries (as well as potentially 
giving rise to new market opportunities), but also because of the considerable uncertainties 
affecting the wider macro-economic climate – not least as a consequence of Brexit.   

Business engagement and establishment of a key account management system  

Within Oldham, and across the City Region, there are a range of partners providing business 
support and mentoring to new start-ups and existing businesses as outlined earlier in section 3 
and summarised in Table 3.1.  These include, for example, the Council, Oldham Chamber of 
Commerce, the Oldham Enterprise Trust and the BGH and associated partners in the 
Manchester Growth Company.   

Moving forward, a business engagement and support strategy or protocol will be necessary to 
ensure that: 

 wasteful overlaps or needless competition in provision are avoided; 

 providers and businesses are aware of the full range of provision available; and 

 effective ‘pathways’ for businesses are in place with appropriate signposting and referrals. 

The development of an ‘Oldham Business Support Offer’ managed by personal business advisors 
will be crucial to streamlining support and delivering a coherent service.  The business advisor 
will be responsible for managing individual business accounts and ensuring (and monitoring) the 
support arranged through it for each business. Business account or relationship managers will 
provide a key role in coordinating the package of support available for the business and 
streamlining the process for securing assistance.   

Marketing and promotion  

Marketing and promotional activities are important in raising the profile of an area, of the 
businesses within it and in attracting inward investment.  They are also important in ensuring 
business awareness of potential opportunities and of the support services available. 

It will be important to ensure that marketing and promotional activities take place at the 
appropriate level and that, in particular, they are properly coordinated with activities at the 
wider City Region level – including those of Manchester’s inward investment agency MIDAS. 
MIDAS aims to secure inward investment into the City Region working alongside partners such 

Page 77



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

29 
 

as UKTI which works to boost British exports and to facilitate business investment in the UK. As 
well as working with businesses already based in the city region, these agencies seek to target 
priority international markets and sectors, by developing commercial propositions that 
demonstrate why the region is an appropriate location.  The role of the Oldham Strategic 
investment team should be to ensure that an appropriate ‘business offer’ is in place for relevant 
potential investors once their interest has been secured. This offer needs to include a range of 
support and assistance to find suitable property, skilled people, finance and support and to help 
embed them into local networks  

Similarly, the marketing of Oldham needs to be coordinated with activities in the wider City 
Region which will require close working with agencies such as Marketing Manchester.  Key 
priorities will include: 

 the development of a designated ‘Oldham Ambassador’ role linked into the Manchester City 
Region’s Global Ambassador programme (‘MBASSADOR’) delivered by Marketing 
Manchester to facilitate this joint working; 

 establishment of a shared business events calendar; and  

 the development of a new website for the Strategic Investment Team/Business Support 
Functions delivered by the council, which incorporates and expands the content developed 
for the Invest in Oldham website.  

4.3.2 Developing and promoting Oldham’s Business Support Offer:  

The range of business support services on offer, and their mode of delivery, should be both 
comprehensive and capable of being tailored to the specific requirements of individual 
businesses. Certain principles should underpin their provision. They should be: 

 coordinated through a personal business advisor or ‘business account manager’ role to 
ensure that assistance is streamlined and co-ordinated on behalf of the business;  

 demand-led, and responsive to changes taking place within the industries in Oldham, 
particularly the growth sectors and industries facing rapid technological change;   

 prioritised for businesses that will seek to maximise the job opportunities for local people 
and address social inclusion;  

 inclusive and available for all businesses and individuals within the borough (with equality 
principles embedded in all support on offer) and with a particular focus on the promotion 
of social enterprise; and     

 monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the activity is delivering value for money, 
relevant to the needs of businesses and achieving the intended outcomes and benefits. 

The following summarises the different components of a business support offer for Oldham. 

Business information, advice and guidance 

The provision of good quality, impartial business advice and mentoring is critical for businesses 
at all stages of their development – from start-up onwards.  The type and intensity of advice 

Page 78



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

30 
 

needed will differ from business to business - depending on, for example, size, type, sector and 
stage of development. The first step therefore should be the development of a business needs 
analysis or diagnostic session with a qualified business advisor, to determine the type of support 
required – for example, business planning, access to finance, access to premises, help to find 
the right people or upskilling the existing workforce, breaking into new markets or assistance to 
develop, protect and exploit new ideas.  This ‘lead’ advisor will then be responsible for 
managing the business account and the support arranged through it on behalf of the business.       

Other investment priorities/activities should include: 

 provision of shared services for business start-ups and SMEs to complement existing 
provision (for example, The Acorn Business Centre; the E3 Business and Enterprise Hub; 
Falcon Business Centre); 

 development of additional incubation space and innovation centres in key locations (e.g. as 
part of the new office quarter); and  

 facilitation of new linkages with key partners to tailor other business support to meet 
Oldham’s needs - for example, the Colleges in relation to apprenticeship support and 
upskilling; and the Unity Partnership with regard to property and business premises. 

Regulatory support/access to council services 

The range of statutory and other regulatory requirements, and the work involved in compliance 
with them, can on occasion represent a barrier or disincentive to business activity and new 
investment. Advice on the scope of potential regulatory requirements and assistance in 
ensuring their compliance should be provided as part of the business advisory service. This 
should cover, for example, environmental health, trading standards, licensing, fire safety and 
planning and building control issues /requirements. The service should comprise an initial free 
business diagnostic service advising on the scope of regulatory requirements and should 
signpost businesses to relevant information and any specialist support that may be required. It 
should also follow-up referrals and ensure that appropriate and satisfactory responses are being 
secured. 

Access to finance 

There are a range of potential funding options to support new business start-ups, and to assist 
existing businesses (including social enterprises) invest and grow, which include grants, loans, 
and venture capital.  These come from a range of sources including European funds, 
Government funding and the private sector (including banks and alternative sources such as 
peer to business lending e.g. accessed through platforms such as Funding Circle). 

At a local level, there are a number of area based Business Improvement Grants available to 
support businesses in key locations within Oldham (e.g. Failsworth, Shaw and Lees, and Oldham 
Independent Quarter) and funding available through the Oldham Enterprise Trust for new start-
ups and growth companies.  Across the City Region, the BGH promotes a range of specific grants 
and loans to support export, and growth of individual sectors (e.g. Textiles Growth Programme).   

While details of the various sources of finance is available for businesses through the Council 
and BGH websites, more pro-active advice and support, in conjunction with business planning, 

Page 79



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

31 
 

can often be required by businesses to access funding and understand the most appropriate 
route.  While all relevant agencies (such as the Council and Chamber) will have an important 
role in raising general awareness of business finance availability, the Business Account manager 
will have a key role in facilitating access, as part of a broader package of support for the 
company.    

Other potential areas for development will include:  

 the development of relationships with funders including local banks and other lenders 
(including venture capital providers);  

 active marketing and signposting support to raise awareness, through business events, 
websites, and via the network of business account/relationship managers;    

 development of a grant/loan scheme - including turnover rent offer for Council premises for 
business start-ups; and  

 development of a business rates scheme and policy that supports the delivery of objectives 
– as set out below.  

Sites and premises 

The management, marketing and sale/lease of Council land and property (industrial, retail, 
office) in the Oldham area is outsourced to the Unity Partnership.  The availability of suitable, 
high quality sites and premises is a key factor in attracting new businesses to the area and 
enabling existing businesses to expand and grow as part of the wider package of business 
support on offer.  The Council therefore plays an important role in working with both the Unity 
Partnership and other Commercial property providers, to oversee provision and ensure that the 
business stock is fit for purpose.   

Table 4.1 below provides an indication of the amount of business floorspace currently available 
for businesses in Oldham and how this has grown (e.g. the office and retail stock) and 
contracted (e.g. the industrial stock) over the last ten years:  

Table 4.1: Business floorspace in Oldham (000's sq m) 

 

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Office 170 174 180 179 187 183 185 188 188 189 

Industrial 2,723 2,623 2,485 2,408 2,297 2,281 2,278 2,259 2,245 2,250 

Retail 366 380 383 401 397 402 404 403 407 409 

Source: NDR Business Floorspace, Valuation Office Agency (2016) 

A more detailed audit of the overall business stock is currently required to understand the scale, 
quality and availability of sites and premises across the borough. This will also seek to identify 
the key issues leading to the under-performance of some centres such as the Falcon Business 
Centre and the characteristics of the better performing, privately operated centres (e.g. the 
Chambers Business Centre) so that lessons and best practice can be transferred.   

Page 80



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

32 
 

In addition to overseeing the provision of business stock, Oldham Council also leads on 
regeneration and the strategic development of key sites within the area – for example, Oldham 
City Centre, Hollinwood and Foxdenton.  These schemes are of strategic significance and will 
contribute to ensuring that the provision of commercial premises within Oldham supports the 
long term economic growth aspirations for the borough.  

The Strategic Investment team plays a key role in brokering partnerships between the public 
and private sector and creating a supportive environment to address market failures that act as 
a barrier to the delivery of these strategically significant schemes.  In particular, by bringing 
forward the development of strategic sites and premises and working with the various Joint 
Venture vehicles in place and other site owners / developers to deliver, promote and market the 
developments. In addition to the further transformation of the Town Centre, and the 
development of the schemes highlighted above, this will also include sites identified through the 
GMSF (for example the Northern Gateway Sites) and other sites that could accommodate 
growth sector developments (for example manufacturing, logistics).   

Through effective engagement of the indigenous business base, entrepreneurs, potential new 
inward investors and key stakeholders (including MIDAS, the Business Growth Hub, and 
Employment and Skills agencies), the team will assist in co-ordinating and stimulating demand 
for new commercial business premises.  These demonstration effects will in turn contribute to 
addressing information problems that act as a barrier to commercial investment within parts of 
the borough, particularly in relation to higher value uses and enhancing investor confidence.   

Table x below, identifies the potential benefits that could be realised through the development 
of the schemes identified above.  These include new employment floorspace, additional 
business rates income for the borough of some £4.5m and new operational jobs in excess of 
4,000.   
  

Table 4.2: Projected benefits from the development of the key strategic sites in Oldham  

Site  New Employment 
Floorspace  (GIA sq m)  

Additional Business Rates 
per annum (£’000) 

Potential new operational 
jobs  

Oldham City Centre  50,000 £2,240 1,320 

Hollinwood  25,000 £600 760 

Foxdenton  65,000 £1,650 2,100 

Total  140,000 £4,490 4,180 

Initial master-planning for Northern Gateway strategic sites around Junctions 20 and 21 of the 
M62 motorway, have identified potential capacity for almost 800,000 sq m of commercial 
floorspace, alongside new housing, which could generate business rates income of up to £30 
million per annum. The Council is working with partners to refine the proposals and while the 
level of commercial provision within this area is expected to reduce over the plan period, 
activity would nevertheless be expected to generate significant business rates income over the 
medium to long term. 

Oldham Investment Fund  

Page 81



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

33 
 

The term ‘business rates’ is commonly used for non-domestic rates, a tax on the occupation of 
non-domestic property – often referred to as NNDR (National Non-Domestic Rates). Properties 
are assessed in a rating list with a rateable value and the 2010  list (reflecting values as at April 
2008) was updated in April to the 2017 list.  The rateable value for each heraditament is 
multiplied by a centrally-set multiplier (the Uniform Business Rate multiplier or UBR) to produce 
the annual bill. A number of reliefs are available, such as those for charities and small 
businesses, alongside transitional relief (when premises are vacated) and discretionary relief. 
Billing and collection is the responsibility of local authorities which benefit from tax receipts.   

The use of business rates to fund specific economic investments or to provide reliefs to 
stimulate demand offers significant potential. 

The Council could consider opportunities to use ringfenced business rates to create an 
Investment Fund, which would be based on a Tax Increment Finance (TIF) type approach, and 
thus support investment to deliver new commercial premises.  Under a TIF mechanism, the 
projected growth in business rates can be used to fund upfront costs associated with addressing 
barriers to development and enabling economic growth, particularly where these costs cannot 
be funded through the value generated by the scheme. Under this arrangement, subject to 
identifying a compliant case for investment, Oldham Council (as the collecting authority) would 
raise finance through borrowing to pay for the cost of delivering the infrastructure, with loans 
repaid through the growth in business rates income. Finance could be raised through either 
public or private borrowings, with the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) providing the most 
financially attractive rates. The Investment Fund could be used to invest in projects that 
generate sufficient additional business rates to sustain the Fund and provide surplus business 
rates income (see Figure 1) 

Figure 4.1: Oldham Investment Fund 

 

By way of example, the economic impact assessment of the Oldham Town Centre Masterplan 
identified that with appropriate support an estimated 55,000 sq m of new and refurbished 
employment floorspace and 975 new homes could be created, resulting in some 1,300 gross 
jobs.  Once fully developed, £2.2 million per annum of business rates would be generated.  
Allowing for a 15 year delivery period, this could potentially be sufficient – based on current 
PWLB rates – to support prudential borrowing of £13 million. 

New Commercial Floorspace

Oldham Investment Fund

Increase in 
business rates

Investment 
package

Page 82



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

34 
 

The Council also has the ability to grant relief from business rates on a discretionary basis. 
Therefore, the Fund could also be used to provide business rates relief to businesses to 
stimulate investment. At present the level of discretionary relief is very limited – c.£300-£400k 
per annum. The majority of this is currently provided to Academies (who attract 80% statutory 
relief, with discretionary relief on the balance) but could be extended. 

While offering significant potential, arrangements for the collection and retention of business 
rates by Oldham Council are currently subject to change associated with: 

 local government finance pilot – along with the other Greater Manchester authorities -  as 
well as Cheshire East and Cheshire West & Chester - Oldham is piloting changes to the local 
government finance arrangements. The Council will retain all business rates income (subject 
to a pooling agreement between the partner authorities), while previously it retained 
around 50% (with the balance going back to the government). The pooling agreement forms 
the basis for a safety net, in case of significant reduction in business rates income (below 
92.5%, although some partners are pressing for this threshold to be increased).  Under 
these arrangements the full retention of rates replaces the Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
and Public Health Grant. The new arrangements will result in significant risk to Oldham as 
business rates income is expected to remain broadly stable while demand for public health 
funding is expected to continue to increase, resulting in pressure on budgets; 

 2017 revaluation – in Oldham, there is significant uncertainty in relation to the business 
rates baseline position.  The 2017 revaluation has had only a limited impact on the total 
‘rateable value’ across the Borough – with a reduction from c. £159 million to £157.5 
million. However, the revaluation is expected to attract significant challenges, with a high 
risk of appeals. The Council currently has £8 million in reserve due to the risk associated 
with the appeals process; and 

 small business relief – changes to arrangements for small business relief means that the 
impact on the business rates income in Oldham will be disproportionate, as a significant 
proportion of local businesses now attract relief. Modelling of the financial implications of 
this change is ongoing. 

The justification for creating an Investment Fund would need to be supported by a robust 
business case, with clear financial and economic cases that provide a level of return to support 
the ongoing delivery of Council services – alongside an assessment of risk.   

Support to access new markets 

Key to the development and growth of businesses is the ability to access new and expanding 
markets. Marketing and promotional events and initiatives developed with appropriate partners 
and involving businesses have an important role to play in promoting general awareness, 
particularly in external markets, of local business capacity and capability. More focused market 
research and/or marketing is often important in the development of start-ups and of new 
ventures by existing businesses and may be an appropriate focus for advisory and other 
support. 

In addition, however ‘new markets’ are not always external. The development of effective and 
efficient supply chains provides a mechanism for improving competitive advantage for 

Page 83



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

35 
 

businesses and for entrenching and consolidating businesses within an area – thus helping to 
protect and consolidate their local economic impact.  Various mechanisms exist to promote 
supply chain linkages, with communication playing a key role in the process - for example, meet 
the buyer events and the development of local capacity registers. Regular dialogue with 
businesses in the same industry and buyers/service providers is crucial to ensure that changes 
are communicated and cascaded through the (existing and potential) supply chain. In addition, 
in appropriate instances more interventionist approaches can be taken such as the use of 
contract clauses in the procurement process (including purchasing by the local authority itself).     

 

Research and development and innovation (R&D&I) 

Innovation enhances productivity, output and the development of new products and processes. 
It is a key enabling force for economic growth and for economic transformation - leading to a 
more knowledge-based and higher value economy.  In addition to the research capabilities of 
existing firms, the presence of, and ability to access, research expertise (including Higher 
Education Institutions (HEIs) and other research centres) plays a key role in developing and 
maintaining an area’s skill base and providing a sustainable infrastructure to promote 
innovation and growth. 

The innovation system nationally has been characterised by relatively low levels of R&D 
expenditure compared to other global economic powers.  While particular strengths can be 
identified in areas such as university-business collaboration and the quality of Higher Education, 
the overall level of investment in innovation by businesses lags behind international 
competitors.  However, the UK’s research base continues to top international benchmarks 
(including institutions within MCR) including its research systems, intellectual assets and 
academic entrepreneurship.   

In Oldham, and the wider City Region, growth through innovation and encouraging a general 
uplift in R&D spending and knowledge transfer through greater industry/university 
collaborations will continue to play a central role in promoting growth among the existing 
business base and its supply chains – particularly in high growth and knowledge based 
industries.   Promoting and understanding the types of innovation support (in particular through 
Innovate UK and the Catapult Centres) and R&D funding (from the various research councils for 
example, and HEfCE) will be a key function of the Business Advisor role, to ensure that 
businesses can access research findings and the necessary specialist expertise required to 
respond to new technological changes and new market opportunities within their particular 
industries.   

Other investment priorities should include: 

 facilitate access to knowledge transfer partnerships and R&D postgraduate placements; and  

 work with target sectors to promote innovation, throughout the supply chain. 

Access to skilled labour and training provision 

Page 84



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

36 
 

The importance of up-skilling and continuous professional development is an important issue 
for Oldham given the area’s relatively high proportion of residents with low or no qualifications. 
In particular, it will be essential for: 

 improving productivity levels - a major priority for the UK and particularly so for businesses 
within Oldham, which has levels well below the national and city region average. 
Productivity is key to business competitiveness – and thus the protection and development 
of an area’s economic base; and 

 developing the identified priority growth sectors – especially those that involve the use of 
new technology.   

Greater collaboration will be required between employers, especially those in growth sectors, 
and FE and HE establishments to ensure that provision is designed to take advantage of growing 
markets.  If courses are linked to real demand within the labour market and the economy, this 
will in turn attract students.  In addition, greater collaboration will help encourage more 
industry placements, the development of advanced apprenticeships, the design of bespoke 
higher level technical and specialist courses, and knowledge transfer partnerships.  The 
provision of facilities (for example incubation space; HE spin outs) and initiatives to encourage 
graduate retention will also be particularly important in driving up higher level qualifications in 
the borough. 

Assisting individuals into the workplace and enabling progression will also ensure that there is a 
pool of workers able to meet the normal churn or replacement demand within the industries in 
the borough. This strand of activity will link closely with the need to ensure that apprenticeships 
are tailored to meet the demands of businesses in emerging and growing sectors, and the work 
of the GM Apprenticeship Hub.  In addition, flexible skills solutions that are tailored to individual 
or collective business needs will need to be developed through support available locally (Get 
Oldham Working) and from the Manchester Growth Company and the subsidiary Business Hub 
and Skills Companies.      

Investment priorities/activities should include: 

 development of a coherent ‘skills offer’ for employers to include an audit/skills action plan 
and provision of assistance to co-ordinate recruitment of trainees, access to training at all 
levels and the promotion of existing provision; 

 facilitating the development of tailored and joint training among businesses in the priority 
growth sectors, e.g. Mantra Learning is currently providing tailored support for businesses in 
the Logistics Industry in the borough;   

 provision of support to enable businesses to access and utilise external and mainstream 
funding alongside their own investment in skills in the workforce;  

 promote the benefits of collaboration through initiatives such as Knowledge Transfer 
Partnerships and research/postgraduate placements; and 

 graduate retention facilities and provision of subsidised placement programmes within the 
borough. 

Page 85



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

37 
 

4.3.3 Targeting priority sectors 

A review of economic forecasts for the borough and an assessment of its strengths and assets 
has identified six priority sectors that have a particular potential to help drive future jobs and 
economic growth as well as increased GVA.  Four of the sectors, where the borough already has 
strong clusters of employment, (manufacturing; logistics; construction and property; and health 
and social care) are areas where Oldham is seen as having the potential to play a lead role at the 
City Region level.  In terms of retail, leisure and hospitality and professional and business 
support services, these sectors will provide an important focus for achieving a balanced local 
economy.  

Targeting assistance on businesses within these sectors (and the sector development bodies or 
network associations that co-ordinate activity on behalf of businesses) will help ensure that the 
potential opportunities are realised.  Individual sector growth plans will be required (or 
refreshed where need be) to ensure that investment benefits as many of the businesses within 
each sector as possible.  

A range of actions will be undertaken to support the development of each of the identified 
priority sectors.  These actions will potentially include:  

 Markets - to stimulate demand; to enable access to markets; and to attract mobile 
investment from outside of Oldham and the City Region;  

 Capital - to ensure the availability of finance; to secure an appropriate skills base; and to 
meet infrastructure requirements 

 Enterprise - to provide business support; to promote R&D and innovation; and to encourage 
business collaboration. 

The following provides a brief overview of each of the sectors – summarising why it is 
important; Oldham’s strengths; requirements for its development; and the scope of potential 
support actions.   

Table 4.1:  Key strengths and requirements of the priority sectors    

 Importance Strengths in Oldham Requirements 

Manufacturing 

 

13% of employment in Oldham 
(10,300)  

Highly productive - GVA per 
person £60,000 (cf. Oldham 
average £36,700) 

Future Oldham GVA growth 
forecast higher than UK  

Recent increases in textile 
employment  

Strong high technology sector 
- the largest sub-sector in 
terms of number of 
businesses. 

 

Demand for modern, high 
quality industrial property with 
access to major transport links.   

Increasing need for higher 
level skills and managers, 
professional and associate and 
technical occupations. 

Logistics 

 

6th largest employment sector 
in GM and 7th largest GVA.  

Key enabler of growth for 
other sectors. 

5% of Oldham’s employment 
(4,200) 

Accessible location, with 
motorway access and close to 
the regional centre. 

Relatively affordable sites and 
premises.   

Access to major transport 
routes 

Availability of suitable sites 
and premises.   

Historical relatively low level 
skill requirements but moving 

Page 86



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

38 
 

Forecasts suggest further 
employment growth 

towards higher skills needs  

Construction 

 

53,000 people employed in 
GM   

Contributes £3bn of GVA to 
the City Region economy.   

Accounts for 6% of Oldham’s 
employment (4,500).   

Forecast to grow significantly 
across GMCR 

GMFM highlights construction-
related activities, as strengths 
in Oldham and key drivers of 
employment and productivity 
growth.   

Oldham well placed to benefit 
from growth in residential 
development  

Access and awareness of 
planned activity and 
procurement  

Extensive supply chain requires 
good access to major transport 
routes.  

Skills a key issue - increasing 
skills gap nationally 

Health and 
social care 

 

 

Largest single sector in GM- 
over 165,000 people (14% of 
total employment).   

One of largest employers in 
Oldham (17% of all jobs)   
14,100 

Increasing service needs 
stimulating demand for further 
employment.   

Significant recent and forecast 
growth in Oldham  

Sub sectors of human health, 
residential care and social 
work each expected to drive 
growth 

Key assets e.g Royal Hospital - 
4,700 jobs, £62m+ investment 
since 2009. 

Recruitment and retention 
problems – with mobility and 
accessible transport being a 
key factor in delivering home 
based care.  

Skills gaps and occupational 
shortages  

Leisure and 
retail 

 

 

Significant proportion of both 
the GM and Oldham economy.   

Provide an important route 
into work and ‘entry level jobs’ 
including lower level skills.   

Sector employs some 16,300   

Key to transforming the 
borough as a place to live, 
work and visit. 

Continued growth forecast in 
employment  

Oldham’s ‘offer’ has seen 
recent improvement e.g.  new 
cinema complex new leisure 
centres, Town Centre cultural 
regeneration programme, 
proposed Hotel Future project  

Recruitment and retention of 
staff is a major challenge  

Improving image among 
potential employees 

Developing staff skills  and 
work progression  

Professional, 
financial and 
digital services 

 

 

 

Employs 228,000 people in GM 
(19% of total employment)  

Encompass a range of high 
value added activities.   

10,600 jobs in Oldham 

Forecast to be one of the 
highest growth sectors for the 
City Region in terms of both 
employment and GVA      

Recent strong growth in 
professional and business 
support services within 
Oldham  

Growth concentrated in the 
Town Centre.   

Metrolink and the proposed 
development of an office 
quarter in the Town Centre will 
help to strengthen Oldham’s 
offer 

Access to skilled labour  

Strong business to business 
links  

Good quality accommodation 
close to public transport and 
other facilities. 

 
  

Page 87



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

39 
 

5 Action Plan  

5.1 Management and delivery arrangements   

5.1.1 Overview  

The Strategic Investment Team within the Council will continue to play a key role in ensuring 
that effective business support is provided to support businesses and the creation of wealth and 
jobs within the borough.  To achieve this, the team will develop and build on existing 
relationships with both internal council teams and external partner agencies as shown in Figure 
5.1 below.  The delivery of business support will also run alongside activities being delivered 
through the ‘People’ and ‘Place’ interventions outlined in the SIF.  

Figure 5.1: Framework for the delivery of business support  

 

5.1.2 Role of the Strategic Investment Team  

As described above, the Strategic Investment Team will support businesses in the borough by 
co-ordinating the support available from within the Council and maximising linkages with 
external delivery partners.  While the team will have less of a role in the delivery of one to one 
business advice, they will have responsibility for: 

Start-ups 

Oldham Council: 

Bus iness Rates

Licencing
Bui lding control
Planning

Libraries
Town centre/Markets
Publ ic protection 

Get Oldham working

Oldham 
Enterprise Trust

Unity Partnership

Strategic 
Investment Team
Co-ordinating effective 

bus iness support

Manchester Growth 
Company:

Bus iness Growth Hub

Bus iness Finance 
Solutions

Innovate UK

UKTI (now DIT)

Ski lls/Work Company

MIDAS

Oldham Chamber of 
Commerce 

Oldham College

Wealth creation and jobs

Exis ting 
businesses

Inward 

investors

Page 88



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

40 
 

 the management of internal and external relationships and oversight of the wider business 
team;  

 business intelligence, monitoring and evaluation of data held in the CRM database; 

 business engagement – including account management and liaison with sector forums;   

 marketing and promotion – to include Place Marketing and raising awareness of the 
business growth offer, through direct targeted marketing and effective signposting to 
appropriate business support providers; and    

 strategic investment and sector development.   

Given the functions required, additional capacity will be required within the existing Strategic 
Investment Team to ensure that the team is able to become more pro-active and able to target 
support accordingly towards businesses that have the potential to grow and create jobs in the 
local economy. 

The KIER review carried out in 2016 for example, highlighted the significant variation among the 
other GM local authorities with regard to resourcing the business support functions within their 
localities.  In Stockport, the Business Support Team has approximately 18 members of staff to 
service their business base of 12,000 enterprises (2 Senior Growth Managers; and 16 supporting 
growth managers, officers, and support officers) while Oldham has 6,800 businesses and a team 
of 2 investment officers, excluding the Town Centre and Market management functions.    

5.1.3 Management and Governance arrangements  

The Strategic Investment Team currently sits within the Economy, Skills and Neighbourhoods 
portfolio within the Council and reports directly to the Director of Economy and Skills.  The 
Executive Director for Economy, Skills and Neighbourhoods has overall responsibility for the 
provision of services and support for businesses.   

The Economy and Skills Partnership, chaired jointly by the Leader of Oldham Council and the 
chair of the Oldham Business Leadership Group, will be responsible for monitoring the delivery 
of the Business and Investment Strategy and alignment with the SIF and other 
priorities/interventions being delivered through the Skills Strategy for example. The partnership 
comprises representatives from both the public and private sectors, and includes the main 
business support and skills providers within the borough.  The partnership will continue to draw 
on the expertise and input from local businesses and relevant sector network groups (as they 
become more established) and the Oldham Business Leadership Group.   

5.2 Key priorities for action  

The following tables describe the actions required by all partners to: 

 develop a shared approach to business intelligence, engagement and marketing;  

 deliver the Oldham Business Support Offer; and  

 target businesses within the identified priority sectors.  

Page 89



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

41 
 

Table 5.1: Developing a shared approach to business intelligence, engagement and marketing  
 Area of Focus  
 

Key Actions  Lead Delivery  Partners   Funding/ 
Levers   

Timing  

Business Intelligence  
 
Collect, analyse and 
disseminate data to 
improve targeting and 
business engagement  
 
Contribution to SO1, 
SO2, SO3, SO4, SO5 
  

Develop a comprehensive business database, using Experian data to 
provide the core inputs and supplement this data with NNDR and 
Tractivity.    
 
Map the data, and prepare sector profiles for the website. 
 
Use the database to identify large employers and potential growth 
companies as the basis for the account management system. Signpost 
businesses to the business support providers – e.g. BGH, Oldham 
Enterprise Trust, Chamber and Get Oldham Working 

Strategic 
investment 
team 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Libraries  Experian 
data  

July – August  
2017 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing  
 

Establish a data sharing agreement with the BGH and other providers  
 
Develop a protocol for directing businesses to the BGH and other 
providers 

Strategic  
investment 
team 

BGH 
Chamber 
OET  

BGH Service 
Level 
Agreement  

July 2017 

Convene an internal working group for business facing teams to share 
business data and develop a protocol for directing businesses to the 
BGH and other providers  

- Town Centre Manager/Markets 
- Business rates  
- Licensing 
- Property (Unity)  
- Development/Planning, building control 
- Strategic Assets/Strategic Projects  

Strategic  
investment 
team  

Town Centre   July 2017  
 
Quarterly 
meetings: 
September 
December  
March  
June  

Identify private sector champions and nominate lead officers within 
the Council to liaise with the existing networks and sector groups on 
an ongoing basis to gather information regarding business needs  
     

Strategic 
investment  
team  

Sector 
Networks 
OBLG   

 Summer  
2017 

Develop and administer an annual business survey 
Boost the next GM business survey  
 

Libraries  
 

New Economy  Autumn 2017   
Spring 2018  

Use the CRM system (Tractivity) to monitor business engagement and 
referrals and ensure the business database remains up to date  

Strategic 
investment 
team 

Libraries  Ongoing  

Business Engagement  
 

Establish procedures for more effective routing of business enquiries 
in the Council - develop the menu of business support provision and 

Strategic 
investment 

Call centre 
staff  

 July – August 
2017 

P
age 90



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

42 
 

Establish and 
implement an account 
management system to 
engage employers 
  
Contribution to SO1, 
SO2, SO3, SO4, SO5 
 

list of key contacts for appropriate internal departments/external 
agencies. 
 
Train frontline staff and ensure that the CRM system is used for 
recording enquiries and referrals made.  
 

team  
 
Call centre  

 
 
 
September 
2017 

Identify and assign key account managers to large employers and 
establish appropriate mechanisms for ongoing engagement  

Strategic 
investment 
team  

Senior 
management 
team; Sector 
champions 

 Autumn  
2017 

Manage the BGH relationship and monitor businesses in receipt of 
support through internal and external case conference sessions   

Strategic 
investment 
team  

BGH 
Chamber 
OET  

BGH SLA Ongoing  
2017-2020 

Marketing and 
Promotion  
 
Market the area as a 
business location and 
the support services 
available  
 
 
Contribution to SO1, 
SO2, SO3, SO4, SO5 
 

Website development – including Invest in Oldham:  
- to promote the strengths of the business location   
- profile key sectors and case study businesses – start-ups, 

growth, inward investors   
- availability of sites and premises and links to commercial 

property agents  
- links to business support and funding available  

Strategic 
investment 
team to draft 
content 

Internal 
Business 
Processing 
team 

Place 
marketing 
Budget  

Summer 
2017 

Prepare sector specific and generic marketing materials to promote 
the ‘Oldham Business Support Offer’   
 

Strategic 
investment 
team  

Libraries  Place 
marketing 
budget   

Autumn 2017 

Publish/circulate a Business Events Calendar – streamline networking 
events and expand audiences using the business database to target 
particular markets and industries    
 
Assist the delivery of the Oldham Business Awards  
 

Strategic 
Investment 
team  

BGH  
Chamber  
OBLG 
Sector groups 
Professional 
Oldham  

Sponsorship  Ongoing  
 
 
 
Annual Event  
 

Work with MIDAS to deliver joint marketing campaigns and host 
potential inward investor visits   
 

Strategic 
Investment 
team 

MIDAS 
MGC 
Oldham 
Ambassadors  

Place 
marketing 
budget.  

Ongoing  

 
 
 
Table 5.2: Delivering the Business Support Offer  

Area of Focus  Key Actions  Lead Delivery Role of the Funding/ Timing  

P
age 91



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

43 
 

Partners Council   Levers  

Business Information, 
Advice and Guidance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Undertake business diagnostics with potential growth companies 
and start ups and assign eligible companies to personal business 
advisors. 
 
Deliver business support services (min 12 hours) to Oldham 
businesses     

BGH enquiries 
team  
OET    
 
BGH 

Identification of 
businesses, 
signposting and 
referrals  

Oldham Council 
ERDF match 
£250k 

Ongoing  
 
2017-
2020 
 

Manage the BGH contract and monitor the businesses in receipt of 
assistance from partner agencies (via caseload management and 
case conference reviews)  
 

Council – SIT Management 
and monitoring 

BGH SLA  
  

Ongoing  

Use the business intelligence and feedback to identify gaps in 
provision and work with partner agencies to tailor support to the 
needs of businesses.   

BGH, 
Chamber, 
OET, GOW, 
Colleges 

Analysis of 
business 
intelligence 
(Libraries) 

 Ongoing  

Access to Finance  Provide businesses with advice on Accessing Finance  BGH   Marketing and 
referrals  

 Ongoing 

Assist businesses to access loans and grant funding for business 
start-ups and growth (including improvements to sites and premises 
in target areas)  

Business 
Finance 
Solutions  
 
Oldham 
Enterprise 
Trust 
 
Council  

Marketing, and 
referrals  

£2m Stoller 
Trust Funding 
for Oldham 
Enterprise Fund 
 
Council capital 
Funding 
 
Business Angels  

Launch 
Spring 
2017 
 
Ongoing  

Explore options to use Tax Increment Financing (TIF) to borrow 
against projected growth in strategic locations to fund targeted 
investment and the development of an Oldham Investment Fund 
with clearly defined eligibility criteria (based on growth, jobs, 
sustainability) and use of funding.  For example, match investment 
in: 

- staff training/upskilling  
- new plant and machinery  
- innovation in new products and services 
- relief for bringing vacant premises back into use 

 

Council - SIT Development, 
marketing and 
administration  

Tax increment 
financing  
 
Council 
Business Rates  

Autumn 
2017  

Access to New Markets 
and Research, 

Development and promotion of effective supply chain linkages – 
through the meet the buyer events; local capacity registers; use of 

Council – SIT 
Procurement  

Development, 
promotion and 

 Ongoing  

P
age 92



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

44 
 

Development and 
Innovation (R&D&I) 

procurement clauses       
Sector 
network 
groups   
 

delivery 

Target companies with the potential to benefit from export advice 
and R&D&I support available from the UKTI (now DIT) and Innovate 
UK regional advisors based in the Growth Company: 

- export services 
- access to R&D tax credits  
- funding for emerging and enabling technologies (health 

and life sciences, manufacturing and materials)  
    

Business 
Growth Hub  
 
Innovate UK,  
DIT regional 
advisors  

Identification 
and signposting  

R&D tax credits 
 
Innovate UK 
funding  

Ongoing  

Regulatory Support/ 
Council Services 

Promote the GM ‘Better Business for All’ campaign and undertake 
business diagnostics to advise on the regulatory requirements 
needed.  

Business 
Growth Hub 
 
 

Promotion   2017 
Ongoing  

Signpost businesses to relevant support to ensure compliance, via: 
- the business growth hub 
- internal services – environmental health, trading 

standards, licensing, fire safety, planning permission, 
building control  

 

Business 
Growth Hub  
 
Council 
services 

Referrals and 
delivery of 
advice and 
support  

 Ongoing  

Work with procurement to maximise opportunities for employment 
and training of local residents, creation of apprenticeships and 
business opportunities for local firms, using contract clauses. 
 

Council SIT 
Procurement  

Development  Council 
Procurement 
mechanisms  

Ongoing  

Sites and Premises Commission an audit of the existing stock of sites and premises 
across the borough to understand the scale, quality and 
availability/gaps in provision 
 

Council SIT  Commissioning   July – 
August  
2017 
 

Bring forward the development of strategic sites and premises – by 
working with the various joint venture vehicles in place and other 
site owners / developers to develop, deliver, promote and market 
key development schemes, including sites identified through the 
GMSF 

Unity 
Partnership 
 
Council – SIT  

Development, 
delivery and 
promotion and 
marketing  

TIF  Ongoing  

Develop and implement District Centre Development Plans   
 

Town Centre 
Team  

Signposting and 
referral to 

 Ongoing  

P
age 93



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

45 
 

relevant 
business 
support  

Delivery, sales and letting of appropriate sites and premises (office, 
retail, industrial) 
 

Unity 
Partnership   

Signposting and 
monitoring  

  

Access to Skilled 
Labour  
 

Undertake business diagnostics to identify workforce development 
and other skills/recruitment issues  

GOW 
BGH 
Skills 
company 

Signposting and 
referrals  

 Ongoing  

Assist businesses to access/recruit apprentices 
 
Provide upskilling support for businesses o appropriate partner 
agencies  

GOW 
Colleges 
Manchester 
skills 
company  

Delivery via 
GOW 

Apprenticeship 
Levy 

Ongoing  

Broker relationships between the sector network groups and the 
training providers to ensure that provision is tailored to the needs of 
businesses and explore opportunities for collaborative training 
ventures  
 

Council SIT 
Sector 
networks  
GOW 
College  

Brokerage  Ongoing  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Table 5.3: Targeting Priority Sectors  

P
age 94



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

46 
 

To maximise economic output and the creation of employment opportunities for local residents, growth companies will be targeted in addition to businesses in the 
sectors listed in the table below.  For each sector, a high level development plan will be prepared by ‘sector champions’ identified from within the Council (i.e. sector 
champions) working in conjunction with the appropriate network group.  

Identified Growth Sectors  Lead agency responsible for co-
ordination/networking group  

Key issues to be addressed within the industry locally  
   

Construction  Oldham Construction Group (Chamber; Council)  Skills and progression  
Apprenticeships 
Timely notification of procurements 
Assistance with tenders   

Manufacturing  
 

Engineering Forum  Skills 
Modern high quality sites and premises  

Logistics  Mantra Learning – provides an element of co-
ordination re training/skills    

Sites and premises 
Skills and Licenses 
Business regulations  

Health and social care  
 

Council health care partnership  Skills 
Wages 
Labour mobility – with regard to the provision of homecare  
Innovation 

Leisure and retail  Town Centre manager  Lack of support for retail businesses using public funding  
(no provision via BGH – sustainability workshops being organised for each 
area)    
Consolidation of recent investments 

Professional, financial and 
digital services  
 

Professional Oldham  
HACK  

Creation of an office market (overspill from Manchester) 
High level skills  

 
  

P
age 95



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

47 
 

6 Targets and performance monitoring   

6.1 Targets   

6.1.1 Overall SIF Impacts  

The delivery of the Business and Investment Strategy will contribute towards achieving the 
vision and strategic objectives outlined in the SIF.  The business support activities will be 
delivered in conjunction with place based interventions and support to improve employment 
and skills, in order to accelerate the growth of jobs, enterprise and GVA within the borough.    

As outlined in the SIF and Figures 6.1-6.3 below, closing the gap with the GM average will 
require:  

 the creation of an additional 4,700 or more jobs above the base forecast (+2,700) to narrow 
the employment rate gap by 2030; and  

 the creation/attraction of an additional 340 enterprises, above the base forecast (+190 
businesses) to close the enterprise gap by 2030. 

The economic impact model developed to demonstrate the benefits of Oldham reducing the 
gap with GM has modelled two scenarios: 

 matching the GM growth rate (which is described above and shown by the green line on the 
graph); and  

 higher than GM growth rate – which would be sufficient to remove the gap (and is shown by 
the red line and shaded area in the graphs).  The higher growth rate would require a further 
3,400 jobs and 250 businesses over and above the figures outlined above. 

Figure 6.1: Projected employment growth scenarios in Oldham (2015 - 2030) 

 
 Source: GMFM, AMION Economic Impact Model 

 

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

102

104

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

N
o

. o
f 

jo
b

s 
(0

0
0

s)

Growth in jobs

Oldham - base scenario Oldham - growth scenario Oldham - growth scenario

+3,400 jobs

+4,700 jobs

+2,700 jobs

Target grow th rate

Page 96



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

48 
 

Figure 6.2: Projected enterprise growth scenarios for Oldham (2015 - 2030)  

 
Source: GMFM, AMION Economic Impact Model 

6.1.2 Measuring strategic business support outcomes    

In order to assess the extent to which the business and investment strategy is achieving its 
objectives, the following outcomes will need to be measured on an ongoing basis, to identify 
whether Oldham is closing the gap with the GM average.  As there are so many agencies 
involved in delivering business support, it will be difficult to attribute change or impact to 
individual partner agencies or individual strands of activity, as they will all contribute through 
the provision of the business support offer.  Furthermore, it is also envisaged that the people 
and place based initiatives will also contribute towards enterprise and employment growth. 
However, performance will be monitored on an ongoing basis through the collection and 
analysis of output and outcome data.    

Table 6.1: Measuring Strategic Outcomes from Improved Business and Investment Support 
 

Measure of Success  Oldham Baseline GM Baseline 

(Local Authority 
Range) 

Oldham Target 

Increase in the number of active 
enterprises (per 10,000 population) 

290 354 

(276-501) 

Rate of improvement 
at or above GM 

average 

 

Increase in the number of business 
births (per 10,000 population)  

38 52 

(37-73) 

Proportion of employment within the 
private sector  

72% 76% 

(68% - 86%) 

Increase in average GVA per employee  £36,700 £39,900 

(£35,800 - £42,600) 

6.2 Monitoring framework  

Monitoring and reviewing both outputs and outcomes will form an important part of improving 
the business and investment support offer in Oldham and provide evidence to demonstrate the 
best use of public resources and achievement of value for money.  A range of tools and 

 6,000

 6,200

 6,400

 6,600

 6,800

 7,000

 7,200

 7,400

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Number of active enterprises

Oldham - base Oldham - growth scenario Oldham - growth scenario

+250 businesses

+340 businesses

+190 businesses

Target grow th rate

Page 97



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

49 
 

protocols will be put in place to record and analyse the engagement and performance of 
businesses on an ongoing basis.  This will include: 

 establishing a baseline and comprehensive database of businesses for the area and use of 
the CRM system (Tractivity) to track companies; 

 improved data sharing among business support providers and the use of a case conference 
approach to monitor the delivery of support and benefits realised; and   

 delivery of an annual business survey – to gather feedback from businesses regarding their 
satisfaction with the support being delivered and impacts achieved.  The survey will also 
provide the opportunity to gather more qualitative information regarding business needs 
which will be used to ensure that interventions remain relevant.    

An indicative list of the projected outputs and outcomes that will require monitoring is given in 
the table below, in addition to the organisations that will be responsible for collecting the data. 

Table 6.2: Output/Outcome indicators to be monitored  

Output/outcome measures Partner agencies involved in monitoring 

No of businesses engaged and enquiries received by type of business 
type (start-up; existing business/growth company; inward investors) 
and sector  

All – BGH; Council; Chamber; OET  

No of businesses signposted from the Council to business support 
providers - BGH; Oldham Enterprise Trust; GOW 

Oldham Council 

No of businesses assisted/referred for full support (minimum 12 
hours) by type and sector, of which: 

- No of businesses assisted with digital technologies  

BGH 

No of mentoring relationships BGH 

No of clients advised on starting a business  BGH; Chamber; Council; OET 

No of inward investment pipeline projects/jobs Council; MIDAS 

No of jobs created and safeguarded BGH; Council; OET 

No of inward investment projects, new jobs, safeguarded jobs Council; MIDAS 

No of businesses in receipt of funding – grants; loans; business rate 
reductions (start-ups, existing businesses, inward investors) 

No facilitated by Access to Finance service 

No accessing the ‘Oldham Enterprise Trust Fund’/other sources 

BGH 

OET 

BFS   

Oldham Council  

No of businesses introducing new to firm/market products  BGH, Innovate UK 

No of businesses co-operating with research entities  SIT, Innovate UK (MGC)  

No/£value of business wins (export orders)   BGH, DIT, Chamber  

No of business start ups BGH; OET; GOW 

£ total increased GVA /GVA from inward investment  BGH; SIT; DIT  

Page 98



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

50 
 

7 Delivery recommendations  

7.1 Delivery options  

The following options have been considered for implementing the Business and Investment 
Strategy and the key priorities for action listed in Section 5.2:  

 Option 1: Do nothing – continue delivering the service through existing mechanisms;  

 Option 2: Restructure existing teams within the council and add capacity to the Strategic 
Investment Team through the transfer of expertise from other service areas;  

 Option 3: Strengthen the function of the Strategic Investment Team through the 
recruitment of new staff and additional resources for marketing and promotion; and  

Further options, for example ‘outsourcing’ the strategic investment team or developing a joint 
team with a neighbouring authority have not been considered at this stage, as there are a 
number of business support functions already being delivered by external agencies (i.e. the 
Manchester Growth Company and MIDAS) and it is likely that such options would lead to further 
fragmentation at this stage, rather than greater co-ordination of services among partner 
agencies.   

The advantages and disadvantages of each option are presented in Table 7.1 below in addition 
to the implications for the delivery of the projected outcomes outlined in Section 6.1.  

 
 

Page 99



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

51 
 

 
Table 7.1: Options for delivering the key priorities for action and outcomes 

Options  Advantages  Disadvantages  Implications for growth and job outcomes  

Option 1: Do nothing  No additional revenue implications. 
 
 
 
 
 

Strategic Investment Team will 
continue to operate reactively, 
resulting in lost opportunities to 
attract and target businesses with 
growth potential.   
 
Reliant on external agencies to 
engage Oldham Businesses and 
promote the take up of GM 
Services – e.g. Business Growth 
Hub services.   
 
Lack of capacity/leadership in 
developing a co-ordinated Oldham 
Business Offer  
 
Fragmented business services and 
potential duplication of resources.    

The Oldham Start-up Fund (provided by the Stoller Trust) and 
European Funding ringfenced for SMEs in Oldham are due to 
be administered via the GM Growth Hub.  This funding has 
the capacity to generate between 200-270 jobs, based on 
benchmarks for general business support and enterprise 
support for SMEs and start-ups, leaving a significant shortfall 
in the outcomes required to close the business and enterprise 
gap with the GM average. 

More effective targeting of existing businesses with growth 
potential, attraction of new companies to the area and 
strategic/sector development will be essential if Oldham is to 
accelerate the growth of jobs, enterprise and GVA within the 
borough.  

Furthermore this ‘do nothing’ option, will seriously 
undermine the delivery of the other strands of the Oldham 
Strategic Investment Framework and fail to capitalise on the 
infrastructure and skills investments made to date.     

Option 2: Re-organise 
business facing teams 
internally within the 
council to deliver the 
service   

No additional revenue implications  
 
Improved business intelligence and 
sharing of data internally  
 
Greater efficiencies through more 
streamlined approach to business 
engagement and delivery of 
services 
 
 
 

Existing Strategic Investment team 
would need to divert all attention 
to management and oversight of 
internal business facing teams and 
managing external relationships. 
 
Dedicated time and resources 
required to deliver effective 
account management and 
marketing and promotion/inward 
investment services – potential to 
have a negative impact on business 
retention/attraction. 
  
Inability to deliver pro-active 
targeting and strategic 
development work – including new 
business products and services.      

This option has the capacity to build on the activity and  level 
of outcomes expected under the do-nothing scenario, as it 
will involve: 

 more effective delivery of business services within the 
council and signposting to external agencies; and  

 closer scrutiny of the programmes being delivered 
externally by business support agencies on behalf of the 
council. 

However, under this option the Strategic Investment Team 
will to a large extent remain reactive, as the limited resources 
within the team will be spent maximizing the efficiency of the 
existing business support functions and improving 
communication flows and intelligence both within the council 
and among existing agencies. 

This would result in significant gaps in relation to: 

P
age 100



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

52 
 

 the strategic and sector development work required to 
improve the business offer in the borough (i.e. 
establishment of the Oldham Investment Fund; ensuring 
there is a supply of suitable sites and premises to meet 
employers needs; promotion of sector specialisms and 
collaborative working);  

 marketing and promotion of the business offer/location - 
to attract new businesses and inward investors into the 
area; and  

 the development of an account management function 
for large and established businesses in the borough – to 
identify and promote growth and retention.   

Option 3: Recruit 
new staff to add 
capacity to the 
Strategic Investment 
team    

This option will add capacity and 
provide the opportunity to deliver 
all the business support functions 
and priorities for action identified 
in section 5 of this report.  This 
includes: 

 management/oversight 

 business intelligence, monitoring 
and evaluation 

 business engagement and 
account management  

 marketing and promotion  

 strategic investment and sector 
development  

 
The Council offers longevity and is 
well positioned to facilitate the 
joining up of services for businesses 
- both internally and externally – to 
promote growth and the 
generation of new jobs in the 
borough.  

Additional investment/resources 
required up front – but potential to 
generate additional business rates 
income if successful in retaining 
and attracting new businesses to 
the area.   
 
The Strategic Investment team will 
still be dependent on external 
support agencies to deliver aspects 
of the Oldham Business Support 
Offer.     
  
 
 

This option provides the greatest opportunity to maximise 
business benefits and job outcomes, through: 

 internal re-organisation and streamlined delivery of 
council services; 

 targeting companies with growth potential and the 
capacity to deliver the highest return on investment; 

 strategic investment and development work – to bring 
forward new sites for development and stimulate 
demand for new premises, which will in turn generate 
additional NNDR income for the borough;   

 effective business engagement and account 
management to attract new businesses to the area and 
retain existing businesses with the capacity and 
aspiration to grow; and  

 the provision of business support to add value and 
complement the delivery of the other strands of the 
Strategic Investment Framework. 

 

P
age 101



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

53 
 

7.2 The preferred option and recommendations for delivery 

Option 3 represents the preferred way forward in terms of strengthening the capacity of the 
Strategic Investment Team to be able to deliver the priorities for action set out in this Business 
and Investment Strategy which will in turn contribute to the overall job and GVA targets 
contained in the SIF.   

The following actions are required as a matter of priority, to strengthen Oldham’s central 
business support co-ordination function and ability to work with internal departments and 
external partner agencies to deliver the business and investment strategy: 

 identify the additional resources required – both staff and revenue support – to enhance the 
role and focus of the Strategic Investment Team to deliver the following business support 
functions: 

 management and oversight of the business facing teams within the Council and the 
external agencies delivering support for Oldham businesses: 

 business intelligence, monitoring and evaluation;  

 business engagement – including account management and liaison with sector 
forums;   

 marketing and promotion; and 

 brokering strategic investments and sector development.   

 establish/populate a new business database and profile the existing companies – to begin 
awareness raising, targeted marketing, and account management;       

 develop a new website for Business and Investment in Oldham, which expands on the 
current ‘Invest in Oldham’ website, to deliver information for all businesses – starts ups, 
SMEs and potential inward investors on the comprehensive support available to promote 
growth (advice and regulatory support; access to finance, suitable business premises and 
new markets; innovation support; and access to a skilled workforce);    

 develop internal council procedures for enquiry handling (including initial recording on the 
CRM system, referral to council teams and external providers) and provide training for 
frontline and other business facing staff; and     

 agree the mechanisms for sharing data and monitoring businesses being assisted by external 
delivery agencies.  For example, convene a ‘case conference’ review with the wider business 
support team including the Oldham Enterprise Trust fund manager, designated BGH 
advisors (growth and workforce development), and relevant internal officers (for example, 
Town Centre Manager; Business Rates Manager; GOW).  

 

  

 

Page 102



Oldham Council 
  Business and Investment Strategy - Draft Report 

  June 2017 

 
 

 
 

Appendix A - Title of Appendix 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Investment Framework
Oldham Strategic

Investment, Skills, Jobs and Homes

P
age 105



2

The Oldham narrative 3

Purpose of the SIF 4

Economic review 5

Vision and objectives 10

Investment framework 15

People programme 16

Business programme 21

Place programme 24

Priority sectors 29

Priority projects 33

Making it happen 38

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2015. 
© Crown copyright and database rights [2011] Ordnance Survey licence 0100019668 
Aerial Image Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, 
USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community.

Welcome to our first dedicated Strategic Investment 
Framework for Oldham.
The document sets out the council’s economic and 
investment ambitions, our vision and objectives and 
priorities over the next four years. 
We have made unprecedented investment in the borough 
in recent years and a number of key projects are now 
coming to fruition.          
The Old Town Hall is due to open later this year and 
will make a real difference to the town centre. We’re 
transforming this once crumbling wreck of a building into 

a modern state-of-the-art seven screen Odeon cinema with six restaurants and a 
spectacular new public square. It is estimated the venue will bring in an extra 214,000 
visits to the town centre annually, providing a fantastic boost to the local economy 
and creating employment opportunities. 
The Old Town Hall has been a catalyst for investment in the town centre and it is 
encouraging that more and more investors are now seeing Oldham as a place to do 
business. Productive businesses of all sizes, offering good opportunities to residents, 
are the driving force to make our borough a better place to live, work and invest.
We have made real progress in attracting national and global brands to the borough. 
For example Jardine Motors Group, a major Audi dealership are opening a regional 
hub at the old Westhulme Hospital site. A 52,000 sq ft Marks and Spencer will also 
open at Princes Gate at Oldham Mumps in 2018. We will continue to build on these 
whilst also supporting our small to medium sized businesses to grow and prosper by 
helping them to find a skilled and motivated workforce.
We recognise that there are many challenges facing Oldham but we are confident 
that we can rise to them and deliver significant economic and social benefits through 
targeted investment.     
We have also developed the qualities and assets which are essential in building 
a thriving economy – connectivity, a young and growing population, improving 
education system, new housing and healthcare and strong leadership.
Oldham is a place of real opportunity and I am confident that we will continue to 
prosper. We are building a better borough together. 

Contents Foreword

Councillor Jean Stretton - 
Leader of the Council

P
age 106



3

The Oldham narrative

Oldham covers an area of approximately 142 sq km and is home 
to 228,800 people, making it the seventh most populous borough 
in Greater Manchester. It is located on the edge of Greater 
Manchester, with more than a quarter of the borough situated 
within the Peak District National Park, yet it benefits from excellent 
connectivity to Manchester City Centre, via Metrolink, and is in 
close proximity to the M60 and M62 motorways. Oldham is nine 
miles from Manchester city centre and 19 miles from Manchester 
Airport. 
There have been some significant changes to the composition of 
Oldham’s economy, with a continued reduction in manufacturing 
employment over the last decade and growth in the health, 
business and professional services, logistics and education 
sectors as well as in creative industries and science and R&D.  
Manufacturing still remains one of the largest sectors in the 
economy, employing around 14% of the workforce.
As shown in the economic review section of this report, Oldham 
is an area of great opportunity and significant need. The borough 
benefits from a diverse and vibrant community, a young, growing 
and entrepreneurial population, an improving educational offer 
and access to an extensive labour pool within the wider Greater 
Manchester area. Its location in the foothills of the Pennines 
provides unique and unparalleled views, while also having good 
access to the conurbation core. However, the economy of Oldham 
reflects a number of longstanding issues, with relatively weak 
private sector growth and a dominance of low skill and low wage 
industries.  
There has been significant financial investment in recent years 
in transport, housing, education, health care and in the town 
centre, demonstrating the council’s commitment to transforming 
the borough and realising its full potential as an integral part of 
the wider city region. There is a need now for continued targeted 
intervention to ensure that Oldham is able to contribute positively 
to the sustainable growth of the region and play a key role in 
achieving the Greater Manchester growth and reform ambitions.

An area of great opportunity 

and significant need

P
age 107



4

The council and its partners have made substantial progress in regenerating 
Oldham as a place. Following on from the extension of Metrolink through the 
town centre, the borough has seen: First Choice Homes Oldham open its new 
headquarters on Union Street; Oldham College open new campus buildings 
on Rochdale Road; work well underway at The Old Town Hall to provide a new 
cinema complex; and the construction of two new leisure centres. The council 
recognises that there is now a need to capitalise on the success to date and 
secure the long-term, sustained regeneration of Oldham.   
The purpose of this Strategic Investment Framework (SIF) is to direct investment 
and development activity in the short to medium term. The SIF provides a single 
document expressing Oldham’s economic and investment ambitions, setting 
out the vision and objectives for the borough and the priorities for action. It 
outlines the challenges facing Oldham and its role in the city region, along with 
the opportunities to deliver significant economic and social benefits through well 
targeted investment.
The vision, objectives and priorities within the SIF have been informed by a 
robust evidence base. A comprehensive review has been undertaken of the 
economic context within Oldham and Greater Manchester, highlighting that the 
borough has a number of assets and strengths to build on, while also needing to 
address a range of longstanding weaknesses within the local economy.
The SIF also sets out the approach to delivery, identifying the role of the 
council in maximising the benefits of future investment. In regeneration terms, 
the continuing economic and investment conditions and the reality of a slow 
recovery, make the prospect of attracting significant private sector investment 
difficult. The SIF, therefore, provides a framework to ensure that limited public 
sector resources go further and that intervention is targeted where it will have the 
most benefit, including in terms of supporting future private sector investment.    
There are a range of strategies and plans that have already been developed, 
including the Oldham Plan 2015–18, which sets out a shared vision for the 
borough. The purpose of the SIF is to build upon and draw together this 
existing policy base to provide a framework for investment that reflects the 
needs of Oldham and the Greater Manchester growth and reform agenda. As 
recognised in the Oldham Plan, building a more prominent role for Oldham in 
Greater Manchester will become of growing importance as greater devolution is 
implemented over the next few years. 

A single document expressing Oldham’s 
economic and investment ambitions

Purpose of the SIF

P
age 108



5

• As of 2014, the resident population within Oldham stood at approximately 
228,800, representing 8% of the total population within Greater Manchester.  
Of the ten city region boroughs, Oldham has the largest proportion of people 
aged 0-15 (23% of the population compared to 20% for Greater Manchester 
as a whole).

• ONS population projections forecast ongoing population growth in Oldham, 
albeit at a lower rate than the Greater Manchester average (9% over the period 
of 2012 to 2037 compared to 13% for Greater Manchester). The working age 
population is also forecast to grow at a lower rate than Greater Manchester at 
just 1% up to 2037 compared to 4% across the city region.

• In terms of the labour market, a relatively high proportion of residents are 
employed within lower order occupations. For example, around 25% of 
residents work within elementary or process, plant and machine operative 
occupations. This compares to 18% within both Greater Manchester as a 
whole.

• The skills profile for Oldham shows a similar picture, with a relatively low 
proportion of residents qualified to NVQ level 4+, a high proportion with no 
qualifications and a lower apprenticeship pass rate compared with the GM 
average. While there has been some improvement in the borough’s skills base, 
the gap between Oldham and the regional and national averages in terms of 
NVQ level 4+ attainment has remained.

• Linked to the occupational and skills profile, the gap in earnings between 
Oldham residents and average earnings nationally has continued to widen – in 
2006 the median annual pay was 86% of the national average, whereas in 
2015 it had fallen to 82%.

• The borough also suffers from relatively high levels of unemployment and 
worklessness. Based on measures consistent with definitions set out by the 
International Labour Organisation (ILO), the unemployment rate for Oldham 
over the period June 2014 to July 2015 was 9.3%. This is the highest rate of 
unemployment in Greater Manchester with the city region average, standing at 
6.8%.

• Oldham is one of the most ‘self-contained’ boroughs, behind only 
Manchester and Bolton in terms of within local authority commuting rates, 
with approximately 55% of residents living and working in Oldham. The arrival 
of Metrolink, however, will enable more residents to access employment 
opportunities within the wider city region.

Median annual 
earnings (2015)

Change  
(2011-15)

Oldham £22,810 3%

GM £25,500 7%

Great Britain £27,730 6%

6.8

6.0

6.8

8.2

9.3

7.4

8.3

4.9

4.7

6.6

5.7

0.0 2.0 4.0 6.0 8.0 10.0

Greater…

Bolton

Bury

Manchester

Oldham

Rochdale

Salford

Stockport

Tameside

Trafford

Wigan

Unemployed as % of economically active population aged 16+

ILO unemployment (June 2014 - July 2015)

Economic review
People

P
age 109



6

• In recent years Oldham has experienced relatively 
strong growth in employment, after suffering 
particularly badly during the financial crisis and 
subsequent recession. Much of this growth 
though has been driven by an increase in part-
time jobs and there is a continued reliance on 
public sector employment.  

• According to the Greater Manchester Forecasting 
Model (GMFM), as of 2014, private sector 
employment in Oldham was still below the level 
it stood at in 2005.  In contrast, private sector 
employment at the UK level has grown by  
around 5%.

• Manufacturing still remains one of the largest 
sectors in the local economy, with the borough 
home to a number of prominent manufacturing 
companies and major textiles supply chain firms.

• Health and social care, construction, wholesale 
and retail, logistics, personal and employment 
activities, and education are also sectors where 
Oldham has a relatively high level of employment 
compared to the UK average.  

• There is an underrepresentation of employment 
in some higher value sectors, such as financial 
services, although the borough performs 
strongly in high technology sectors related to 
manufacturing.

• Over the last decade, the size of Oldham’s 
economy in relation to the wider city region has 
remained broadly constant. However, productivity 
is still below that of Greater Manchester, with 
an average GVA per person in employment 
of £36,700 compared to £39,900 for Greater 
Manchester as a whole.

• Oldham also suffers from a large ‘enterprise 
gap’ – over the last ten years the number of 
businesses has increased at half the rate of 
Greater Manchester and both business density 
and the rate of new start-ups lags behind many 
other parts of the city region.

• Forecasts suggest that the gap between Oldham 
(along with other north-eastern parts of the city 
region) and the more economically prosperous 
Greater Manchester boroughs will continue to 
widen.   

Economic review
Business

Active enterprises 
(2014)

Growth   
(2005-14)

GM 96,840 19%

Manchester 19,965 41%

Salford 8,440 28%

Trafford 11,655 27%

Bury 7,130 16%

Rochdale 6,355 14%

Wigan 8,865 14%

Stockport 12,090 11%

Bolton 9,355 9%

Tameside 6,340 7%

Oldham 6,645 7%

85

90

95

100

105

110

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Indexed change in employment

Oldham Greater Manchester North West UK

P
age 110



7

Economic review
Place
• Oldham benefits from excellent connectivity to 

Manchester City Centre, via Metrolink (around 8,000 
passengers start or finish their Metrolink journey in 
Oldham each day), and is in close proximity to the 
M60 and M62 motorways.  

• The housing market in Oldham is dominated by 
terraced properties, with 41% of the homes in 
Oldham being terraced houses compared to 31% 
across England and 37% within Greater Manchester 
as a whole.

• Oldham has a high proportion of homes in the lower 
council tax bands, with 71% of homes in bands A 
and B. There is over double the proportion of homes 
classified as band A than the national average, and 
10% more than the Greater Manchester average.

• The office market in Oldham has traditionally been 
dominated by public sector users. However, the 
improved accessibility of Oldham Town Centre and 
the availability of relatively inexpensive land/premises 

provides an opportunity to attract new professional 
and business support companies to the borough.

• There has been significant leakage of retail and 
leisure expenditure from Oldham to neighbouring 
centres, but it is expected that major investments 
within the town centre, such as Prince’s Gate at 
Oldham Mumps (which includes a Marks and 
Spencer store) and the redevelopment of the Old 
Town Hall, will help to reverse this trend. 

• Oldham’s traditional industrial areas have suffered 
from increasingly poor environmental quality and 
premises, with a need to ensure the availability of 
good quality modern accommodation if the borough 
is to continue to build on its strengths in terms of 
manufacturing and logistics. 

• An analysis of the Indices of Deprivation shows that 
there are clusters of very high levels of deprivation 
within Oldham, with some parts of the borough 
within the 2% most deprived nationally (see “heat 
map” shown overleaf). 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

England

GM

Stockport

Wigan

Bury

Bolton

Trafford

Rochdale

Oldham

Tameside

Salford

Manchester

Accommodation by type

Detached Semi-detached  Terraced  Flat, maisonette or apartment Other

0 20 40 60 80 100

Manchester

Rochdale

Salford

Oldham

Tameside

Bolton

Wigan

Bury

Stockport

Trafford

GM

England

Dwelling stock by council tax band, 2015

A B C D E F G H

P
age 111



8

Economic review
Within Greater Manchester there are particular concentrations of 
deprivation in the north east of the Manchester city area and in the 
north east of the city region as a whole. Oldham itself is ranked as the 
34th most deprived district in England (out of 326).
The borough suffers from particularly high levels of deprivation in 
terms of income, employment, education and health. Taken together, 
Oldham’s performance across these domains demonstrates the 
interrelated challenges of low pay, low skill levels, inactivity and poor 
health as structural weaknesses facing the borough.

English Indices of Deprivation, 2015 – rank of average score (1 – most deprived, 326 – least deprived)

IMD Income Employment Education Health Crime Barriers to housing 
and services

Living 
environment

Oldham 34 30 28 34 31 51 315 129

The associations between higher skills, improved 
employment opportunities and reduced levels of inactivity 
are well established. Similarly, employment and socio-
economic status are the main drivers of inequalities 
in physical and mental health and mortality, while 
improvements in health and wellbeing play a key role in 
supporting economic growth.  
It is therefore important that the SIF is brought forward 
as part of an integrated approach, specifically in relation 
to the vision and objectives set out in the Work and Skills 
Strategy and Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

P
age 112



9

Economic review

The performance and development of local 
economies are determined by a range of features but 
key among them are the nature of their underlying 
economic ‘asset base’ and the scale of connectivity 
and interaction with other local areas.
Using a combination of statistical tools at the local 
authority level across England, an analysis has 
been undertaken of how the underlying economic 
characteristics in Oldham contribute to productivity 
performance (GVA per hour), as a surrogate indicator 
for economic performance. 
Oldham shows under performance in all asset 
groups, particularly in terms of skills and occupation, 
accessibility and industrial structure. The combined 
under performance across these assets groups 
equates to an equivalent productivity loss of £8.28 
per hour worked.

Drivers of economic 
peformance

-2.5 -2 -1.5 -1 -0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 2 2.5

GVA (£) per hour productivity loss/gain and England decile

Property

Housing

Occupation / skills

Industrial base

Access / location

Labour market

Enterprise

Decile 9

Decile 8

Decile 8

Decile 6

Decile 7

Decile 4

Decile 6

• Alongside physical regeneration of the place, there 
is a requirement to invest in people, equipping them 
with the necessary skills and training to progress and 
develop. Employment support will need to include help 
to those who have identified health-related barriers to 
employment.

• There is also a continuing need to maximise local job 
opportunities, providing accessible employment that will 
help bring people back into work.

• Addressing the ‘enterprise gap’ will be a key challenge, 
requiring the development of a more balanced economy 
with greater levels of investment and business support. 

• The town centre is a key asset, but the increasing 
pressure on town centres to re-define their role and 
function (including the introduction of more town centre 
living) will need to be addressed as part of ensuring its 
long-term and sustained regeneration.

• Population growth has been identified as a principal 
driver of economic growth for Greater Manchester, with 
Oldham having the ability to play a key role through the 
diversification and improvement of its housing offer. 

Challenges and 
opportunities

The economic review has shown that Oldham has failed 
to benefit fully from growth at the Greater Manchester 
level. As well as the local consequences of this unequal 
performance, the lower levels of growth in Oldham, 
and in other northern parts of the city region, present a 
potential ‘drag effect’ on Greater Manchester. There are, 
as such, clear priorities in terms of enabling Oldham to 
contribute positively to the sustainable growth of Greater 
Manchester and for its residents in turn to be able to 
access and benefit from the resulting opportunities

P
age 113



10

The vision for Oldham is that it will be a key economic 
contributor to Greater Manchester, providing a place 
where business and enterprise can thrive and where 
people will want to live, visit and work. It will also be a 
place where every resident is enabled to contribute to 
and benefit from the continued economic growth of the 
city region.
To achieve this vision, a number of strategic objectives 
have been identified within the SIF. These objectives 
reflect the priorities established for the borough in the 

Oldham Plan and our Corporate Plan, but with a focus on 
the key drivers of economic growth and development.
The strategic objectives for Oldham draw upon a suite 
of research and policy documents for Oldham, while 
recognising that the city region is the appropriate spatial 
level within which to position the economic strategy. As 
such, the objectives have also been informed by the 
wider Greater Manchester strategic context. 

Playing a pivotal role in Greater Manchester’s continued economic success

Vision and objectives

Strategic objectives

1 Develop a skilled, educated and dynamic 
workforce that can compete for jobs in the 
city region.

2 Support people into decent, secure and 
well-paid employment.

3 Achieve a balanced local economy, more 
inward investment and a strong position in 
Greater Manchester.

4 Enable more business start-ups and 
increase survival rates.

5 Ensure we are a place that supports 
sustainable economic growth, encourages 
enterprise and capitalises on new 
technology and transport.

6 Create a town centre that meets local 
residents’ needs and wants, is a thriving 
place for business and attracts visitors to 
the borough.

P
age 114



11

Recent research (OECD Regional Development Working Papers 
2014/10) has sought to understand how income inequality is 
associated with economic growth in OECD regions. The results 
of the research suggest that, at least during the economic crisis, 
there was a general negative association between inequalities and 
economic growth. In particular, higher inequalities seemed to be more 
detrimental for growth in large cities.
As part of the development of the SIF, economic analysis has been 
undertaken, using the results of the OECD research, to explore 
the effects of reducing income inequality within Oldham on the 
wider economic performance of the city region. The modelling has 
suggested that, for example, a 1% reduction in income inequality 
in the borough could result in additional GVA growth in Greater 
Manchester of up to approximately £100 million by 2035.  

At a Greater Manchester level, the focus is on key economic drivers, 
but it is also recognised that there is a need to raise economic 
performance across the whole of the city region. The performance 
of Oldham has lagged behind that of Greater Manchester and for 
a number of socio-economic indicators, the gap has grown and is 
forecast to continue to widen. This is particularly the case for many 
of the borough’s disadvantaged communities. 
The ambition for the SIF is to narrow the economic gap between 
Oldham and Greater Manchester and between disadvantaged 
and other areas. A key aspect to narrowing the gap will be 
providing Oldham residents with the necessary skills and 
experience to access employment opportunities across Greater 
Manchester. But it will also be essential to attract new investment 
and create additional jobs locally. To match the Greater 
Manchester growth rate, some 4,700 jobs above base forecasts 
will need to be created and up to a further 3,400 more would be 
required for the borough to match the city region employment 
rate by 2030.  

Removing the ‘drag effect’

Vision and objectives
Narrowing the gap

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

102

104

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

N
o.

 o
f j

ob
s (

00
0s

)

Growth in jobs

Oldham - base scenario Oldham - growth scenario Oldham - growth scenario

+3,400 jobs

+4,700 jobs

+2,700 jobs

Target growth rate

P
age 115



12

Vision and objectives
Develop a skilled, educated and dynamic 
workforce that can compete for jobs in the 
city region
Over the past decade, significant progress has been made in terms of educational 
achievement, with Oldham closing the gap with the rest of the country with regard to 
Key Stage 2 and GCSE attainment. However, the borough continues to perform poorly 
in relation to higher level skills, with only a quarter of the population qualified to degree 
level compared to over a third nationally.
As well as entrenching social exclusion and inequality, a poor skills base is a barrier 
to growth and higher productivity. A key priority for Oldham is therefore to develop a 
skilled, educated and dynamic workforce that can compete for jobs in the city region. 
The challenge will be to maintain and build upon the progress made in relation to the 
educational attainment of school children, while also increasing the number of adults 
qualified to level 3 and degree level, through both vocational and academic routes, and 
particularly amongst those in disadvantaged groups.  

Measures of success Oldham baseline Gm baseline  
(LA range)

Oldham target

Residents qualified to 
NVQ level 3/4+

43% 53%
(43%–65%)

Rate of 
improvement 
at or above 
GM averageResidents with no 

qualifications
16% 11%

(6%–16%)

Students attaining five 
or more A*–C GCSEs

52% 56%
(47%–72%)

Residents passing 
apprenticeships 

65.8% 68%
(61.7%–72.4%)

Support people into decent, secure and  
well-paid jobs
Within Oldham there are currently 9,600 residents unemployed (ILO definition, July 
2015) - 9.3% of the working-age population, and a further 41,000 residents who are 
economically inactive, of whom 9,400 want to work. Moreover, those residents in work 
are less likely to earn as much as their Greater Manchester counterparts. Pakistani 
and Bangladeshi groups, in particular, are likely to suffer from lower levels of economic 
activity and ‘in work poverty’.
The challenge for Oldham is to ensure that jobs growth in the borough and the wider 
city region translate into accessible opportunities for local residents, while also not 
exacerbating the low wage, low skill structural effects that are direct causes of the 
borough’s economic underperformance. This will involve improving the pathways to 
work and career advancement in order to support people into decent, secure and 
well-paid jobs, with a focus on tackling the barriers to both gaining employment 
and progression to higher wage occupations. Linked to this is the wider health and 
wellbeing agenda, where the priority is to ensure access to the right support to get 
people into work and stay in work.

Measures of success Oldham baseline Gm baseline  
(LA range)

Oldham target

Employment rate 
amongst Oldham 
residents (aged 16-64)

63% 69%
(62%–77%) 

Rate of 
improvement 
at or above 
GM average

Median annual 
earnings of Oldham 
residents

£22,900 £25,500
(£22,100–£30,000)

P
age 116



13

Achieve a balanced local economy, more 
inward investment and a strong position in 
Greater Manchester
The relatively low levels of productivity in Oldham are, in part, due to the general under 
representation of some higher value added sectors in the borough. For example, 
the relative sizes of the financial services, scientific research and development, and 
information and communication sectors (in terms of employment) are all below the 
national average. More generally, there is a continued over reliance on public sector 
employment.
To address these issues, Oldham must seek to attract additional private sector 
investment. The challenge will be to build on the areas where the borough does have 
a comprehensive advantage, such as in high technology business sectors related to 
advanced manufacturing, while also diversifying its economic base in order to achieve 
a balanced local economy.

Measures of success Oldham baseline Gm baseline  
(LA range)

Oldham target

Proportion of 
employment within 
the private sector

72% 76%
(68%–86%)

Rate of 
improvement 
at or above GM 
average

Average GVA per 
employee within 
Oldham 

£36,700 £39,900
(£35,800–£42,600)

Number of 
commercial 
properties (and 
rateable value)

7,631 
(£156.4m)

-

Enable more business start-ups and 
increase survival rates 
In 2010, the Oldham Local Economic Assessment identified a large ‘enterprise gap’ in 
the borough. Since then, the number of active enterprises in Oldham has increased, 
but at half the rate experienced within Greater Manchester as a whole, and there 
remains a relatively low number of businesses as a proportion of the population. Over 
the last decade, the business stock in Oldham grew by 7% – this is the joint lowest 
rate of growth (along with Tameside) of the ten city region boroughs. The growth in 
business births in Oldham over the last ten years has also been among the lowest in 
Greater Manchester.
The objective for Oldham is therefore to enable and support more people to start-
up their own business and for these businesses to then succeed. This will involve 
supporting small independent businesses as part of the development of the town and 
district centres, along with targeting high growth potential business start-ups that have 
the prospect to trade internationally.

Measures of success Oldham baseline Gm baseline  
(LA range)

Oldham target

Number of active 
enterprises (per 10,000 
population)

290 354
(276–501)

Rate of 
improvement 
at or above 
GM average

Number of business 
births (per 10,000 of 
population 

38 52
(37–73)

Vision and objectives

P
age 117



14

Ensure we are a place that supports 
economic growth, encourages enterprise 
and capitalises on new technology and 
transport

Oldham as a place is undergoing significant change, supported by the council’s £100 
million capital regeneration programme. The ambition is to build upon this momentum 
to make Oldham an even better place and to improve perceptions both inside and 
outside of the borough. Key to achieving this ambition will be to make Oldham 
an attractive choice for investors, visitors and new and existing residents through 
improvements to its overall housing, leisure and infrastructure offer. 
A particular focus for Oldham will be to build more quality homes in the borough, 
proving a wider supply of high quality housing across a range of prices and locations. 
Similarly, there is a need to develop key physical infrastructure to support employment 
growth, including the provision of modern good quality business accommodation. This 
will involve identifying the specific requirements of key growth sectors and making the 
best use of our land resource.

Measures of success Oldham baseline Gm baseline  
(LA range)

Oldham target

Percentage of homes 
in Council Tax band 
C-G

29% 34%
(24% - 60%)

Rate of 
improvement 
at or above GM 
average

Number of inward 
investment enquiries 
(and successes) 

826 (175) -

Create a town centre that meets local 
resident needs and wants, is a thriving  
place for business and attracts visitors to  
the borough
The town centre is recognised as the heart of the town and as such is a regeneration 
priority for the council. The Oldham Town Centre Investment Prospectus outlines the 
council’s vision for the town centre summarising the significant capacity for growth. The 
arrival of Metrolink, along with investment in superfast broadband and improved public 
realm have created the setting for new development and investment opportunities.
The traditional role and function of the town centre is, however, coming under 
increasing pressure, particular in relation to its retail core. Oldham Council has 
responded in part to these challenges with initiatives such as the Yorkshire Street 
Independent Quarter, but the town centre needs to reposition itself for the future 
through long-term and sustained delivery of regeneration. This will include a role for 
high quality residential development in the town centre, as well as a repositioned retail 
and expanded SME offer.

Measures of success Oldham baseline Gm baseline  
(LA range)

Oldham target

Vacancy rate within 
the Town Centre

16.3% - Rate of 
improvement 
at or above 
GM averageRetail expenditure 

retained within the 
borough 

58% (£834.2m) -

Vision and objectives

P
age 118



15

Investment framework
Investment, skills, jobs and homes
The range of socio-economic challenges facing Oldham mean that a 
comprehensive investment framework is required. This is reflected in 
the scope of the objectives outlined for the borough. The SIF provides 
the opportunity to bring these priorities together to ensure that 
comprehensive, joined-up action is delivered to grow the economy, 
providing a productive place where business and enterprise can thrive. 
Well paid jobs for local residents will be created, coupled with investment 
in education and skills and the delivery of good quality homes.
The six strategic objectives identified within the SIF have been 
translated into economic priorities under the three themes of People, 
Business and Place. Under each economic priority, a programme of 
suggested activities and projects has been outlined to guide future 
investment.
This has been accompanied by guiding principles to underpin the 
activities and approach to delivery of support. The economic priorities 
for each theme are presented below.
After setting out the programmes for intervention under each of the 
three themes, the SIF identifies a number of priority projects that 
should be the focus for intervention over the next two to three years. 

Investment, 

Skills, Jobs 

and HomesEmployment

Education and 

skills

Enterprise

Finance / 

capital

R&D&I

Infrastructure & 

environment

Marketing & 

promotion Housing

Land & 

premises

Economic priorities

P
age 119



16

Education and Skills
Raising the aspirations and progression of young 
people and working age adults – through the provision 
of high quality careers advice and guidance, improved 
school/industry linkages and promoting opportunities 
arising in growth sectors in Oldham and Greater 
Manchester.
Enhancing the Vocational Further Education offer – 
by working with employers and colleges/FE providers to 
increase the number of apprenticeships, technical and 
specialist courses available for young people, particularly 
those that seek to fill skills gaps and shortages within the 
local economy and the priority growth sectors.  

Improving access to Higher Level Skills provision –  
by ensuring that there is sufficient provision including 
advanced apprenticeships (Level 3 and above), 
undergraduate and postgraduate courses and 
collaboration with industry.      
Developing skills for growth – by promoting the benefits 
of investing in skills development to improve productivity 
and competitiveness, through up-skilling and continuous 
professional development.

Employment 
Providing support to enhance career and income 
progression – particularly for adults in low paid jobs.  
This will involve piloting a Career Advancement Service 
to encourage upskilling and progression within the 
workplace, as well as targeting progression and workforce 
development within and between priority sectors (at both 
an Oldham and GM level).     
Improving employability and reducing levels of 
unemployment – through the provision of intensive person 
centred support to overcome barriers to employment, 
such as health-related issues, greater targeting, and 
integration with specialist support providers.   
Promoting social inclusion in deprived areas – 
to reduce disparities within the borough, through 
collaborative working with partners to improve outcomes 
for local residents. Support will focus on engagement, 
provision of high quality Information, Advice and Guidance 
(IAG), provision of a single case worker to co-ordinate 
access to services and the promotion of social cohesion, 
active participation and volunteering.

Key principles 
underpinning the people 
programme include:
Flexible delivery – so that the pace of training 
is tailored to individuals’ circumstances (e.g. 
modular provision, bite-sized, unit based and 
full qualifications) and training providers respond 
to the changing employment and skills policy 
context and impact of devolved budgets within 
the sub-region.    
Accessible provision – including outreach 
support and flexibility to overcome barriers, 
alongside new innovative models of delivery e.g. 
collaborative training among sectors.
Demand led provision – with business 
involvement at all stages of the process from 
provision of intelligence and design of curriculum 
through to delivery, and promoting the benefits of 
skills investment.
Active engagement of all key stakeholders –  
including individuals, employers, schools and 
post 16 providers, the council and other partner 
agencies, steered by the Economy and Skills 
Cluster.
On-going monitoring – and provision of up to 
date intelligence to ensure continued relevance of 
training and skills provision, particularly in light of 
new market opportunities arising from R&D&I.

People programme – Investment priorities

P
age 120



17

People programme – Key projects and activities

Education and Skills Key projects/activities Delivery partners

Schools and Business 
- raising aspirations 
among young people 

Self-improving education system – work with the newly established collaborative education partnership to improve 
education and skills outcomes and raise standards of provision across Oldham – in conjunction with education 
providers, employers and the wider community.  

Positive Steps
National Career Service 
Volunteer Centre Oldham
Manchester Growth 
Company
Museum of Science and 
Industry
Oldham Council/Schools  

Priority sector ambassadors – identification of sector champions to work in conjunction with the existing STEM 
ambassador programme to work with schools in promoting the benefits and careers available within their sectors.  

Oldham ‘careers offer’ – provision of high quality CEIAG for all young people regarding the various routeways into 
employment (particularly growing sectors) including both vocational and academic routes. 

Work placements – to feature as part of the careers offer for all young people at school, to gain experience in the 
workplace. Project to build on best practice from elsewhere for example the provision of holiday ‘coding’ camps.    

Education/industry skills exchange – co-ordination of schools/college and industry skills exchange such as 
teachers seconded into the workplace to ensure that trainers have up to date relevant expertise and knowledge of 
industry standards.

Enhanced Vocational  
FE offer

Apprenticeship marketing campaign – delivery of targeted marketing and communications activities to promote 
apprenticeships (including higher level) to learners and employers and the potential funding available to support 
this training (Apprenticeship Levy and Adult Learning loans). This needs to align with the promotion of the GM 
Apprenticeships Hub, with local growth focused on high quality sector specific/relevant apprenticeships. 

Oldham College
Oldham 6th Form College
GM Apprenticeship Hub

Oldham ‘skills offer’ – to be developed as part of a wider business development package for all employers co-
ordinated by a personal business advisor. To include an audit/skills action plan and provision of assistance to co-
ordinate recruitment of trainees and access to training support/schemes at all levels, in particular advice regarding 
the new apprenticeship levy.    

Innovative/bespoke training – development of tailored training packages for employers in the priority growth 
sectors – including online training, short course provision and joint training. For example, training support 
targeted at workforce development in the health and social care sector to address identified local and wider skills 
shortages. 

Pilot new apprenticeships models – for example an apprenticeship training agency scheme (ATA) for SMEs 
or particular sectors to reduce the perceived risks of employing apprenticeships, and benefit from shared 
apprenticeship opportunities.  

Advanced learning loans – work with providers and employers to increase demand for loan-funded provision for 
19+, Level 3 provision.

P
age 121



18

People programme – Key projects and activities

Education and Skills Key projects/activities Delivery partners

Higher Level Skills Raise the profile of HE provision in the borough – support the growing UCO presence in Oldham 
and retain specialist engineering and manufacturing provision in Oldham. Promote higher level 
apprenticeships with providers as the levy is introduced and the potential job and career choices 
stemming from higher level skills in the priority sectors.   

Oldham College
Oldham 6th Form College
University of Huddersfield 

Grow Level 4+ loan funded provision in line with the advanced learner loan strategy.

Bursaries/Research grants – assess the potential to develop a grant scheme to provide grants/loans 
for individuals to progress into higher level postgraduate research (MRES, PhDs).

Industry/HE Collaboration – promote the benefits of collaboration and work with companies to 
develop Knowledge Transfer Partnerships (KTPs) and research/postgraduate placements.

Graduate programme – develop graduate retention facilities (incubation space) and a subsidised 
placement programme within the borough.

Skills for Growth Oldham ‘skills offer’ – develop a coherent ‘skills offer’ for employers to include an audit/skills action 
plan and provision of assistance to co-ordinate recruitment of trainees (from entry level upwards) 
and access to training at all levels - apprenticeships, upskilling and in work progression, through to 
graduate placements. 

Local Enterprise Agencies  
Business Growth Hub
Get Oldham Working 

Sector based training – design tailored and joint training among businesses in the priority growth 
sectors, including short courses delivered for the workforce at their place of work, for new entrants 
and upskilling existing employees.

Access to funding – provide support to enable businesses to access and utilise external and 
mainstream funding alongside their own investment in skills in the workforce (to be co-ordinated by 
the personal business advisor/account manager as described later).

Industry/FE collaboration – facilitate greater collaboration between employers, FE colleges and HE 
institutions to provide seamless opportunities for individuals to work, learn and progress throughout 
their careers.

High quality sector specific and relevant apprenticeships – work with sector bodies and the 
apprenticeship marketing campaign, to provide apprenticeships in growth sectors to meet the needs 
of employers - maximising the value of the levy.

P
age 122



19

People programme – Key projects and activities

Employability and social inclusion Key projects/activities Delivery partners

Career and in work progression Career advancement service – develop and pilot a trailblazer model for Oldham, via an extension 
of the Get Oldham Working (GOW) offer, to provide brokerage, intensive career coaching and a 
personal training budget for low paid adults in work, to assist progression onto advanced or higher 
level learning and/or employment.   

Oldham Council 
Positive Steps
National Careers Service 
Volunteer Centre Oldham  

Sector progression – work with careers advisors and employers to promote in work progression 
and upskilling – including Continuing Professional Development (CPD) - and develop progression 
pathways, building on entry level jobs, within the priority sectors and between the sectors, taking 
advantage of new learning loans available for working age adults and the career advancement 
service.  

Encourage participation in the Fair Employment Charter among local employers – to promote 
adoption of the living wage, fair contracts and stability of employment, access to training and 
support, to enable and encourage employees to 'do their bit' for the borough, and support local 
people into work through Get Oldham Working.

Support innovative upskilling and in work progression initiatives – provide training support for 
employers seeking to upskill existing employees within the workplace for example Warehouse to 
Wheels scheme. 

Sector academies – provide additional employability support and assistance to remove barriers to 
employment, in conjunction with sector based support. For example, the development of sector-
based academies that combine work tasters, pre-recruitment training, and guaranteed interviews for 
candidates taking part. These academies could be designed and delivered in partnership with the 
priority growth sector businesses.

Employability support for people 
outside the labour market 

Intermediate Labour Market Opportunities – provide funding for intermediate labour market 
interventions and supported employment to assist the transition back into the labour market, and the 
provision of post recruitment support.

Positive Steps
Get Oldham Working 

Overcoming barriers to work – provision of funding to address barriers to skills development and 
employment. This may include flexibility with regard to eligibility criteria or access issues that require 
the development of alternative models of delivery – for example online training, outreach provision, 
or support with language and translation.

Access to training – work with Level 4+ providers to develop access routes and provision for 
individuals from target groups and target areas within the borough; and maintain the Adult Education 
Budget funded provision in Oldham.

P
age 123



20

People programme – Key projects and activities

Employability and social inclusion Key projects/activities Delivery partners

Social inclusion Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) – engage hard to help groups through the provision of IAG, 
delivered on an outreach basis, including the transition back to employment; financial advice to 
overcome debt issues; or specialist advice to address health and well-being problems (e.g. drugs 
and alcohol issues, mental health problems).

Positive Steps
Family Intervention Team 
Youth Justice Service
OASIS (Oldham Alcohol 
and Substance Intervention 
Service)
Voluntary Action Oldham 
DWP Working Well 

Integrated work/health commissioning – develop interventions that support joined up health and 
work approaches. For example engage in the GM-wide Work and Health programme, and support 
contractors to deliver the Phase 2 of the Working Well programme providing a single point of contact 
and tailored support to overcome issues holding people back from work by tackling barriers ‘at the 
right time, in the right order, by the right people’.   

Active participation and volunteering – promote social cohesion in deprived areas through initiatives 
that encourage active participation, for example volunteering and participation in community and 
voluntary activities organised through the VAO (Voluntary Action Oldham) network; or council 
initiatives - Get Oldham Growing.

P
age 124



21

Business programme – Investment priorities

Enterprise Development
Prioritising Sector Development – through the 
preparation of sector specific growth plans to address 
industry needs within identified target sectors.  
Developing effective and efficient supply chain 
linkages – by facilitating linkages and promoting 
efficiency improvements through innovation and flexible 
support to adapt products and working practices.
Enhancing our inward investment package – through 
joint marketing with MIDAS/UKTI to position Oldham 
and develop comprehensive packages of assistance 
with aftercare support.          
Offering high quality business advice, support 
and mentoring – by providing support at all stages of 
businesses development (start-up, growth and scaling 
up), encompassing the development of a business 
engagement protocol to formalise the relationship 
between the local enterprise agencies and the GM 
Business Growth Hub.

R&D and Innovation 
Facilitating growth through innovation and a general 
uplift in research and development – by focusing 
on promoting collaboration and knowledge transfer, 
maximising existing assets (for example, through the 
development of a Health Centre of Excellence) and the 
adoption of new technologies, including in relation to 
low carbon and environmental goods and services.   

Finance/Capital
Promoting awareness and access to funding – by 
sourcing potential funding, through the development 
of relationships with local banks and other lenders 
and facilitating access to European and Government 
sources. Active marketing and signposting will be 
required, in conjunction with support to access funding, 
including venture capital. New funding schemes will 
be explored to support business start-ups, including a 
turnover rent offer for council premises.      

Key principles underpinning 
the business programme 
include: 
Appointment of a personal advisor – to streamline 
the advisory service and access support on behalf of 
the business.
Demand-led provision – responsive to changes 
taking place within the industries in Oldham, 
particularly the growth sectors and those facing rapid 
technological change.
Maximising job opportunities for local residents 
– to ensure that they benefit from investment in the 
borough.
Ongoing monitoring – to verity that business support 
activity is delivering value for money and services that 
are relevant to the needs of businesses.

Marketing and promotion will also form an important part 
of supporting business growth and development. The key 
investment priorities and activities in relation to marketing 
and promotion are set out under the Place Programme. 

P
age 125



22

Business programme – Key projects and activities
Enterprise activities Key projects/activities Delivery partners

Sector Development Priority sector growth plans – including measures to increase skilled labour, access to sites and premises, other 
infrastructure improvements (for example IT, transport access), finance for business investment, exploiting R&D&I, 
export advice and support to access new markets, collaborative marketing and promotion. 

Oldham Council 
Oldham Chamber
Sector bodies/
networks
Business Growth Hub
GM Apprenticeship 
Hub 
Colleges 

Specialist joint sector projects – development of sector specific projects arising from the individual sector growth 
plans.  For example, the development of a shared apprenticeship schemes for employers in manufacturing industries 
in the north east of Oldham, Chadderton and Hathershaw.   

Supply Chain 
Development

Developing supply chain linkages – facilitate meet the buyer events, local capacity registers, provision of 
procurement/legal advice to develop contract clauses.   

Supply chain efficiency improvements – provide support for businesses to introduce supply chain efficiency 
improvements, to meet Original Equipment Manufacture (OEM)/Tier 1 supplier requirements.  

Inward Investment Joint marketing – Invest in Oldham work in conjunction with GM partners (MIDAS and UKTI) to target inward 
investment opportunities and position Oldham within the city region. 

Invest in Oldham 
MIDAS
UKTIComprehensive support packages – develop a coherent support offer, which includes the coordination of services 

(finance, property, recruitment and skills) and the delivery of aftercare support.

Business advice, 
support and mentoring

Business engagement strategy/protocol – design a business engagement and support strategy (or protocol) with an 
‘Oldham Business Account’ and personal business advisor central to the model.

Local Enterprise 
Agencies (e.g. Blue 
Orchid)
Oldham Council
Oldham Chamber
Business Growth Hub
Other Manchester 
Growth Company 
partners

Shared services for business start-ups – provide shared services for business start-ups and SMEs to complement 
existing provision (for example - the Acorn Business Centre; the E3 Business and Enterprise Hub; Falcon Business 
Centre) and additional incubation space and innovation centres in key locations (for example, the new Office 
Quarter).

Develop networks and a directory of support – tailor other business support to meet Oldham’s needs, by facilitating 
linkages with key partners, for example the colleges in relation to apprenticeship support and upskilling; and the 
Unity Partnership with regard to property and business premises.

P
age 126



23

Business programme – Key projects and activities
Finance/capital activities Key projects/activities Delivery partners

Promoting awareness and 
access to funding sources

Source funding – through the development of relationships with local banks and other lenders; and facilitating 
access to European and Government sources (e.g. for sectoral growth, exporting, innovation).

Manchester Growth 
Company
Oldham Council

Marketing/signposting – deliver active marketing and signposting support to raise awareness, through business 
events, websites, and via the network of business account/relationship managers.

Accessing funding – provision of assistance to help businesses access funding (including venture capital). The 
personal business advisor will be responsible for accessing/delivering this support. 

Development of funding 
schemes

Grant/loan schemes – develop a scheme such as a turnover rent offer for council premises for business start-ups 
and work with incubators to identify start-up needs.

Policy to support objectives – develop a business rent/rates scheme and policy that supports the delivery of these 
objectives.

R&D&I activities Key projects/activities Delivery partners

Research & Development 
Knowledge Transfer

Develop a Health Centre of Excellence – with key partners in the borough to maximise the benefits of existing 
assets including the Royal Oldham Hospital (which has received £62m investment since 2009) and includes a 
£17m state of the art radiotherapy centre, the first of its kind in the UK, delivered through the joint venture with 
The Christie Cancer Centre. The centre of excellence will also benefit from the investment in primary health care, 
including new integrated health care centres delivered by Community 1st Oldham, the Local Improvement Finance 
Trust Company.   

Oldham Council 
NHS Oldham
Pennine Acute 
Hospital NHS Trusts
Oldham Chamber
Business Growth Hub 
Other Manchester 
Growth Company 
partners  

Promote awareness/access to research findings and knowledge – in particular, information that will impact growth 
within their industries, so that they are in a position to respond by innovating and investing in new products and 
processes accordingly. This will include facilitating linkages with the Innovate UK Knowledge Transfer Networks 
and co-ordinators and liaising with the Research and Development and Innovation (R&D&I) activities being 
delivered by the National Catapult Centres, in addition to local activity.                                                  

Maximise the benefits of existing assets – and facilitate greater collaboration with industry, through Knowledge 
Transfer Partnerships and postgraduate research activity and placements.  

Innovation support Adoption of new technologies – promote innovation amongst the business base, particularly the key priority 
sectors, and provide flexible support for companies to adapt to new products and services, including green 
technologies. Ensure that this innovation is cascaded throughout the supply chain. 

P
age 127



24

Land and Premises
Transforming the town centre – through building on 
the success achieved to date and significantly improving 
the business, residential and leisure offer within the town 
centre. 
Bringing forward the development of strategic sites 
and premises – by working with the various joint venture 
vehicles in place and other site owners/developers to 
develop, deliver, promote and market key development 
schemes, including sites identified through the GMSF.  
Creating an attractive and vibrant network of district 
centres – through the development and implementation 
of district centre development plans.  

Housing 

Supporting the development of key residential sites 
– by providing housing market advice and support to 
facilitate the delivery of new high quality housing. 
Unlocking private sector investment – by exploring new 
routes through which to unlock additional investment, 
such as through the establishment of a co-investment 
vehicle.

Infrastructure and 
Environment
Delivering a programme of strategic transport 
improvements – by working alongside Transport for 
Greater Manchester to identify key public transport 
schemes and major road improvements, including 
opportunities relating to the development of orbital public 
transport links, the proposed trans-Pennine tunnel, HS3 
and new road links opening up strategic and housing 
employment sites within the borough.  

Improving broadband provision and take-up – through 
activities to raise awareness of the benefits to business 
and interventions to ensure reliable and high speed 
access.
Developing Oldham’s cultural assets – through the 
delivery of the Cultural Regeneration Programme, and 
enhancing the use of existing assets.
Improving the quality of Oldham’s environment – 
by investing in the borough’s public open spaces and 
supporting low carbon living and working through new 
low carbon homes, commercial properties and transport.   

Marketing and Promotion 
Developing a marketing programme – which will 
include updating and refreshing the place marketing 
strategy and collaboration with Marketing Manchester to 
ensure a consistent message.  
Raising the profile of the area and the businesses 
within it – by working alongside Greater Manchester 
partners to improve the perceptions of Oldham and the 
city region nationally and internationally

Place programme – Investment priorities

Key principles include:
• raise the quality of Oldham’s places;
• maximise land resources to drive growth and 

increase productivity; 
• identify key physical infrastructure requirements 

to support growth in housing and employment, 
particularly in identified growth sectors; 

• transform social infrastructure provision to match 
demographic change and housing delivery; and 

• develop a policy framework to influence quality 
and location of development.

P
age 128



25

Land and premises Key projects/activities  Delivery partners

Town Centre Work with the developers to deliver key projects underway – including Prince’s Gate at Oldham Mumps, the Old Town 
Hall, and Public Realm improvements.

Oldham Council 
Joint Venture Partners 
Invest in Oldham 
Unity Partnership 

Progress the delivery of new projects including Hotel Future, the Cultural Regeneration Programme, and Bloom Street 
– through the provision of assistance to secure external/gap funding, engage development partners and ensure the 
schemes are delivered in accordance with outline plans. 

Develop the town centre ‘Quarters’, including the Office Quarter and the Independent Quarter, through marketing 
and promotional activities, provision of business support to assist businesses relocating to these areas, and the 
consideration of future options for all of the council’s markets.

Provide advice and support to housing market developers and investors to access public sector funding to deliver 
town centre residential property schemes (nine residential sites identified to date, as potential options for co-
investment through the residential development vehicle).

Explore the regeneration and redevelopment of One Public Estate assets. This could encompass the development of a 
mixed-use offer, including a new hotel, office and residential accommodation, retail space and a new town square. 

Sites and Premises Provision of assistance to develop and deliver the Hollinwood and Foxdenton sites – through site servicing and access 
issues at Foxdenton.
Promote and market the development opportunities available at Broadway Business Park and Greengate.  

Oldham Council 
Invest in Oldham 
Unity Partnership 

District Centres Develop district centre development plans and associated programmes to transform/improve in particular the following 
local areas: Royton Town Centre, Chadderton and Shaw. 

Oldham Council 
Investors
Private sector developers

Co-Investment Vehicle Complete the establishment of a co-investment vehicle for Oldham and identify and deliver an initial phase of the 
scheme.  

Oldham Council 
GMCA

Place programme – Key projects and activities

P
age 129



26

Land and premises Key projects/activities  Delivery partners

Land disposal and 
Lettings policy

Continue to deliver the strategic approach to land disposal – working with investors, developers and the co-investment 
vehicle, in order to generate sites that could be used for residential/commercial development and economic growth.  

Oldham Council 
Private sector developers

Develop a Property Lettings and Investment Policy – to maximise the economic impact associated with the council’s 
existing property portfolio.  

Update the Corporate Asset Strategy – to incorporate the strategic approach to land disposal and the new policy 
regarding property lettings and investment.       

New strategic 
employment site

Work with local partners and the GMCA to release Green Belt land near Stakehill and in North Crompton, for the 
development of new employment sites linked to priority sectors. This would include opportunities adjacent to major 
transport corridors.  

Oldham Council 
Landowners 
Private sector developers 
GMCA 

Housing Key projects/deliverables Delivery partners

Market support 
programme

Provide advice and support to developers, investors and registered providers to enable them to access public 
sector funding that will facilitate the delivery of new high quality housing – offering greater choice for residents 
within the borough. 

Oldham Council 
Unity Partnership 

Promote the delivery of housing at key residential sites such as Lancaster Club and Fletchers Mill. 

Develop projects that target vacant properties, the private rented sector, and key groups, including starter homes 
making use of the Homes and Communities Agency’s new programme.

Co-investment vehicle Directly invest in the delivery of new housing through the co-investment vehicle, and provide new residential units 
in identified sites across the borough.

Oldham Council 
Developers
Registered providers

Place programme – Key projects and activities

P
age 130



27

Infrastructure and 
environment

Key projects Delivery partners

Transport Work with Transport for Greater Manchester to deliver a programme of strategic and local improvements/
investments – to complement the new Metrolink investment, including road improvements to the main 
gateways into the town centre, open up new strategic employment and housing sites, and to explore the 
opportunities to provide rapid transport links as part of developing a public orbital transport network.

Oldham Council 
Transport for Greater 
Manchester 

Broadband Continue to support delivery of improvements to the broadband and Wi-Fi Infrastructure across the borough 
to ensure that businesses can benefit from superfast broadband and next generation access.  

Oldham Council

Work with businesses to raise awareness of the new infrastructure and the potential business benefits 
available and provide support to encourage uptake of the new technologies.  

Cultural assets Deliver the new Cultural Regeneration programme – through the provision of assistance to secure external 
funding and appointment of a development partner. 

Oldham Council
Developer
School Network 
Invest in Oldham 

Enhance the use of existing assets – including Gallery Oldham, Oldham Library, Lyceum, The Queen Elizabeth 
Hall and George Street Chapel – through greater promotion and marketing. 

Environment Improve the quality and extent of the borough’s public open spaces – by providing new and enhanced public 
spaces, linked to key developments such as the One Public Estate assets, and by making it easier to access 
the borough’s open spaces and existing environmental assets. 

Oldham Council
Transport for Greater 
Manchester
DevelopersSupport the low carbon agenda – by building on the success of Metrolink to provide a range of sustainable 

transport services for residents and commuters, promote the development of low carbon housing and 
commercial premises, and support the development of the low carbon and goods and services sector.

Place programme – Key projects and activities

P
age 131



28

Marketing and promotion Key projects Delivery partners

Place marketing programme Update/refresh the Place Marketing Strategy – which seeks to incorporate place marketing, place making 
and place shaping to provide a holistic approach to place management which will in turn deliver growth, 
investment and jobs.

Oldham Council 
Invest in Oldham 
Unity Partnership 
Marketing Manchester Implement the strategy – through co-ordinated advertising, stakeholder engagement, production of new 

marketing materials, event delivery, enquiry/customer relationship management and embedding consistent 
messages in marketing materials. This will require joint work with Marketing Manchester.

Continue to develop/refresh the suite of prospectus’ that are designed to raise the profile of Oldham as a 
place to live, visit and invest in. This will include material produced for the:
• dedicated business marketing campaign
• tourism campaign (building on Visit Oldham)
• investment prospectus
• residential development prospectus  
• individual development sites 

Marketing Oldham and the 
Business Base 

Deliver a dedicated business support campaign – with particular emphasis on the sectors that Oldham is 
seeking to grow. This needs to complement the activities of Marketing Manchester to ensure that Oldham is 
well positioned within the GM city region.

Oldham Chamber
Invest in Oldham 
Marketing Manchester
MIDAS
UKTI

Invest in Oldham – build on the established ‘Invest in Oldham’ brand/campaign and the ‘offer’ for potential 
investors, to ensure that a complete package of support is provided that includes pro-active aftercare support 
to ensure that the business is embedded within the local economy.

Develop an Oldham ‘Ambassador’ role – to work alongside the MBASSADOR programme being delivered 
by Marketing Manchester, to raise the profile of the Greater Manchester city region as a leading business 
location.

Develop the Visit Oldham (tourism site) into a targeted campaign that adds value to the business support, and 
inward investment offers, highlighting the tourism infrastructure across the borough and further afield within 
Greater Manchester. 

Work with partner agencies to develop a shared business events calendar – to raise awareness and promote 
the support on offer for businesses wanted to invest and expand within the Oldham area – including start-ups, 
existing businesses and potential inward investors.

Place programme – Key projects and activities

P
age 132



29

Priority sectors

Identifying priority growth sectors
As part of developing the SIF, analysis has been undertaken to understand the key 
potential growth sectors for Oldham. This has encompassed a review of economic 
forecasts for the borough and an assessment of its strengths and assets. The six 
priority sectors identified have been selected on the basis of their ability to drive future 
jobs and economic growth as well as increased productivity. Four of the sectors, 
where the borough already has strong clusters of employment, (manufacturing, 
logistics, construction and property, and health and social care) are areas where 
Oldham is seen as having the potential to play a lead role at the city region level. In 
terms of retail, leisure and hospitality and professional and business support services, 
these sectors will provide an important focus for achieving a balanced local economy. 

Manufacturing/high-tech industries
Why is this sector important?
Manufacturing is still a large employer within Greater Manchester and 
particularly dominant in Oldham, where it accounts for 14% of employment. 
It is also highly productive with a GVA per person in employment of £60,000, 
compared to the borough average of £36,700. Future GVA growth within the 
sector in Oldham is forecast to be higher than the respective growth rate at the 
UK level.
Strengths of the sector in Oldham
The strength of the manufacturing sector in Oldham is wide ranging, with, 
for example, a significant increase in employment in textile manufacturing in 
recent years. However, the borough also performs strongly in relation to high 
technology sectors related to manufacturing and advanced manufacturing is the 
largest sub-sector in terms of number of businesses.
Supply side requirements
The changing nature of manufacturing, particularly in terms of the advanced 
manufacturing sector, is driving demand for modern, high quality industrial 
property with access to major transport links. There is also an increasing 
need for higher level skills in manufacturing, with a shift towards managers, 
professional and associate and technical occupations.
Programmes to support sector development
Higher level skills development; sector and supply chain development; 
access to finance; technology transfer; innovation programme; new strategic 
employment sites. 

P
age 133



30

Logistics
Why is this sector important?
Logistics is the sixth largest sector in Greater 
Manchester in terms of employment and seventh 
largest in terms of GVA. It is also identified as a key 
enabler of growth for the city region’s other sectors. 
Within Oldham, the sector employs some 3,800 people, 
representing 5% of the total workforce, with forecasts 
suggesting that employment in the sector will continue 
to increase.
Strengths of the sector in Oldham
Oldham benefits from an accessible location, with direct 
access to the M60 and M62, and is in close proximity 
to the regional centre. It is also able to offer relatively 
affordable sites and premises. The analysis of forecasts 
for Oldham highlights a particular strength with regard to 
land transportation and warehousing. 
Supply side requirements
The principal requirements of the logistics sector will be 
related to location and access to major transport routes, 
along with the availability of suitable sites and premises. 
Historically, the sector has been associated with 
relatively low level skill requirements, although it is has 
begun to move towards a higher skill business model. 
The government’s logistics growth review highlighted 
difficulties in attracting high skilled young entrants as a 
significant barrier to increased productivity.
Programmes to support sector 
development
Skills for growth; employment support and career 
progression; employability programme; sector and 
supply chain development; access to finance; new 
strategic employment sites.

Construction and property
Why is this sector important?
There are some 53,000 people employed in the 
construction sector in Greater Manchester and it 
is estimated that it contributes £3bn of GVA to the 
city region economy. It is also an important sector 
in Oldham, accounting for 6% of the borough’s total 
employment. The construction sector is forecast to grow 
significantly across Greater Manchester. 
Strengths of the sector in Oldham
The GMFM forecasts highlight that buildings 
construction, engineering and specialist construction 
activities, along with real estate activities, are particular 
strengths within Oldham, with both sectors expected to 
be key drivers of employment and productivity growth. 
Research by New Economy also suggests that Oldham 
is well placed to benefit from anticipated growth in 
residential development within the city region.  
Supply side requirements
The extensive supply chain associated with the 
construction sector means that locational requirements 
will include good access to major transport routes. Skills 
supply is also a key issue facing the sector nationally, 
with the sector having emerged from the recession with 
an increasing skills gap.
Programmes to support sector 
development
Skills for growth; employment support and career 
progression; employability programme; sector and 
supply chain development; technology transfer; 
innovation programme; town centre; residential 
development vehicle. 

Priority sectors

P
age 134



31

Priority sectors

Health and social care
Why is this sector important?
Health and social care is the largest single sector 
in Greater Manchester, providing employment for 
over 165,000 people (14% of total employment). 
Future population trends are likely to place increasing 
pressure on this sector, stimulating demand for further 
employment. The sector is also the largest employer in 
Oldham, accounting for 18% of the total workforce.   
Strength of the sector in Oldham
The health and social care sector has seen significant 
growth in Oldham and economic forecasts suggest 
that this growth will continue. The sub sectors of 
human health, residential care and social work are each 
expected to drive growth in employment and GVA.  
Oldham also benefits from a number of local assets. This 
includes Oldham Royal Hospital, which employs some 
4,700 people and has benefited from over £62 million of 
investment since 2009.
Supply side requirements
The health and social care sector has continued to 
suffer from recruitment and retention problems, linked 
in part to increasing demand due to demographic 
changes. There also remains a range of skills gaps and 
occupational shortages that represent a barrier to raising 
productivity in the sector.
Programmes to support sector 
development
Enhanced vocational FE offer; higher level skills 
development; employment support and career 
progression; employability programme; sector 
development; technology transfer; innovation 
programme; town centre

Retail, leisure and hospitality
Why is this sector important?
Combined, the retail, leisure and hospitality sectors 
make up a significant proportion of both the Greater 
Manchester and Oldham economy. They provide an 
important route into work and ‘entry level jobs’ with a 
large proportion of the jobs being accessible to those 
with lower level skills. In relation to Oldham in particular, 
the retail, leisure and hospitality sectors are also seen as 
key to transforming the borough as a place to live, work 
and visit.
Strength of the sector in Oldham
There is continued growth forecast in employment 
in the hospitality and leisure sectors across Greater 
Manchester and Oldham has begun to improve its offer 
to ensure it is well paced to benefit from this growth. 
This includes the development of a new cinema complex 
and two new leisure centres, along with the town centre 
cultural regeneration programme. The proposed Hotel 
Future project will also deliver hospitality sector skills and 
training.
Supply side requirements
Similar to health and social care, recruitment and 
retention of staff is identified as one of the biggest 
challenges facing the retail, leisure and hospitality 
sectors. Improving the image of the sectors among 
potential employees, developing staff skills, and 
initiatives to promote in work progression are all seen as 
critical.
Programmes to support sector 
development
Schools and business; changing vocational FE 
offer; employment support and career progression; 
employability programme; business advice; marketing 
programme; town centre.

P
age 135



32

Professional and business support services
Why is this sector important?
Together, the professional and business support services sectors employ some 
228,000 people in Greater Manchester (19% of total employment) and encompass a 
range of high value added activities. Professional services is forecast to be one of the 
highest growth sectors for the city region in terms of both employment and GVA, with 
business support services also expected to grow strongly.     
Strength of the sector in Oldham
There has been recent strong growth in professional and business support services 
within Oldham, with employment concentrated in the town centre. However, focused 
investment is required to further develop these sectors and target businesses wishing 
to locate outside of the regional centre in lower cost accommodation. The arrival of 
Metrolink and the proposed development of an Office Quarter in the town centre will 
help to strengthen Oldham’s offer. 
Supply side requirements
Key supply requirements will include access to skilled labour and strong business to 
business links, along with good quality accommodation close to public transport and 
other facilities.
Programmes to support sector development
Higher level skills; employment support and career progression; sector and supply 
chain development; inward investment; business advice; access to finance; marketing 
programme; town centre; new strategic employment sites.

Priority sectors

Importance of priority sectors to Oldham

(2014) Employment Location quotient* GVA per employee

Manufacturing 11,200 1.7 £60,000

Logistics 3,800 1.1 £22,300

Construction and 
property

6,400 1.3 £69,200

Health & social 
care

14,300 1.4 £23,700

Retail, leisure & 
hospitality

15,800 0.9 £20,800

Professional & 
business support

8,300 0.6 £43,500

Source: ONS, BRES; Oxford Economics, GMFM
*The location quotient represents the ratio of the proportion of employment in the sector 
locally compared to the proportion of employment in the same sector nationall

P
age 136



33

Priority projects – People and business

The Career Advancement Service has been developed by Greater 
Manchester partners as a potential trailblazer. The proposed service 
would target low paid adults in work with the intention of lifting in-work 
progression through skills acquisition. This has the potential to address the 
low rates of progression by employees in low skilled work by giving adults 
in work a greater opportunity to take advantage of support for learning 
and development. The service would involve intensive career coaching 
and a personal training budget to enable low skilled workers to find paths 
to better skilled and better paid work. Within Oldham, the trailblazer will 
be established via an extension of the core Get Oldham Working offer, 
providing for continued post-employment support and progression onto 
advanced or higher level learning and/or employment. 
The model will directly address a key issue arising at a national level – 
namely projected vacancy rates contrasting sharply with the number of 
young people forecast to enter the labour market over the next decade. 
Career and pay progression of working age adults in employment will also 
assist areas move towards full employment and raise productivity levels 
which are currently lagging in many areas, including Oldham.   
It is proposed that the Career Advancement Service model is piloted in 
Oldham, Rochdale or Tameside before this is rolled out across the city 
region or nationally. A variety of funding routes are being explored to 
test the model including: the Adult Skills Budget, the new round of ESF, 
government pilot funding, and exploring the diversion of funding currently 
used by the National Careers Service.

Sector development
A range of actions will be undertaken to support the development of 
each of the identified priority sectors. These actions can be grouped as 
follows: markets - to stimulate demand; to enable access to markets; and 
to attract mobile investment from outside of Oldham and the city region; 
capital – to ensure the availability of finance; to secure an appropriate skills 
base; and to meet infrastructure requirements; and enterprise: to provide 
business support; to promote R&D and innovation; and to encourage 
business collaboration.

Employment support and career/wage progression 

P
age 137



34

Wider borough development sites
Five priority projects have been identified outside of the town centre, involving the delivery of new housing 
and high quality employment space. Consideration is also being given to the potential to release land in the 
Green Belt to create new strategic employment sites.

Foxdenton, Broadway Green
• Development of a premium business 

park (office, business and industrial 
space)

• Residential development for up to 500 
aspirational homes

• Potential to create 2,095 gross jobs and 
gross GVA of £84m p.a.

Hollinwood Junction
• Development of new business 

destination on the M60, at a key 
gateway into Oldham Town Centre

• Proposals for up to 25,000 sq m of 
employment / commercial space

• Potential to create 750 gross jobs 
and gross GVA of £36m p.a.

Unlocking private sector investment
Potential to create a co-investment vehicle 
that would bring forward the development of 
residential and employment sites, both in the 
town centre and wider borough.

Fitton Hill, Medlock Vale
• 10.7 hectares of cleared brownfield land in 

public ownership
• Capacity for 320 new homes, creating 760 

construction jobs
• Gap funding of £2.1m required to progress

Hartford Mill, Werneth
• Demolish grade II listed mill causing 

considerable blight
• Potential for 240 new homes, creating 400 

construction jobs
• Gap funding of £3.7m required to progress

Priority projects – Place

P
age 138



35

Priority projects – Place

Oldham Town Centre 
The town centre is an investment priority for the council and 
a number of priority projects have been identified to drive 
forward economic growth.

One Public Estate
• Use of public sector assets to provide new 

office, residential, retail and leisure space
• Encompass new market hall and town square
• Potential to create 950 new gross jobs and 

£38m gross GVA p.a.

Prince’s Gate
• Major new retail and leisure 

anchors 
• New office, commercial and 

residential areas
• Creation of 839 gross jobs and 

£21m gross GVA p.a.

Old Town Hall
• 800 seat, seven screen Odeon 

cinema, with six restaurant units
• Create a leisure anchor as part 

of wider cultural and retail offer
• Potential to stimulate creation of 

238 gross new jobs and £5.7m 
gross GVA p.a.

Southlink, Eastern Gateway
• Major new town centre residential 

opportunity for up to 800 homes
• Mixed use quarter, with improved 

public realm, walking and cycle 
linkages

• Oldham Council and TfGM ownership

Cultural Regeneration Programme
• Development of a new Heritage and 

Arts Centre and new theatre
• Part of longer term plan to deliver a 

cultural hub in the town centre

P
age 139



36

Option 1 - Masterplan Massing
Priority projects – Place

One Public Estate    
Master planning work is currently being undertaken 
to see how public assets within the town centre 
can be used to bring forward a major development 
opportunity. This will form part of the next stage of the 
town centre’s transformation, following the successful 
delivery of projects such as the new leisure centre and 
redevelopment of the Old Town Hall.

P
age 140



37

Driving economic  
growth in Oldham
The priority projects outlined above will generate a 
range of economic benefits for Oldham and the wider 
city region. Combined, it is estimated that the key 
development sites could generate the following impacts:
• new investment of over £650 million, supporting some 

8,700 person years of construction employment;
• a total of 4,300 full-time equivalent (fte) gross jobs 

generated through the provision of new employment 
space;

• an uplift in GVA per annum of approximately 
£200 million as a result of the new employment 
opportunities created; and

• the provision of around 3,300 new homes, including 
new housing provision within the town centre.

The delivery of the priority projects will also generate new 
revenue to the public sector through additional Council 
Tax, New Homes Bonus and business rates.

Priority projects

Priority project benefits

The benefits of  
narrowing the gap
The interventions outlined within the SIF, including 
the identified priority projects, will play a key role 
in narrowing the gap with Greater Manchester. 
An analysis has been undertaken of the 
consequential impacts if this gap can be closed 
by 2030, specifically in relation to the borough’s 
employment rate.
If Oldham were to succeed in this ambitious 
target, it is estimated that there would be 
potential public sector cost savings over the 
period of up to £141 million. This would comprise 
of savings in benefits payments and savings to 
the NHS related to a reduction in health care 
costs associated with being out of work (based 
on data from the New Economy Unit Cost 
Database).    
As identified within the DWP Social Cost-Benefit 
Framework, further cost savings would also be 
expected, for example in terms of reduced crime 
resulting from unemployed people entering work. 

It has been estimated that the new housing provided 
through the priority projects could lead to New Homes 
Bonus payments amounting to a total of £32 million. 
Added to this, the projects could generate £5 million per 
annum of additional Council Tax revenues and £6 million 
per annum of new business rates income, once fully 
complete.

P
age 141



38

Making it happen

Governance and delivery arrangements
Overall governance of the SIF will be provided by the Oldham Leadership 
Board Economy and Skills sub-group, with individual programmes and actions 
overseen by sub-boards and working groups, as outlined below.

Investment programme
An extensive capital programme has been put in place to support development within 
the borough, with more than £140 million allocated to key projects. The next step is 
for the Delivery Team and individual working groups to develop business cases for the 
priority projects identified in the SIF which have yet to secure funding. These will form 
part of detailed investment plans, prioritising action by area and programme.   

A dedicated team focused on delivery of the SIF, drawn from relevant 
departments within Oldham Council and its partners, will be formed, with clear 
roles and responsibilities established.
At a project-by-project level, joint mechanisms and working arrangements will 
be developed, taking forward and building on the council’s existing linkages 
with partner organisations.

Project Capital 
budget 
required

Capital 
budget 
allocation

Oldham Town Hall £40.8m £40.8m

Cultural Regeneration Programme (Phase A-D) £39.5m £24.9m

Hotel Future - -

Prince’s Gate £56.1m £56.1m

Independent Quarter £1.9m £1.9m

Independent Quarter Grants Scheme £1.0m £1.0m

Town Centre Public Realm Programme £0.4m £0.4m

Tommyfield Market £3.9m -

Foxdenton £0.3m £0.3m

Hollinwood £1.4m £1.4m

Residential Development Programme £0.1m £0.1m

Saddleworth School £2.0m £2.0m

Northmoor Academy £7.6m £7.6m

Oasis Limeside Phase 2 Expansion £1.0m £1.0m

Greenfield Primary School £6.2m £6.2m

P
age 142



39

Making it happen

Funding the SIF
Funding the SIF will involve significant private and public sector resources. Oldham 
Council will continue to make suitable investments to realise the SIF vision and 
objectives. It will use its funding (including prudential borrowing, where appropriate) 
to:
• lever private and other public sector investment;
• invest in assets that offer a return – which can be recycled to further deliver the 

SIF;
• secure other European, central government and Greater Manchester funding; 
• support projects that generate additional business rates, New Homes Bonus and 

Council Tax which can be used to fund the council’s activities; and
• use its existing assets (including land) to generate additional benefits.

Monitoring and evaluation
As part of delivering the SIF, it will be important to establish a performance 
management framework to monitor the progress of individual projects and to provide 
evaluation evidence regarding the overall success of the wider programme areas 
and lessons learnt. This framework will be developed in parallel with establishing the 
delivery arrangements for the SIF.

It is envisaged that the performance management framework will include a bottom-
up analysis of each of the individual projects, identifying their inputs, outputs and 
outcomes, along with a top-down analysis of changes in key strategic outcome 
indicators (such as employment rate and productivity) to provide an overall 
understanding of how Oldham is performing.
A range of strategic outcome indicators have been identified within this SIF, as set 
out in the table below. These will be reviewed as part of developing the performance 
management framework, with monitoring arrangements put in place to ensue data can 
be collected in a consistent and timely manner.    

Strategic outcome indicators

1. Proportion of residents (aged 16-64) qualified to NVQ level 3/4+

2. Proportion of residents (aged 16-64) with no qualifications 

3. Proportion of students attaining five or more A*-C GCSEs

4. Employment rate amongst Oldham residents (aged 16-64)

5. Median annual earnings of Oldham residents

6. Proportion of employment in Oldham within the private sector

7. Average GVA per employee within Oldham

8. Number of commercial properties (and rateable value)

9. Number of active enterprises (total and rate (per 10,000 population)) 

10. Number of business births (total and rate (per 10,000 population))

11. Percentage of homes in Oldham in Council tax band C-G

12. Number of inward investment enquiries (and successes)

13. Vacancy rate within Oldham Town Centre

14. Retail expenditure retained within Oldham (total and proportion)

P
age 143



P
age 144



[O&S WP at 14/11/17 – 17/18 V8]        Page 1 of 11 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING PLAN 

 
PART A – MEETING PROGRAMME  

  
MEETING 
DATE & 
VENUE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY OF ISSUE CABINET 
PORTFOLIO (link 
to Corporate 
Outcome) 

RESOLUTION / 
RECOMMENDATION 

Comments  

      

Tuesday, 13th 
June 2017 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
reports: 1st 
June 2017 

Children’s Services – 
Getting to Good 
 

Update and Overview on 
the service and mock 
inspection 
 

Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
(Getting the Basics 
Right) 
 

RESOLVED that: 
1. The update on the Children’s 

Social Care ‘Getting to Good’ 
Improvement Plan be noted. 

2. The establishment of a Task and 
Finish Group on the issue of 
training be discussed at the next 
Health and Wellbeing Link 
Meeting. 

3. A further update on the 
Independent Review be 
presented to Board in January 
2018. 

Requested by the 
Board in January 
2017 

 Adult Safeguarding – 
Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards 

Update to the Board Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
(Getting the Basics 
Right) 
 

RESOLVED that: 
1.  The Deprivation of Liberty 

Safeguards (DoLS) Update, 
current position and areas of 
development be noted. 

2. A further update be received by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Board 
in 12 months’ time. 

Requested by the 
Board in January 
2017 

 Corporate Plan Refresh Economy and 
Enterprise 
(Reforming and 
Empowering Public 
Services) 

RESOLVED that: 
1.  The proposed Corporate Plan 

update and comments provided 
be noted. 

2. The crosscheck against Cabinet 
portfolio areas and Administration 
priorities be noted. 

3. An update on the Corporate Plan 

Requested via 
email 22 May 17  

P
age 145

A
genda Item

 10



[O&S WP at 14/11/17 – 17/18 V8]        Page 2 of 11 

be presented to Board in 12 
months. 

 O&S Board Work 
Programme 

Review of the Work 
Programme for the 2017/18 
Municipal Year 

 RESOLVED that: 
1.  The O&S Work Programme for 

2017/18 be noted. 
2. Reports be explored on Libraries, 

Highways – 24 Hour Response 
and Transport for future meeting. 

 

 

 O&S Annual Report Summary of work 
completed by the O&S 
Board, PVFM and Health 
Scrutiny during the 2016/17 
Municipal Year. 
 

 RESOLVED that the Annual Report 
be commended to the Council 
meeting on 12 July 

 

      

Tuesday, 18th 
July 2017 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
reports: 6th 
July 2017 

Get Oldham Working 
and Career 
Advancement 
Services (Work and 
Skills Strategy) 

Update to the Board Employment and 
Skills (A Working 
Borough) 

RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The update on the Work and 

Skills Strategy be noted. 
2. A further meeting be arranged 

with the Principal of Oldham 
College for an update on the 
Area Based Review. 

3. An update on the Work and Skills 
Strategy be received by the 
Board in 12 month’s time. 

 

Requested by the 
Board in July 2016 
and January 2017 

 Welfare Reform / 
Universal Credit 

Follow on from workshop 
including delays in 
Universal Credit, 
overpayments and 
sanctions. 

Finance & HR 
(Getting the Basics 
Right) 

RESOLVED that: 
 
1.  The information provided on 

Universal Credit be noted. 
2. The DWP be asked to attend the 

O&S Board meeting in 
September. 

3. An update on Universal Credit be 
received by the Board in January 
2018. 

 

Requested via Link 
Meeting 27 June 

P
age 146



[O&S WP at 14/11/17 – 17/18 V8]        Page 3 of 11 

 Work Programme Standing Item  RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The Overview and Scrutiny Board 

Work Programme be noted. 
2. The update on the Inclusion 

Review be noted. 
3. The update on the Education 

Task and Finish Group be noted. 
 

 

 Key Decision 
Document 

Standing Item  RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The Key Decision Document be 

noted. 
2. An update be requested on the 

Royton Town Centre Master 
Plan. 

 

 

      

Tuesday, 5th 
September 
2017, 6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
reports:  23rd 
August 2017 

Resident First 
Programme 

Update on the 
implementation 

Finance & HR 
(Empowering the 
Positive Reform of 
Public Services) 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The update on the 

implementation of the Resident 
First Programme be noted. 

2. An update on the Resident First 
Programme be brought back to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Board 
in six month’s time. 

3. The number of free school meals 
and information how the system 
had made an impact be provided 
to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Board members. 
 

Requested by the 
Board in March 
2017 

 O&S Board Work 
Programme 

Update on the work 
programme 

 RESOLVED that: 
1. The Overview and Scrutiny Board 

Work Programme be noted. 
2. The Work Programme be kept 

under review whereby items were 
delayed. 

 

P
age 147



[O&S WP at 14/11/17 – 17/18 V8]        Page 4 of 11 

3. Elected Members be contacted 
for questions to be asked to the 
DWP at the next meeting. 

4. The MASH item now be a 
workshop and visit to the unit be 
included on a date to be 
confirmed. 

5. The Two Year Plan for Delivering 
the Offer to Two Year Olds (Early 
Years) and 3 and 4 Year olds 
referenced on the Work 
Programme be referred to the 
Performance and Value for 
Money Select Committee. 

6. Councillor McLaren be appointed 
to the Street Charter Task Group. 

7. The Community Shop update 
circulated at the meeting be 
noted. 

 

      

Tuesday, 17th 
October 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 5th 
October 2017 

Universal Credit 
Sanctions 

DWP Representatives have 
been invited. 

Finance & HR 
(Empowering the 
Positive Reform of 
Public Services) 
 

RESOLVED that: 
1. The information provided related 

to Universal Credit be noted. 
2. The questions and responses 

provided be noted. 
3. Further case studies and 

questions be sent to the DWP 
representatives. 

4. A visit be arranged for Overview 
and Scrutiny Board members to 
the Oldham Job Centre. 

 

 

 Transport Update on the 2040 
Strategy and Delivery Plan 

Environmental 
Services (A 
Regenerating and 
Confident Borough) 

RESOLVED that: 
1. The GM2040 Transport Strategy 

and Supporting Sustainable 
Economic Growth report and the 
information provided at the 
meeting be noted. 

Requested by the 
Board in June 2017 

P
age 148



[O&S WP at 14/11/17 – 17/18 V8]        Page 5 of 11 

2. Further discussion on information 
for District Executives related to 
transport officers be arranged 
and an update provided through 
the work programme. 

3. An update on the GM2040 
Transport Strategy be provided in 
12 months’ time. 

 

 Homelessness 
Strategy 

Update on Strategy and 
Action Plan 

Neighbourhoods and 
Cooperatives (Safer, 
stronger and striving 
communities) 

RESOLVED that: 
1. The Homelessness Strategy 

Update and the information 
provided at the meeting be noted. 

2. The activity by the Council to 
continue to work with partners to 
prevent and addresses 
homelessness in the Borough be 
supported. 

3. The emerging issues and 
priorities for the Homelessness 
Action Plan 2018/19 be noted. 

4. The increase of the use of the 
Selective Licensing Scheme be 
included as a priority for the 
coming year. 

 

Requested by the 
Board in January 
2017 

 Community Shop Update on schemes Neighbourhoods and 
Cooperatives 
(Engaging and 
Resilient 
Communities) 

RESOLVED that as the issue of the 
Community Shop model had been 
considered and explored in 
consultation with a range of partners, 
and following the engagement and 
the review of the opportunities for 
Oldham it be agreed that: 
1. No further work be undertaken 

related to the Community Shop 
as this was not the most 
appropriate solution for Oldham 
due in part to limitations on 
access for all residents and the 

Link Meeting, 27 
June and update 
provided to 5 Sep 
17 meeting 

P
age 149



[O&S WP at 14/11/17 – 17/18 V8]        Page 6 of 11 

changing capacity, interest and 
ambition in Oldham maturing 
through the community-led 
Oldham Food Network. 

2. A locally-led model refocussed on 
the investment in building new 
and existing community food and 
growing hubs as part of a 
sustainable and co-operative 
approach be taken forward by the 
Growing Oldham: Feeding 
Ambition Partnership. 

3. Updates from the Growing 
Oldham: Feeding Ambition 
Partnership be reported back to 
the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 

      

Tuesday, 28th 
November 2017 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 16th 
November 2017 

Oldham Town 
Centre Master Plan 

Update to the Board Economy & 
Enterprise (A 
Regenerating and 
Confident Borough) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 – 
report title changed 
per email and 
agreed with the 
Board on 
2017.10.17 
 

 Business Growth 
and Investment 
Strategy 

Information on the strategy Economy & 
Enterprise (A 
regenerating and 
confident borough) 
 

 Link Meeting 25 Jul 
2017 

 Academy 
Conversion and Free 
Schools  

Update to the Board Education and Early 
Years (An ambitious 
and socially mobile 
borough) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 
and March 2017 

      

      

      

P
age 150



[O&S WP at 14/11/17 – 17/18 V8]        Page 7 of 11 

Tuesday, 16th 
January 2018 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 4th 
January 2018 
 

Review of the Town 
Centre Parking 
Strategy 

Update on the Strategy and 
Parking Provision in the 
Town Centre 

Economy and 
Enterprise (Oldham 
is Open for 
Business) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
January 2017. 

 Children’s Social 
Care ‘Getting to 
Good’ Improvement 
Plan Update 

Update on the improvement 
plan and independent 
review 

Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
(Outcome Driven 
Services) 
 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
June 2017 

 Universal Credit Update on the roll out Finance & HR (Safer, 
Stronger and Striving 
Communities) 
 

 Updated requested 
by the Board in July 
2017 
 

 Street Charter Update on the 
implementation 

Policy & Governance 
(Outcome Driven 
Services) 

 Requested by the 
Board in October 
2016 

      

Tuesday, 6th 
March 2018 
6.00 p.m.  
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 
22nd February 
2018 
 

Selective Licensing 
Scheme 

Update on the impact of the 
scheme 

Neighbourhoods and 
Cooperatives (Safer, 
Stronger and Striving 
Communities) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
March 2017 

 Virtual School Update on the work of the 
Virtual School 

Education and Early 
Years (An ambitious 
and socially mobile 
borough) 

1.  Update requested 
by the Board in 
Mach 2017 

 Social Value 
Framework 

Outcomes within the 
Framework 

Corporate and 
Commercial  
(Empowering the 

2.  Link Meeting, 25 
July 17 

P
age 151



[O&S WP at 14/11/17 – 17/18 V8]        Page 8 of 11 

positive reform of 
public services) 
 

 Resident First 
Programme Update 

Update on the 
implementation of the 
system 

Finance & HR 
(Empowering the 
Positive Reform of 
Public Services) 
 

3.  Update requested 
by Board at the 
meeting held on 5 
September 2017 

 

 

PART B – ONE OFF MEETINGS AND WORKSHOPS 
 

Date Title Summary of issue Directorate Timescales Notes Outcome 
14 Sep 
2017 

Improving 
Individual  
Electoral 
Registration  

Workshop Corporate and 
Commercial  

July 2017 A workshop was held on 14th November 
2016.  Further workshops were held in 
July and September 2017. 

 

TBC Community 
Cohesion 

Workshop Health and 
Wellbeing 

   

TBC Children’s Social 
Care Training 

Task and Finish Group 
to address training. 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

 With a focus on multi-agency 
safeguarding training following the 
presentation of CQC Inspection 
feedback 
 

 

20 Sep 
2017 

Education Task 
and Finish 
Group 

To discuss 
disadvantage 
(including the Pupil 
Premium) 

Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

September 
2017 

Discussion have taken place between 
the Chair of O&S Board and the Interim 
Director of Education & Early Years. 
Meeting scheduled on 20 September 
2017 

 

TBC Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding 
Hub 
 

Update on the 
development of the 
Hub 

Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
(Safer, Stronger 
and Striving 
Communities) 
 

 Requested by the Board in January 
2017; to be completed as a workshop.   

 

TBC Greater 
Manchester 
Spatial 
Framework 

Update on the 
Development 

Neighbourhoods 
& Cooperatives 
A regenerating 
and confident 

 A workshop was recommended at the 
Economy and Skills Link meeting held on 
28th September 2017. 

 

P
age 152



[O&S WP at 14/11/17 – 17/18 V8]        Page 9 of 11 

borough) 

 
 
PART C – OUTSTANDING ISSUES – DATES TO BE DETERMINED 
 

When 
Discussed 

Title Summary of issue Directorate Timescales Notes Outcome 

 Social Value 
Framework 

 Corporate and 
Commercial 

March 2018 An Update was requested by the Board in 
September 2016. 

 

 National Tree 
Week 

 Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

 Raised by Councillor Williamson and 
agreed by Councillor Brownridge 

 

Council, 
September 
2016 

Making Oldham 
Council more 
Dementia 
Friendly 

 Health and 
Wellbeing 

 Task and Finish Group met.  An action 
plan was created.  Council informed 13 
September 2017 

 

O&S Board 
13 Jun 2017 

Libraries  Health and 
Wellbeing 

 Date to be confirmed.  

O&S Board 
13 Jun 2017 

Highways – 24 
Hour Response 

 Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

N/A It was agreed at a Link meeting that this 
was not necessary to go to Board at this 
time. 

 

O&S Board 
13 Jun 2017 

Transport  Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

 Report to be discussed in October 2017  

O&S Board 
18 July 2017 

Inclusion Review Update to the Board Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

January (TBC) An progress update was provided to the 
Board on 18 July. 

 

O&S Board 
March 2017  

Tourism Strategy Update on the 
development of the 
Strategy 

Economy & 
Enterprise 
(Oldham is 
Open for 
Business) 
 

 Requested by the Board in March 2017  

Deferred per 
Link meeting 
held on 26 
Sep 2017 

Generation 
Oldham 

Update and feedback 
on money saved 
through the scheme 

Finance and HR 
(Outcome 
Driven Services) 

 Update requested by the Board in 
November 2016 – to be scheduled in 
January 2018 

 

Council, 8th 
November 

Combatting Acid 
Attacks 

Motion asked O&S 
Board with Trading 

Economy, Skills 
and 

   

P
age 153



[O&S WP at 14/11/17 – 17/18 V8]        Page 10 of 11 

2017 Standards and retailers 
associations to 
examine introduction of 
voluntary scheme 

Neighbourhoods 

ESN Link 
Meeting 9 
Nov 2017 

Review of 
Housing Strategy 

Update Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

   

 
PART D – ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 

Date of Meeting Title of Report Directorate Action(s) Date Completed and Outcome 

TBC Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub HWB Visit to be arranged in September 
2017 as a workshop 

 

18 July 2017 Work and Skills Strategy ESN Meeting to be arranged with the 
Principal of Oldham College to 
discuss the Area Based Review 

Email providing dates sent on 27 
July 

18 July 2017 Welfare Reform/Universal Credit C&C Invitation to DWP to come to Board 
in September 

DWP attending the Board 
meeting in October 2017 

18 July 2017 Key Decision Document ESN Update on Royton Town Centre 
Master Plan 

Information received, 20 July and 
provided to members on 5 Sep. 

5 September 
2017  

Resident First Programme Update C&C Number of free school meals and 
information how system had made 
an impact to be provided to 
members. 
 

Information received on 18 
September. 

5 September 
2017 

Two Year Plan for Delivering the 
Offer to Two Year Olds (Early 
Years) and 3 and 4 Year Olds 

HWB To be referred to PVFM Referred to PVFM on 6 Sep 2017 

5 September 
2017 

Email to be sent requesting 
questions for the session with the 
DWP in October 2017 

C&C Email to be sent to members Email was sent by Comms 

17 October 2017 Visit to be arranged at the Job 
Centre 

C&C Visit to be arranged following an 
invitation by the DWP 
representatives 

 

17 October 2017 Further case studies and questions 
be sent to the DWP on the 

C&C   

P
age 154



[O&S WP at 14/11/17 – 17/18 V8]        Page 11 of 11 

implementation of Universal Credit 

17 October 2017 Further discussion on information 
for District Executives related to 
transport officers be arranged and 
an update provided through the 
work programme. 
 

ES&N Councillor McLaren to meet with 
Transport officers 

 

 

 

P
age 155



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Board received an update on the GM 2040 Transport Strategy 
and Supporting Sustainable Economic Growth at the meeting held on 17th October.   
 
Summary 
 
Members asked questions at the meeting and responses have now been received as 
follows: 
 
Question 1:  The complexity of the ‘Get Me There’ App and its usability being a general 
issue of concern – 
 
Response:  The ‘Get Me There App’ is an off-the-shelf product used by a number of 
transport operators, including First.  Consequently, the ability to configure the app to 
specific requirements is somewhat limited.  The app was launched to deliver incremental 
benefits to customers in the knowledge that it would need to evolve over time.  The 
number of products available on the app has been increased by using a phased approach 
and it is intended to launch multi-modal products in 2018, subject to agreement with bus 
operators.  There have been usability issues recently due to third party server capacity 
issues as the app provider took on board a number of new customers; this has been 
raised with the supplier and it has been assured that additional capacity has been 
procured and that customer should experience an improvement in the speed of the app.  
Ways will continue to be explored in which the app can be developed to improve customer 
experience and reduced any perceived complexity (although this is difficult to do without 
specific feedback). 
 

Briefing Note to Overview and Scrutiny Board 

 
Update on GM2040 Transport Strategy and 
Supporting Sustainable Economic Growth 
 

Report Author: Lori Hughes, Constitutional Services Officer 
Ext. 4716 
 
28th November 2017 

Page 157



 

  2 

NOTE:  If members want to feedback any specific issues, they can be forwarded to the 
Principal Officer Transport and Highways Policy, who will forward them onto TfGM for 
further consideration. 
 
Question 2:  The limited time period over which a single journey ticket remains valid once 
it has been bought (2 hours was mentioned). 
 
Reponse:  The time limit of 2 hours is consistent with all ticket media (paper, ITSO card 
and the app) for single journeys and the outward leg of return journeys.  The time limit is 
included as an anti-fraud measure against the re-use of tickets on the network.  The app 
makes this explicit to customers in a way that the traditional terms and conditions on paper 
products do not, hence a perception that this is new and restrictive. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Board is asked to note the responses provided. 
 
 

Page 158



 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
Purpose of the report  
 
To provide an update on the progress of the Selective Licensing Scheme.   
 
 
1. Background  
 
1.1 In December 2014 Selective Licensing of Private Landlords Consultation Final 

Proposals Report was approved by Cabinet.  The report detailed the outcome of the 
consultation and was seeking consideration of whether to designate a selective 
licensing scheme.  A Selective Licensing Scheme was approved in St Mary’s, 
Hathershaw, Waterhead, Primrose Bank, Hollinwood, Oldham Edge, Alexandra & 
Coldhurst. 

 
1.2 In March 2015 a Selective Licensing Phased Implementation was approved by 

Cabinet. This enabled the areas to commence on the following dates: 
 

St Mary’s   1st May 2015 
Hathershaw & Waterhead  6th July 2015 
Primrose Bank & Hollinwood  1st September 2015 
Alexandra, Oldham Edge & Coldhurst  1st January 2016 

 
1.3 This report provides an update to the Overview and Scrutiny board following on 

from the report dated 14th March 2017.   
 
 

Briefing Note to Overview and Scrutiny Board 

 
Selective Licensing Scheme Update  
Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Barbara Brownridge  
 
Officer Contact:  Helen Lockwood - Executive Director Economy, 
Skills & Neighbourhoods. 
 
Report Author: Neil Crabtree, Head of Public Protection. 
Ext. 4141 

 
28th November 2017  

Page 159



 

   

 
2. Current position  
 
2.1 As can be seen from the designation dates detailed in paragraph 1.2, most of the 

neighbourhoods are currently in the third year of the five year scheme. The 
neighbourhoods known as Alexandra, Oldham Edge and Coldhurst are currently 
coming to the end of the second year. 

 
2.2 The table attached as appendix 1 to this report shows the current position by 

neighbourhood and details the number of applications received, licences granted 
and the team’s understanding of the remaining privately rented properties whose 
owners have still not applied for a licence. 

 
2.3 Within some neighbourhoods there is also a significant number of properties where 

the tenure of the property is still unknown.  
 
2.4 This issue about understanding the neighbourhood tenure picture in totality has 

recently been discussed with the chair of the Overview and Scrutiny board Cllr 
MacLaren and the Councillor for Waterhead Cllr Dean. 

 
2.5 A suggestion was made to link in more closely with the “big local” funded If Oldham 

project who are working extensively in Clarksfield. This would enable more 
intelligence to be gathered as to the location of other privately rented properties and 
therefore allow the Council and relevant teams get to grip with some of the 
emerging issues     

    
3. Recommendations 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Board is asked to note the content of this update report. 
 
 

Page 160



   
    

 
 
Appendix 1 
 
 
 

SL Area Total No. of 
Properties 

(All Tenure) 
 

No. of 
Licence 

Applications 
Received 

No. of 
Licences 
granted 

No of known Private 
rented properties 
(No Application) 

No of 
properties 
(unknown 

tenure) 

Of the unknown 
tenure expected 

number of private 
rented % 

 

St Mary’s  922 229 157 38 6 2 

Hathershaw 2484 424 196 107 169 56 

Waterhead 2673 575 245 169 280 92 

Primrose Bank 1940 363 160 147 204 67 

Hollinwood 1749 236 80 114 144 47 

Oldham Edge 1106 66 28 57 0 0 

Alexandra 1020 216 36 62 110 36 

Coldhurst 1706 144 52 192 88 29 

Total 13,600 2253 954 886 1001 329 

 
 
Total number of Prosecutions for failure to licence:  17 
 
Total number of pending prosecutions for failure to licence: 319 
 

P
age 161



T
his page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD – 28 November 2017 
 

GENERAL EXCEPTION AND SPECIAL URGENCY DECISIONS 
 

Background 
 

The Chair (or their nominee) is given powers in the Council’s Constitution to give authorisation 
for key decisions to be made under the following rules: 
 
Rule 16 – General Exception 
 
Where the decision has not been placed on the Forward Plan, but it is possible to give 5 clear 
days notice of the decision to be made, Rule 16 allows that the decision may be made where the 
relevant Executive Director has obtained agreement in writing from the Chair of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Board (or his/her nominee) of the matter about which the decision is to be made. 
Notice of this setting out the reasons why compliance with the 28 day notice period was 
impracticable will be made available at the offices of the local Authority and be published on the 
Council’s website.  Any decision made in this way is still subject to a potential call-in. 
 
Rule 17 – Special Urgency:  
 
In certain circumstances it may be impracticable both to: 
 

1. Place the decision on the Forward Plan, and 
2. Give 5 clear days notice prior to the decision being made 

 
Rule 17 allows that in these circumstances the decision may still be made where the decision 
maker has obtained agreement from the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Board (or his/her 
nominee) or if not available the Mayor or in their absence the Deputy Mayor.  As soon as it is 
reasonably practicable after the decision maker has received agreement from the Chair of 
Overview and Scrutiny that the decision is urgent and cannot be reasonably deferred, a notice 
will be made available at the offices of the local Authority setting out the reasons why 
compliance with the 28 days was impracticable and this will be published on the Council’s 
website. Where Rule 17 applies the decision is exempt from call-in. 
 
 
 
For the Municipal Year 2017/ 2018 the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Board is 
Councillor McLaren (Substitute Councillor Goodwin)  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 163

Agenda Item 11



 

Subject Matter Officer Rule 
Applied 

Date of Decision 
and Date of 
authorisation 

By Reason(s) for the decision  

UPL Ray Ward, 
Executive 
Director 
Corporate and 
Commercial 
Services 

Rule 16 Decision: 23 
October 2017 
 
Authorisation: 10 
October 2017 

Councillor 
McLaren 

DECISION AUTHORISED: 
 
For the report to be agreed, be subject to call-in 
and the report be considered in private due to 
commercially sensitive information.  The decision 
could not be reasonably deferred was due to the 
timelines of negotiations needed to meet legal 
and financial commitments as set out in the 
report and the undertaking of consultation. 
 

Transport for the North Paul Entwistle, 
Director of 
Legal 

Rule 17 Decision: 
 
Authorisation: 10 
October 2017 

Councillor 
McLaren 

DECISION AUTHORISED: 
 
For the report to be agreed and exempt from 
call-in.  The decision could not be reasonably 
deferred was due timelines notified by the 
Secretary of State and the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (GMCA). 
 

 

P
age 164



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

1 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

 
 

Economy and Enterprise Cabinet Portfolio 
 

RCR-09-
14 
 

Eastern Gateway Town Centre Land and 
Property Acquisitions 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

February 2018 Cabinet 

Description:  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private for financial and commercial reasons 

RCR-10-
14 
 

Western Gateway Town Centre Land and 
Property Acquisitions 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

February 2018 Cabinet 

Description: To acquire strategic land and properties across the Western Gateway of the Town Centre  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private for financial and commercial reasons 

ECEN-08-
16 
 

Oldham Property Partnerships - Final 
Reconciliation 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

February 2018 Cabinet 

Description: Reconciliation of money held in OPP joint venture.  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report to be considered in private due to its commercial sensitivity and detailing of 
financial affairs. 

ECEN-01-
17 
 

Queen Elizabeth Hall Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

January 2018 Cabinet 

P
age 165

A
genda Item

 12



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

2 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: To review the options for the Queen Elizabeth Hall. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: The report will be considered in private by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act as it is not in the public interest to disclose the information because it relates to the finanical or 
business affairs of the Council. 

ECEN-02-
17 
 

Hotel Oldham Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

January 2018 Cabinet 

Description: To review the options for Hotel Oldham. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: The report will be considered in private by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act as it is not in the public interest to disclose the information because it relates to the finanical or 
business affairs of the Council. 

ECEN-12-
17 
 

Oldham Heritage and Arts Centre/Oldham 
Coliseum Enabling Works 

Borough Solicitor 
(Paul Entwistle), 
Borough Treasurer, 
Director of Economy 
and Skills 

January 2018 Cabinet 
Member - 
Economy & 
Enterprise 
(Leader - 
Councillor Jean 
Stretton) 

Description: The implementation of enabling works in relation to the development of a new heritage and arts centre and a new theatre. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Part A Cabinet report (Oldham Cultural Quarter), 24th April 2017. 

P
age 166



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

3 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

ECEN-18-
17 
 

Princes Gate Development: Site B Delivery 
Strategy 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

January 2018 Cabinet 
Member - 
Economy & 
Enterprise 
(Leader - 
Councillor Jean 
Stretton) 

Description: Approval is required for officers to proceed with the delivery of the site B at Princes Gate based upon the recommended 
delivery strategy. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private:  

ECEN-20-
17 
 

Royton District Centre Master Plan Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

December 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To ask Cabinet to support the Royton Master Plan as a visionary document to guide possible future investment and 
improvements in Royton. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Royton Master Plan 

ECEN-21-
17 
 

Business and Investment Review Director of Economy 
and Skills 

December 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Report that reviews current ways of working and identifies a number of improvements that could be implemented to increase 
business engagement and support the economic growth of the Borough. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Oldham Business and Investment Strategy 
Oldham Strategic Investment Framework 

ECEN-22-
17 
New! 

Land at Ward Lane, Diggle Director of Economic 
Development 

December 2017 Cabinet 

P
age 167



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

4 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: Following the advertising of the land for sale, bid have been received which are in excess of the Key decision threshold. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private - the bids remain confidential 

 

Education and Early Years Cabinet Portfolio 
 

EDS-14-15 
 

Kingfisher School - Hydrotherapy Pool Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

January 2018 Cabinet 

Description: To determine funding and project structure for construction of replacement hydrotherapy pool at Kingfisher School.  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private - financial information relevant to a competitive tender process 

EEY-07-17 
 

Proposed School Expansion of Alexandra Park 
Junior School 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

December 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Due to the need for additional school places in East Oldham, Oldham LA are proposing an expansion of Alexandra Park 
Junior School. A public consultation is taking place between 27.09.17 and 25.10.17. All consultation responses will then by submitted to 
Cabinet to make a final decision as to whether the expansion will be agreed. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report will be public. 

EEY-08-17 
 

Community School Admission Arrangements 
2019/2020 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

February 2018 Cabinet 

Description: As per the School Admissions Code, School Admission Arrangements have to be consulted on every 7 years, even if there 
have been no changes in that period. It has now been 7 years since the last consultation took place. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Public 
Admission Arrangements 2019/2020 

 

P
age 168



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

5 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Employment and Skills Cabinet Portfolio - None 
 

 

Social Care and Safeguarding Cabinet Portfolio 
 

SCS-12-17 
 

Modification to Poppyfields contract Executive Director - 
Health and Wellbeing 

February 2018 Cabinet 

Description: Request approval to modify existing contract with current provider of Poppyfields service 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private: market sensitive information prior to contract being modified 

SCS-13-17 
 

Contract Awards for Oldham Healthwatch and 
NHS Independent Complaints Advocacy service 
2017 

Executive Director - 
Health and Wellbeing 

January 2018 Cabinet 

Description: Request approval to award contract(s) following open tender exercise 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private: market sensitive information prior to contracts being awarded 

SCS-15-17 
 

Contract Extension request: provision of 
stairlifts, ceiling track hoists and vertical and 
step lifts 

Executive Director - 
Health and Wellbeing 

January 2018 Cabinet 

Description: To seek approval to extend a contract for provision of stairlifts, ceiling track hoists and vertical and step lifts to domestic 
properties where residents have disabilities 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of the council 

 

Health and Wellbeing Cabinet Portfolio - None 
 

P
age 169



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

6 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

 

Neighbourhoods and Cooperatives Cabinet Portfolio 
 

NEICO-06-
17 
 

Authorities Monitoring Report 2016/17 Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

December 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Cooperatives 
(Cllr Barbara 
Brownridge) 

Description: Oldham's Monitoring Report (AMR) covers the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 and sets out the five-year housing land 
position as at 1 April 2016. 
 
The requirement to produce monitoring reports is contained within Section 35 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as 
amended by para 113 of the Localism Act 2011). 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report Title: Authorities Monitoring Report 2016/17 
 
Background Documents: Authorities Monitoring Report 2016/17 
 

NEICO-10-
17 
New! 

Brownfield Land Register Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

December 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Cooperatives 
(Cllr Barbara 
Brownridge) 

P
age 170



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

7 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: Local authorities are required to prepare and maintain registers of brownfield land that is suitable for residential 
development. This must be published by 31st December 2017. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Brownfield Land Register. 

NEICO-11-
17 
New! 

Draft Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment (SHLAA) 

Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

January 2018 Cabinet 
Member - 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Cooperatives 
(Cllr Barbara 
Brownridge) 

Description: A Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) is a technical exercise to assess the amount of land that could 
be made available for housing development. It is part of the evidence base that will inform the plan making process. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Draft SHLAA 

NEICO-12-
17 
New! 

Approval to extend the contract for delivery of 
Oldham’s Integrated Support Services for Young 
People 

Executive Director - 
Health and Wellbeing 

December 2017 Cabinet 

Description: The current contract for delivery of Oldham’s Integrated Support Services for young people comes to an end on March 31st 
2018. The services are known and referred to locally as Targeted Youth Services. Elements of the services are statutory functions which 
the Council must deliver. This report requests approval to extend the contract for 1 year from 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019 with a 
variation to the contract value. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private - because it contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 

 

Environmental Services Cabinet Portfolio - None 
 

 

P
age 171



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

8 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Finance and HR Cabinet Portfolio 
 

CFHR-06-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue 
Monitor and Capital Investment Programme 
2017/18 Quarter 2 

The Chief Executive December 2017 Cabinet 

Description: The report provides an update on the Council’s 2017/18 forecast revenue budget position and the financial position of the 
capital programme as at the period ending 30 September 2017 (Quarter 2) 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue Monitor and Capital Investment 
Programme 2017/18 Quarter 2 
 
Background Documents: Appendices – Various 
 
Report to be considered in Public 
 

CFHR-07-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue 
Monitor and Capital Investment Programme 
2017/18 Quarter 3 

The Chief Executive March 2018 Cabinet 

Description: The report provides an update on the Council’s 2017/18 forecast revenue budget position and the financial position of the 
capital programme as at the period ending 31 December 2017 (Quarter 3) 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue Monitor and Capital Investment 
Programme 2017/18 Quarter 3 

CFHR-08-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue 
Monitor and Capital Investment Programme 
2017/18 Month 8 

The Chief Executive February 2018 Cabinet 

P
age 172



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

9 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: The report provides an update on the Council’s 2017/18 forecast revenue budget position and the financial position of the 
capital programme as at the period ending 30 November 2017 (Month 8) 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue Monitor and Capital Investment 
Programme 2017/18 Month 8 

CFHR-11-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance - Third Sector 
Loan 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial 

January 2018 Cabinet 

Description: Loan to Third Sector Organisation 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report Title: Report of the Director of Finance - Third Sector Loan 
The options and alternatives contained within the report are commercially sensitive. 
 
Background Documents: The appendix to the report will contain information that is commercially sensitive. 

CFHR-13-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance - Capital 
Programme & Capital Strategy for 2018/19 to 
2021/22 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial 

February 2018 Cabinet 

Description: To consider the Council's capital programme and capital strategy 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report Title: 
Report of the Director of Finance - Capital Programme & Capital Strategy for 2018/19 to 2021/22 
 
Background Documents: Appendices 
 
Report to be considered in public 

CFHR-14-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance - Revenue 
Budget 2018/19 and Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2018/19 to 2021/22 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial 

February 2018 Cabinet 

P
age 173



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

10 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: To consider the administration's detailed revenue budget reduction proposals (2018/19 to 2021/22) and the presentation of 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy for the Council (2018/19 to 2021/22) incorporating the current policy landscape and Local 
Government Finance Settlement 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report Title: Report of the Director of Finance - Revenue Budget 2018/19 
and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2021/22 
 
Background Documents: Various Appendices 
 
Report to be considered in public 
 

CFHR-15-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance - Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement 2018/19 - 
including Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement, Annual Investment Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial 

February 2018 Cabinet 

Description: To consider the Council's Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report: Report of the Director of Finance - Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 2018/19 - including Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement, Annual Investment Strategy and Prudential Indicators 
Background Documents: Various Appendices 
 
Report to be considered in public 

CFHR-16-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance - Budget 
2018/19 - Determination of the Tax Bases for 
Council Tax Setting and for Business Rates 
Income Purposes 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial 

December 2017 Cabinet 

P
age 174



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

11 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: The determination of the tax bases for Council Tax setting and for Business Rates income for use in 2018/19 budget 
deliberations. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report: Report of the Director of Finance - Budget 2018/19 - Determination 
of the Tax Bases for Council Tax Setting and for Business Rates Income Purposes  
 
Background Documents: Appendices (Various) 
 
Report to be considered in public 

CFHR-17-
17 
 

Joint Report of the Executive Director Economy, 
Skills & Neighbourhoods and Director of 
Finance - Strategic Housing Revenue Account 
Estimates for 2017/18 to 2021/22 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial, 
Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

February 2018 Cabinet 

Description: The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) outturn estimates for 2017/18. the detailed budget for 2018/19 and the strategic HRA 
estimates for the three years 2019/20 to 2021/22 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report: Joint Report of the Executive Director Economy, Skills & 
Neighbourhoods and Director of Finance - Strategic Housing Revenue Account Estimates for 2017/18 to 2021/22 
 
Background Documents: Appendices (various) 
 
Report to be considered in public 

CFHR-18-
17 
 

Statement of the Chief Financial Officer on 
Reserves, Robustness of the Estimates and 
Affordability and Prudence of Capital 
Investments in the 2018/19 Budget Setting 
Process 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial 

February 2018 Cabinet 

P
age 175



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

12 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: To consider the statement of the robustness of estimates and adequacy of the reserves in the 2018/19 budget setting 
process 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report: Statement of the Chief Financial Officer on Reserves, Robustness 
of the Estimates and Affordability and Prudence of Capital Investments in the 2018/19 Budget Setting Process 
 
Report to be considered in public 

CFHR-20-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance - Commercial 
Property Strategy 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial 

December 2017 Cabinet 

Description: The Council's strategy including objectives and processes for acquiring property assets for investment purposes. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report of the Director of Finance - Commercial Property Strategy and background 
appendices. 
 
ALL TO BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE - information detailed in the report is commercially sensitive 

CFHR-21-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance and Director of 
Education and Early Years - Schools Funding 
Formula 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial, 
Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

December 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Schools funding formula for 2018/19 in relation to the National Funding Formula and Dedicated Schools Grant deficit. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report Title: Report of the Director of Finance and Director of Education 
and Early Years - Schools Funding Formula 
 
Background Documents: Various Appendices 

 
 

P
age 176



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 DECEMBER 2017  
 

13 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

 
 
 
Key: 
 
New! - indicates an item that has been added this month 

 
Notes: 

1. The procedure for requesting details of documents listed to be submitted to decision takers for consideration is to contact the Contact 
Officer contained within the Key Decision Sheet for that item. The contact address for documents is Oldham Council, Civic Centre, 
West Street, Oldham, OL1 1UH. Other documents relevant to those matters may be submitted to the decision maker. 

2. Where on a Key Decision Sheet the Decision Taker is Cabinet, the list of its Members are as follows: Councillors Jean Stretton, 
Shoab Akhtar, Barbara Brownridge, Abdul Jabbar, Jenny Harrison, Eddie Moores, Fida Hussain and Amanda Chadderton. 

3. Full Key Decision details (including documents to be submitted to the decision maker for consideration, specific contact officer details 
and notification on if a report if likely to be considered in private) can be found via the online published plan at: 
http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=144&RD=0  

P
age 177

http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=144&RD=0


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Minutes of the Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
	7 Academy Conversions and Free Schools
	8 Strategic Regeneration: Oldham Town Centre Masterplan and Prince’s Gate Update
	9 Business Growth and Investment Review
	Business Growth and Investment Review App 2
	Business Growth and Investment Review App 3

	10 Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme
	Transport Update
	Selective licensing report
	Selective Licensing Stats - Appendix 1

	11 General Exceptions and Urgent Decisions
	12 Key Decision Document

